

GUIDELINES For GENERAL PRACTITIONERS



Press record

First Edition

Printed by SARANA PRESS (Dr. Aung Kyaw Min)

249, Theinbyu Road, Mingalartaungnyunt Township, Yangon, Myanmar

2018

Cover Designer (Tun Zaw)

Inner Designer (Tun Zaw)

Second Edition

Digital Copy Printing (TMO)

249, Theinbyu Road, Mingalartaungnyunt Township, Yangon, Myanmar.

2024 April

Cover Designer (Tun Zaw & Win Zaw)

Inner Designer (TMO)

FOREWORD

It is a great honor for me to write a foreword to **Guidelines for General Practitioners** by General Practitioners' society, Myanmar Medical Association (Central).

General practitioners are the primary health providers in the community looking after the majority of the people of our country. They are being trusted and depend upon by every families in the surrounding area where they practice. The first and foremost care by the General Practitioners are the most important for all the people.

Guidelines based on a critical appraisal of scientific evidence (evidence-based guidelines) clarify which interventions are of proved benefit and document the quality of the supporting data. They alert clinicians to interventions unsupported by good science, reinforce the importance and methods of critical appraisal, and call attention to ineffective, dangerous, and wasteful practices.

Clinical guidelines can improve the quality of clinical decisions. They offer explicit recommendations for clinicians who are uncertain about how to proceed, overturn the beliefs of doctors accustomed to outdated practices, improve the consistency of care, and provide authoritative recommendations that reassure practitioners about the appropriateness of their treatment policies.

The Myanmar Medical Association together with the GP society has been helping out with the CME and CPD program for the Member doctors both inhouse sessions and online courses. This guideline is one of the essential parts of this CPD for the GPs.

I would like to congratulate the GP society for their effort for producing this guideline and also, I would like to encourage them to review and updated regularly.

Professor Aye Aung President Myanmar Medical Association

April, 2024

PREFACE

We are writing this letter to express our sincerest gratitude and appreciation for the successful completion of the **second edition** of the **General Practitioners' Guidelines**. This accomplishment is the result of an exceptional collaborative effort, and we would like to extend our thanks to all those involved.

The General Practitioners' Guidelines has been an invaluable resource since its inception with the launch of the first edition in November 2017. As per the initial plan, the guidelines were intended to be updated every three years to ensure the most up-to-date information reaches Myanmar General Practitioners, enhancing their knowledge in primary healthcare and family health.

However, the unforeseen outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic disrupted our plans and posed numerous challenges for the team. In-person meetings became impossible due to safety concerns, making it necessary for us to find alternative means of communication and collaboration. Despite the adversity faced, the team members demonstrated remarkable resilience and adaptability by utilizing online platforms and technology to continue the update process.

We would like to extend our deepest gratitude to the dedicated team members who persevered and worked tirelessly during these trying times. Their commitment, professionalism, and unwavering dedication to the project enabled us to overcome the obstacles posed by the pandemic and successfully complete the second edition of the guideline.

Furthermore, we would like to express our sincere appreciation to the specialist societies that actively contributed to the development of the guidelines. Their expertise and invaluable insights have ensured that the content remains current, accurate, and relevant, enabling our General Practitioners to provide the highest quality of care to their patients.

We would also like to extend our heartfelt thanks to the esteemed President of the Myanmar Medical Association, for their continuous support and guidance throughout this endeavor. Their leadership and unwavering commitment to advancing medical knowledge in Myanmar have been instrumental in the success of this Guidelines.

Moreover, the decision to distribute the guideline as electronic copies reflects our commitment to ensuring easy access for all Myanmar General Practitioners. By making it available in this format, we aim to facilitate the dissemination of updated knowledge, thus empowering our healthcare professionals to deliver the best possible care to the community.

In conclusion, we would like to express our deepest gratitude to all those who contributed to the development and distribution of the General Practitioners' Guidelines Second Edition. The unwavering supports and collective efforts have made a significant impact on enhancing primary healthcare and family health care in Myanmar.

Once again, thank you for your outstanding dedication, resilience, and invaluable contributions. We look forward to our continued collaboration in advancing medical knowledge and improving healthcare outcomes for all.

Dr Khine Soe Win and Dr Win Zaw General Practitioners' Society (Central) Myanmar Medical Association April, 2024

EDITORIAL

It is my privilege to inform you that our updated and revised edition of "**Guidelines for General Practitioners**" will be published very soon and it is my great pleasure to be the editor-in-chief of this guideline book. There are various reasons for revising and updating the previous edition.

This is the fact that some important topics, for example, malaria and family violence are missing in the first edition and some clinical practice guidelines like Diabetes Management have been changed during the interim period. Of course, this opportunity arises due to the emergence of COVID-19 in the world. As all you know, Medicine is an ever-changing science; we need to consider updating our guidelines at least five- yearly. Hence the time is up now!

Education is achieved by assimilating information from many resources and readers of this book can enhance their learning experience in terms of reflecting in their daily Family/General Practice. We all take immerse pride in contributing good educational resource dedicated to Myanmar General Practitioners. The editors and authors anticipate that the readers will both enjoy and profit from their work in preparing this volume.

Happy studying and learning,

Dr Win Lwin Thein Editor-in chief Vice President (GP Society) April, 2024

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We would like to thank all our talented and hard-working colleagues who have contributed to the ongoing development of the **Guidelines for General Practitioners**.

Especially, we would like to highlight the significance of the second edition which appears when the family medicine development process in Myanmar is being idle. Many factors are impeding the developing process lately, which has been accelerated previously by the commitment of the MOHS, the medical universities, and the General Practitioners' Society before the COVID-19 pandemic started.

No one can deny that the Myanmar health care system is lacking a strong and effective primary care task force. The best solution to mend this defect is retraining the thousands of general practitioners who are working individually across the country. Here comes the role of family medicine to train these GPs and primary care doctors to be able to use its principles effectively and, in turn, strengthen primary care.

Many GPs are using some family medicine principles consciously or unconsciously in varying degree of competency. Person-centered care, continuity of care, and family-oriented care became the culture of most practices for a long time. But only a few GPs can enjoy the most effective coordinated care and seamless continuity of care with secondary and tertiary care providers. The reasons behind this would be the absence of standardization in general practitioners' service quality and unawareness of the value of family medicine practitioners by other specialties and the public.

To resolve this ambiguity, primary care doctors should be involved in the retraining programs and thereafter CME/CPD and other life-long-learning programs which prescribe family medicine curricula.

We also acknowledge the effort of the contributors to make this new edition more family medicineoriented, in addition to the Family Medicine chapter at the beginning of the book. We genuinely believe that the new edition will be a better reference for the GP/FP who wants to practice quality primary care and for future family medicine programs in Myanmar.

Finally, we would like to thank all academic writers who contributed to the General Practice Guidelines-first edition. Without their kind support, this second edition could never have happened.

Regards,

Dr. Tin Aye and Dr. Kyaw Thu General Practitioners' Society (Central), MMA

April, 2024

LIST OF CONTRIBUTORS

- 1. Aung Cho Myint, Prof
- 2. Aung Maw, Dr
- 3. Aye Aung, Prof
- 4. *Aye Aye Than, Dr*
- 5. Aye Aye Thein, Dr
- 6. *Chit Soe, Prof*
- 7. Hla Myat Nwe, Prof
- 8. Hla Myint Tun, Dr
- 9. Hlaing Mya Win, Prof
- 10. Hlaing Myint, Dr
- 11. Htay Win, Dr
- 12. *Htin Aung Saw, Prof*
- 13. Htun Lwin Nyein, Prof
- 14. Khin Hla Hla, Prof
- 15. Khin Hta Yi, Prof
- 16. Khin Mi Mi, Dr
- 17. Khin Ohnmar Khine, Prof
- 18. Khin Saw Than, Prof
- 19. *Khine Khine Zaw, Prof*
- 20. Khine Soe Win, Dr
- 21. Ko Ko, Prof
- 22. Kyaw Myint Naing, Prof
- 23. Kyaw Thu, Dr
- 24. Kyaw Zin Wai, Prof
- 25. Kyi Kyi Nyunt, Prof
- 26. Kyi Kyi Thinn, Prof
- 27. Kyin Htwe, Dr
- 28. Lin Htet, Dr
- 29. Lwin May Oo, Dr
- 30. Mar Mar Kyi, Prof
- 31. Maung Maung Sein, Prof
- 32. May Thandar Oo, Dr
- 33. Min Han, Prof
- 34. Min Yazar, Dr
- 35. Min Zaw Oo, Prof
- 36. Moe Naing, Dr
- 37. *Moe Wint Aung, Prof*
- 38. Mya Thae Han, Dr
- 39. Mya Win Hnit, Dr
- 40. Myint Thaung, Prof

- 41. Myo Khine, Dr
- 42. Myo Lwin Nyein, Prof
- 43. Myo Nyunt Aung, Dr
- 44. Myo Oo, Prof
- 45. Naing Oo, Prof
- 46. Nang Phyu Phyu Aung, Prof
- 47. Nwe Mar Tun, Prof
- 48. Nwe Nwe Aung, Dr
- 49. Nyein Moe Thaw, Dr
- 50. Phyu Phyu Khaing, Dr
- 51. Rai Mra, Prof
- 52. Samuel Kyaw Hla, Prof
- 53. Saw Win, Prof
- 54. Sein Way Lwin, Dr
- 55. Than Htike, Dr
- 56. Than Than Aung, A Prof
- 57. Than Than Aye, Prof
- 58. Thar Thar Oo, Dr
- 59. Thein Aung, Prof
- 60. Thein Myint, Prof
- 61. Thet Naing Maung, Dr
- 62. Thin Thin Nwe, Dr
- 63. Tin Aye, Dr
- 64. Tin Nyunt, Dr
- 65. Tin Tin Aye, Dr
- 66. Tin Tin Hla, Dr
- 67. *Tint Tint Kyi, Prof*
- 68. Vijay Kumar, Dr
- 69. Win Lwin Thein, Dr
- 70. Win Zaw, Dr
- 71. Yin Yin Soe, Prof
- 72. Yin Yin Zaw, Prof
- 73. Yu Yu Lwin, Dr
- 74. Zaw Lynn Aung, Prof

SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS

AAA abdominal aortic aneurysm **ABC** airway, breathing, circulation ABCD airway, breathing, circulation, dextrose ABO A, B and O blood groups **ACE** angiotensin-converting enzyme **ACEI** angiotensin-converting enzyme inhibitor **ACTH** adrenocorticotrophic hormone ADHD attention deficit hyperactivity disorder **ADT** adult diphtheria vaccine **AFP** alpha-fetoprotein AI aortic incompetence **AIDS** acquired immunodeficiency syndrome AIIRA angiotensin II (2) reuptake antagonist **AKF** acute kidney failure **ALE** average life expectancy ALL acute lymphocytic leukaemia **ALP** alkaline phosphatase **ALT** alanine aminotransferase AMI acute myocardial infarction AML acute myeloid leukaemia ANA antinuclear antibody **ANF** antinuclear factor **AP** anterior–posterior **APH** ante-partum haemorrhage **ASD** atrial septal defect **ASIS** anterior superior iliac spine **ASOT** antistreptolysin O titre **AST** aspartate aminotransferase AV atrioventricular **AZT** azidothymidine **BCC** basal cell carcinoma **BCG** bacille Calmette-Guérin **BMD** bone mass density **BMI** body mass index **BP** blood pressure **BPH** benign prostatic hyperplasia Ca carcinoma **CABG** coronary artery bypass grafting CAD coronary artery disease CAP community acquired pneumonia **CBT** cognitive behaviour therapy **CCF** congestive cardiac failure **CCU** coronary care unit CD4 T helper cell **CD8** T suppressor cell CDT combined diphtheria/tetanus vaccine **CEA** carcinoembryonic antigen **CFS** chronic fatigue syndrome **CHD** coronary heart disease **CHF** chronic heart failure **CIN** cervical intraepithelial neoplasia **CK** creatinine kinase **CKD** chronic kidney disease **CKF** chronic kidney failure **CML** chronic myeloid leukaemia **CMV** cytomegalovirus CNS central nervous system

COAD chronic obstructive airways disease **COC** combined oral contraceptive **COCP** combined oral contraceptive pill **COPD** chronic obstructive pulmonary disease **COX** cyclooxygenase **CPA** cardiopulmonary arrest **CPAP** continuous positive airways pressure **CPK** creatine phosphokinase **CPR** cardiopulmonary resuscitation **CR** controlled release **CREST** calcinosis cutis; Raynaud's phenomenon; oesophageal involvement; sclerodactyly; telangiectasia **CRF** chronic renal failure **CR(K)F** chronic renal (kidney) failure **CRP** C-reactive protein **CSF** cerebrospinal fluid **CT** computerised tomography **CTS** carpal tunnel syndrome CVA cerebrovascular accident **CVS** cardiovascular system **CXR** chest X-ray **DBP** diastolic blood pressure **DC** direct current **DHA** docosahexaenoic acid **DI** diabetes insipidus **DIC** disseminated intravascular coagulation **dL** decilitre **DMARDs** disease modifying antirheumatic drugs DNA deoxyribose-nucleic acid **DRABC** defibrillation, resuscitation, airway, breathing, circulation drug dosage bd-twice daily, tid/tds -three times daily, qid/qds -four times daily ds double strand **DS** double strength **DSM** diagnostic and statistical manual (of mental disorders) DU duodenal ulcer **DUB** dysfunctional uterine bleeding **DVT** deep venous thrombosis **EBM** Epstein-Barr mononucleosis (glandular fever) **EBV** Epstein-Barr virus **ECG** electrocardiogram **ECT** electroconvulsive therapy **EDD** expected due date **EEG** electroencephalogram **ELISA** enzyme linked immunosorbent assay **ESRF** end-stage renal failure ESR(K)F end stage renal (kidney) failure **ERCP** endoscopic retrograde cholangiopancreatography esp. especially **ESR** erythrocyte sedimentation rate FB foreign body FBE full blood count

FEV1 forced expiratory volume in 1 second **fL** femtolitre = (1e-15) litre **FSH** follicle stimulating hormone **FUO** fever of undetermined origin **FVC** forced vital capacity g gram **GA** general anaesthetic **GABHS** group A beta-haemolytic streptococcus **GBS** Guillain-Barré syndrome **GFR** glomerular filtration rate **GI** glycaemic index **GIT** gastrointestinal tract **GLP** glucagon-like peptide **GnRH** gonadotrophin-releasing hormone **GO** gastro-oesophageal GORD gastro-oesophageal refl ux **GP** general practitioner G-6-PD glucose-6-phosphate **GU** gastric ulcer **HAV** hepatitis A virus anti-HAV hepatitis A antibody Hb haemoglobin **HbA** haemoglobin A anti-HBc hepatitis B core antibody HBeAg hepatitis B e antigen anti-HBs hepatitis B surface antibody HBsAg hepatitis B surface antigen **HBV** hepatitis B virus

HCG human chorionic gonadotropin **HCV** hepatitis C virus anti-HCV hepatitis C virus antibody HDL high-density lipoprotein **HEV** hepatitis E virus **HFM** hand, foot and mouth **HFV** hepatitis F virus **HGV** hepatitis G virus **HIV** human immunodeficiency virus HNPCC hereditary nonpolyposis colorectal cancer **HPV** human papilloma virus **HRT** hormone replacement therapy HSV herpes simplex viral infection **IBS** irritable bowel syndrome **ICE** ice, compression, elevation **ICS** inhaled corticosteroid **ICS** intercondylar separation **ICT** immunochromatographic test **IDDM** insulin dependent diabetes mellitus **IDU** injecting drug user IgE immunoglobulin E IgG immunoglobulin G IgM immunoglobulin M **IHD** ischaemic heart disease IM, IMI intramuscular injection inc. including **IPPV** intermittent positive pressure variation **IR** internal rotation **ITP** idiopathic (or immune) thrombocytopenia purpura **IUCD** intrauterine contraceptive device **IUGR** intrauterine growth retardation

IV intravenous **IVI** intravenous injection **IVP** intravenous pyelogram **IVU** intravenous urogram JCA juvenile chronic arthritis **JVP** jugular venous pulse KA keratoacanthoma kg kilogram KOH potassium hydroxide LA local anaesthetic LABA long acting beta agonist **LBBB** left branch bundle block **LBO** large bowel obstruction LBP low back pain LDH/LH lactic dehydrogenase LDL low-density lipoprotein **LFTs** liver function tests **LH** luteinising hormone LHRH luteinising hormone releasing hormone **LIF** left iliac fossa LMN lower motor neurone **LNG** levonorgestrel LRTI lower respiratory tract infection LSD lysergic acid LUQ left upper quadrant **LUTS** lower urinary tract symptoms LV left ventricular LVH left ventricular hypertrophy mane in morning MAOI monoamine oxidase inhibitor mcg microgram (also µg) **MCV** mean corpuscular volume **MDI** metered dose inhaler MDR multi-drug resistant TB **MI** myocardial infarction **MRCP** magnetic resonance cholangiography MRI magnetic resonance imaging MS multiple sclerosis MSM men who have sex with men MSU midstream urine N normal **NAD** no abnormality detected **NGU** non-gonococcal urethritis NHL non-Hodgkin's lymphoma NIDDM non-insulin dependent diabetes mellitus **nocte** at night NSAIDs non-steroidal anti-inflammatory drugs **NSU** non-specific urethritis (o) taken orally **OA** osteoarthritis **OCP** oral contraceptive pill **OGTT** oral glucose tolerance test **OSA** obstructive sleep apnoea **OTC** over the counter **PA** posterior–anterior **PAN** polyarteritis nodosa Pap Papanicolaou **pc** after meals PCA percutaneous continuous analgesia **PCB** post coital bleeding

PCL posterior cruciate ligament **PCOS** polycystic ovarian syndrome **PCP** pneumocystis carinii pneumonia **PCR** polymerase chain reaction **PCV** packed cell volume **PDA** patent ductus arteriosus **PEF** peak expiratory flow **PEFR** peak expiratory flow rate **PET** pre-eclamptic toxaemia **PFT** pulmonary function test **PH** past history **PID** pelvic inflammatory disease **PLISSIT** permission: limited information: specific suggestion: intensive therapy **PMS** premenstrual syndrome **PMT** premenstrual tension **POP** plaster of Paris **POP** progestogen-only pill **PPI** proton-pump inhibitor **PPROM** preterm premature rupture of membranes **PR** per rectum **prn** as and when needed **PROM** premature rupture of membranes **PSA** prostate specific antigen **PSIS** posterior superior iliac spine **PSVT** paroxysmal supraventricular tachycardia **PT** prothrombin time **PTC** percutaneous transhepatic cholangiography **PU** peptic ulcer **PUO** pyrexia of undetermined origin pv per vagina **<u>ads</u>**, **<u>qid</u>** four times daily **RA** rheumatoid arthritis **RBBB** right branch bundle block **RBC** red blood cell **RCT** randomised controlled trial **RF** rheumatic fever **Rh** rhesus **RIB** rest in bed RICE rest, ice, compression, elevation **RIF** right iliac fossa **RPR** rapid plasma reagin **RR** relative risk **RSV** respiratory syncytial virus **RT** reverse transcriptase rtPA recombinant tissue plasminogen activator **SAH** subarachnoid haemorrhage SARS severe acute respiratory distress syndrome **SBE** subacute bacterial endocarditis **SBO** small bowel obstruction **SBP** systolic blood pressure SC/SCI subcutaneous/subcutaneous injection **SCC** squamous cell carcinoma **SCG** sodium cromoglycate **SIADH** syndrome of secretion of inappropriate antidiuretic hormone **SIDS** sudden infant death syndrome SIJ sacroiliac joint **SL** sublingual **SLE** systemic lupus erythematosus

SLR straight leg raising **SND** sensorineural deafness **SNHL** sensorineural hearing loss **SNRI** serotonin noradrenaline reuptake inhibitor **SOB** shortness of breath sp species **SR** sustained release SSRI selective serotonin reuptake inhibitor **SSS** sick sinus syndrome stat at once **STI** sexually transmitted infection **SVC** superior vena cava **SVT** supraventricular tachycardia T3 tri-iodothyronine T4 thyroxine **TB** tuberculosis tds, tid three times daily **TENS** transcutaneous electrical nerve stimulation **TFTs** thyroid function tests **TG** triglyceride TIA transient ischaemic attack **TIBC** total iron binding capacity **TM** tympanic membrane **TMJ** temporomandibular joint TNF tissue necrosis factor **TOF** tracheo-oesophageal fistula TORCH toxoplasmosis, rubella, cytomegalovirus, herpes virus **TPHA** Treponema pallidum haemoglutination test **TSE** testicular self-examination **TSH** thyroid-stimulating hormone **TT** thrombin time TV tidal volume **U** units UC ulcerative colitis U & E urea and electrolytes µg microgram **UMN** upper motor neurone URTI upper respiratory tract infection **US** ultrasound **UTI** urinary tract infection U ultraviolet **VC** vital capacity **VDRL** Venereal Disease Reference Laboratory **VF** ventricular fibrillation VMA vanillyl mandelic acid **VSD** ventricular septal defect VT ventricular tachycardia **VUR** vesico-ureteric reflux **VWD** von Willebrand's disease **WBC** white blood cells WCC white cell count **WHO** World Health Organization **WPW** Wolff-Parkinson-White XL sex linked

Printing memo page	1
Foreword	3
Preface	5
Editorial	7
Acknowledgement	9
List of contributors	11
Symbols and abbreviations	13
Content	17
Chapter (13)	787-960

Dermatological Problems	<mark>78</mark> 7
• Type of Skin Lesions	791
Topical Steroid	793
Bacterial Infections	797
Viral infections	807
Arthropod Insect Bites and Cutaneous Infections	817
• Insect bites and Sting	820
Fungal infections	822
Acne vulgaris and Rosacea	838
• Dermatosis	845
Urticaria	863
• Psoariasis	867
Miscellaneous Inflammatory Disorders	874
Benign skin tumors	881
Vascular Tumors and Malformation	886
Precancerous Lesions	892
Cutaneous Melanoma	894
Skin Cancer	900
Photosensitivity and Photo Induced Disorder	903
Pigmentary Disorder	911
Immunobullonus Diseases	917
Connective Tissue Diseases	923
Hair Diseases	932
Cutaneous Manifestation of Internal Diseases	937

CHAPTER 13 DERMATOLOGY

Contents

- 1. Type of Skin Lesions
- 2. Topical Steroid
- 3. Bacterial Infections
 - Impetigo
 - Ecthyma
 - Cellulitis
 - Erysipelas
 - Erysipeloid
 - Folliculitis
 - Pseudofolliculitis
 - Furuncle (Boils)
 - Carbuncle
 - Staphylococcal Scalded Skin Syndrome
 - Toxic Shock Syndrome
 - Scarlet Fever
 - Cutaneous Anthrax
 - Meningococcal Infection
 - Pseudomonas Folliculitis
 - Necrotizing Soft Tissue Infection
 - Lymphangitis
 - Erythrasma
 - Pitted Keratolysis
 - Nonspecific Intertrigo
 - Lyme Disease
 - Scrub Typhus
 - Acute Rheumatic Fever

• 4. Viral infections

- Molluscum Contagiosum
- Herpes Simplex (Cold sores)
- Eczema Herpeticum (Kaposi's Varicelliform Eruption
- Varicella (Chicken Pox)
- Herpes Zoster (Shingles)
- Hand, Foot and Mouth Disease (HFMD)
- Erythema Infectiosum
- Gianotti-Crosti Syndrome
- Human Papilloma Virus Infection (Warts)
- Rubella (German measles)
- Measles
- DHF
- Monkey Pox

5. Arthropod Insect Bites and Cutaneous Infections

- Scabies
- Lice (Pediculosis)
- Cutaneous Larva Migrans (Creeping Eruption)
- 6. Insect bites and Stings

- Bee and Wasp Stings
- Flea Bites
- Fire Ant Stings
- 7. Fungal infections
 - Tinea Pedis
 - Tinea of the Groin (Tinea Cruris, Jock Itch)
 - Tinea of the Body (Tinea Corporis) (Tinea circinata)
 - Tinea of Hand (Tinea Manuum)
 - Tinea Incongnito
 - Tinea Facei/Tinea Facialis
 - Tinea Capitis
 - Tinea barbae
 - Tinea Versicolor or Pityriasis versicolor
 - Candidiasis (Moniliasis)
 - Candidial Balantitis
 - Diaper dermatitis
 - Candida intertrigo
 - Tinea of the Nail
 - Candida onychomycosis
- 8. Acne vulgaris and Rosacea
 - Acne Vulgaris
 - Rosacea
- 9. Dermatosis
 - Dermatitis / Eczema
 - Atopic Dermatitis
 - Seborrhoeic Dermatitis
 - Discoid or Nummular Eczema
 - Dyshidrotic Eczema / Pompholyx / Hand and Foot Eczema
 - Stasis Dermatitis
 - Venous Leg Ulcer
 - Xerotic Eczema
 - Icthyosis Vulgaris
 - Keratosis Pilaris
 - Pityriasis Alba
 - Contact Dermatitis
 - Irritant Contact Dermatitis (ICD)
 - Allergic Contact Dermatitis (ACD)
 - Lichen Simplex Chronicus
 - Prurigo Nodularis (PN)
- 10. Urticaria
- 11. Psoariasis
- 12.Miscellaneous Inflammatory Disorders
 - Lichen Planus-
 - Pityriasis Rosea -
- 13. Benign skin tumors

- Dermatofibroma
- Keratoacanthoma
- Skin Tags
- Sebaceous Hyperplasia
- Syringoma
- Seborrheic Keratosis
- Hypertrophic Scar
- Pilar Cyst (Trichilemmal cyst)
- Epidermal Cyst (Epidermoid Cyst)
- Nevous Sebaceous
- Chondrodermatitis
- Clear Cell Acanthoma
- Keloid
- Milium
- Digital Myxoid Cyst

14. Vascular Tumor and Malformations

- Hemangiomas of Infancy
- Vascular Malformation
- Capillary Malformation
- Spider Angioma (Nevus Araneus)
- Cherry Angioma
- Angiokeratoma
- Pyogenic Granuloma
- Venous Malformation
- Venous Lake
- Lymphatic Malformation
- Lymphangioma
- Kaposi's sarcoma
- Capillary / Venous Malformation

-Telangiectasis

- 15. Precancerous Lesions
 - Actinitic (Solar) Keratosis or Keratosis Senilis
 - Arsenical Keratosis
 - Bowen's Disease
 - Cutaneous Horn
 - Cutaneous T cell lymphoma
 - Leucoplakia
- 16. Cutaneous Melanomas
 - Melanoma
 - Nevi
 - Mongolian spot
 - Nevus of Ota
 - Becker Nevus
- 17. Skin Cancers
 - Basal cell Carcinoma
 - Basal cell nervous syndrome
 - Squamous Cell Carcinoma
 - Paget disease of Breast
 - Extra mammary Paget's disease
- 18. Photosensitivity and Photo Induced Disorders

- Skin Reactions to Sunlight
- Acute Sun Damage (Sunburn)
- Drug or chemical induced photosensitivity
- Phototoxic Drug / Chemical induced photosensitivity
- Photoallergic Drug/ Chemical induced Photosensitivity
- Polymorphous light Eruption
- Solar Urticaria
- Metabolic Photosensitivity The porphyria
 - Causes of Aging Skin (Intrinsic and Extrinsic aging)
 - Types of skin damage from exposure to UVR
 - Chronic Photodamage
 - Photo aging or dermatoheliosis
 - Solar lentigo
 - Solar Elastosis
 - Actinic keratosis
- 19. Pigmentary Disorders
 - Vitiligo
 - Poikiloderma of Civatte
 - Melasma
 - -20. Immunobullonus diseases
 - Pemphigus Vulgaris
 - Bullous Pemphigoid
 - Pemphigus Foliaceus
 - Herpes Gestations
 - Dermatitis Herpetiformis
 - 21. Connective Tissue Diseases
 - Cutaneous Lupus Erythematous
 - Scleroderma
 - Morphea
- 22. Hair Diseases
 - Alopecia areata
- 23. Cutaneous Manifestation of Internal Diseases
 - Cutaneous Manifestation of Leprosy
 - Cutaneous Tuberculosis
 - Cutaneous Manifestation of Diabetes Mellitus
 - -

1. TYPES OF SKIN LESIONS

Primary Lesions: these lesions represent the early stage of the lesion, how they look when they start, and prior to evolving. Secondary Lesions: these lesions represent a later stage after the lesion has evolved or been altered. This may help you to determine where in the skin the process is occurring (epidermis, dermis, fat)

TYPES OF PRIMARY SKIN LESIONS

TYPES OF SKIN LESION CHEAT SHEET



Bulla Circumscribed collection of free fluid > 1 cm



Papule Superficial solid elevated, ≤ 0.5 cm, color varies



Wheal Edematous, transitory, plauqe, may last few hours



Excoriation Linear erosion



Macule Circular flat discoloration < 1cm brown, blue, red or hypopigmented



Plaque Superficial elevated solid flat topped lesion > 1 cm



Scale Epidermal thickening; consists of flakes of plates of compacted desquameted layers of stratum corneum



Erosion Loss of epidermis superficial; part or all of the epidermis has been lost



Nodule Circular, Elevated, Solid Lesion >1 cm



Pustule Vesicle containing puss (inflammatory cells)



Crust Dried serum or Eexudate on skin



Lichenification Thickening of the epidemisseen with exaggeration of Normal skin lines



Scar Thickening; permanent fibrotic changes that occur on the skin following damage of the epidermis



Fissure Crack or split







Vesicle Circular collection of free fluid ≤ 1 cm

Bulla - fluid filled blister more than 0.5 cm.

Macule - less than l cm flat non-palpable lesion.

Nodule - elevated bump more than 0.5 cm, frequently in the dermis or fat and deeper than a plaque

Patch - more than 1 cm flat non-palpable lesion

Papule - elevated bump less than 0.5 cm

Plaque - plateau like lesion more than 0.5 cm

Pustule - cloudy fluid filled lesion containing many inflammatory cells (pus in it)

Vesicle - fluid filled blister less than 0.5 cm

Wheal - special plaque composed only of fluid (hives)

Large nodules, more than 2 cm are often referred to as tumors

Cyst - papule or nodule filled fluid or semisolid material

Telangiectasia - dilated superficial vessels (not broken blood vessels)

SECONDARY LESION

- Crust Dried fluid and keratinocytes arising from broken vesicles and bullae
- Scale thickened stratum corneum (scale occurs in the epidermis)
- Induration Increased firmness and thickening of the dermis (need to feel to determine this)
- Erosion Loss of the epidermis
- Ulceration Loss of the epidermis and some or all of the dermis and sometimes subcutaneous tissue
- Atrophy Loss of dermis or fat (sunken in) or thinning of the epidermis (finely wrinkled translucent skin)

SHAPE AND CONFIGURATION

- Annular Making a circle, clear in the center round or oval
- Grouped (herpetiform) Occurring in crops
- Linear Making a line
- Dermatomal Going along the nerves:

DIRECTION

A series of pictures displaying various morphologies and patterns will follow, try to think about how you should describe these lesions to your residents and attendees and then see how these lesions are appropriately described.

T2. TOPICAL STEROID

A topical steroid is an anti-inflammatory preparation used to control eczema (dermatitis and many other skin conditions). Topical steroids are available in creams, ointments, solutions and other vehicles. Topical steroids are also called topical corticosteroids, glucocorticosteroids, and cortisone.

ACTION OF TOPICAL STEROID

- Anti-inflammatory
- Immunosuppressive
- Anti-proliferative
- Vasoconstrictive.

The potency of a topical steroid depends on:

- The specific molecule
- Amount that reaches the target cell
- Absorption through the skin (0.25%-3%)

FORMULATIONS OF TOPICAL STEROID

Several formulations are available for topical steroids, intended to sult the type of skin lesion and its location.

CREAMS

A cream is an emulsion of oil and water in approximately equal proportions. It penetrates the stratum corneum outer layer of skin well. Cream is thicker than lotion, and maintains its shape when removed from its container

LOTION

Lotions are similar to solutions but are thicker and tend to be more emollient in nature than solution. They are usually oil mixed with water, and more often than not have less alcohol than solutions Creams and lotions are general purpose and are the most popular formulations.

OINTMENT

An ointment is a homogeneous, viscous, semi-solid preparation, most commonly greasy, thick oil (oil 80% - water 20%) with a high viscosity that is intended for external application to the skin or mucous membranes. It is more suitable formulation for dry, non-hairy skin, no requirement for preservative, reducing risk of irritancy and contact allergy and occlusive, increasing risk of folliculitis and miliaria.

GEL OR SOLUTION

Gels are thicker than a solution. Gels are often a semisolid emulsion in an alcohol base. Some will melt at body temperature. Gel tends to be cellulose cut with alcohol or acetone. Gels tend to be drying. It is useful in hair-bearing skin, has an astringent (drying) effect and stings inflamed skin.

As a general rule, use the weakest possible steroid that will do the job. It is often appropriate to use a

potent preparation for a short time to ensure the skin condition clears completely. Topical steroid is sometimes combined with another active ingredient, including antibacterial, antifungal agent or calcipotriol.

Topical corticosteroid / antibiotic preparations should be used rarely, and short-term (e.g., three times daily for one week for a small area of infected dermatitis), to reduce the risk of antimicrobial resistance.

CLASSIFICATION OF TOPICAL CORTICOSTEROID

Potency Clas	s Topi	cal Corticosteroid	Formulation
Ultra-high	Ι	Clobetasol propionate	Cream, 0.05%
		Diflorasone diacetate	Ointment, 0.05%
High	II	Amcinonide	Ointment, 0.1%
		Betamethasone dipropionate	Ointment, 0.05%
		Fluocinonide	Cream, ointment or gel 0.05%
		Halcinonide	Cream 0.1%
	III	Betamethasone dipropionate	Cream, 0.05%
		Betamethasone valerate	Ointment, 0.1%
		Diflorasone diacetate	Cream, 0.05%
		Triamcinolone acetonide	Ointment, 0.1%
Moderate	IV	Desoximetasone	Cream, 0.05%
		Fluocinolone acetonide	Ointment, 0.025%
		Fludroxycortide	Ointment, 0.05%
		Hydrocortisone valerate	Ointment, 0.2%
		Triamcinolone acetonide	Cream 0.1%
	V	Betamethasone dipropionate	Lotion, 0.02%
		Betamethasone valerate	Cream, 0.1%
		Fluocinolone acetonide	Cream, 0.025%
		Fludroxycortide	Cream, 0.05%
		Hydrocortisone butyrate	Cream, 0.1%
		Hydrocortisone valerate	Cream, 0.2%
		Triamcinolone acetonide	Lotion, 0.1%
Low	VI	Betamethasone valerate	Lotion, 0.05%
		Desonide	Cream, 0.05%
		Fluocinolone acetonide	Solution, 0.01%
	VII	Dexamethasone sodium phosphate	Cream, 0.1%
		Hydrocortisone acetate	Cream, 0.1%
		Methylprednisolone acetate	Cream, 0.25%

Very potent or super potent Class I, is up to 600 times as potent as hydrocortisone) e.g., Clobetasol propionate, Betamethasone dipropionate (in optimised vehicle).

Potent, Class II is 100-150 times as potent as hydrocortisone, such as Betamethasone valerate, Betamethasone dipropionate (cream, ointment, gel), Mometasone furoate and Methylprednisolone aceponate.

Moderate, class III or IV is 2 -25 times as potent as hydrocortisone such as Clobetasone butyrate and Triamcinolone acetonide.

Mild form is Hydrocortisone and Hydrocortisone acetate.

Class I topical corticosteroids are the most potent and Class VII are the least potent. Efficacy and sideeffects are greatest with the Class I ultra-high-potency preparations which should only be used for limited time periods (2-3 weeks).

CUTANEOUS SIDE EFFECTS

Local side effects may arise when a potent topical steroid is applied daily for long periods of time (months). Most reports of side effects describe prolonged use of unnecessarily potent topical steroid for inappropriate indications.

- Skin thinning (atrophy)
- Stretch marks (striae) in armpits or groin
- Easy bruising (senile / solar purpura) and tearing of the skin
- Enlarged blood vessels (telangiectasia)
- Localised increased hair thickness and length (hypertrichosis)

Topical steroid can cause, aggravate or mask skin infections such as impetigo, tinea, herpes simplex, and malassezia folliculitis and molluscum contagiosum.

Note: topical steroid remains the first-line treatment for infected eczema.

Potent topical steroid applied for weeks to months or longer can lead to:

- Periorificial dermatitis (common)
- Steroid rosacea
- Symptoms due to topical corticosteroid withdrawal
- Pustular psoriasis.
- Stinging frequently occurs when a topical steroid is first applied, due to underlying inflammation and broken skin.
- Contact allergy to steroid molecule, preservative or vehicle is uncommon, but may occur after the first application of the product or after many years of its use.

OCULAR SIDE EFFECTS

Topical steroid should be used cautiously on eyelid skin, where It commonly results in periocular dermatitis. Potentially, excessive use over weeks to months might lead to glaucoma or cataracts.

TOPICAL STEROID IN PREGNANCY

Mild and moderate-potency topical steroids can be safely used in pregnancy. Caution should be used for potent and ultra-potent topical steroids used over large areas or under occlusion, of which a proportion will be absorbed systemically.

USAGE OF TOPICAL STEROID

Topical steroid is applied once daily (usually at night) to inflamed skin for a course of 5 days to several weeks. After that, It is usually stopped, or the strength or frequency of application is reduced. Emollients can be applied before or after the application of topical steroid, to relieve irritation and dryness or as a barrier preparation. Infection may need additional treatment.

FINGERTIP UNIT

The fingertip unIt guides the amount of topical steroid to be applied to a body site. One unIt describes the amount of cream squeezed out of its tube onto the volar aspect of the terminal phalanx of the index

finger.

The quantity of cream in a fingertip unit, varies with gender, age and body part.

- Adult male: one fingertip unit provides 0.5 g
- Adult female: one fingertip unit provides 0.4 g
- Child aged 4 years: approximately 1/3 of adult amount
- Infant 6 months to 1 year: approximately 1/4 of adult amount
- One hand: apply 1 fingertip unit
- One arm: apply 3 fingertip units
- One foot: apply 2 fingertip units
- One leg: apply 6 fingertip units
- Face and neck: apply 2.5 fingertip units
- Trunk, front & back: 14 fingertip units
- Entire body: about 40 units



https://hermnetnz.org/topics/fin gertip-unit

3. BACTERIAL INFECTIONS

1. Impetigo

Highly contagious superficial skin infection caused by *staphylococcus* or *streptococcus*.

- Highly contagious infection characterized by pustules and honeycoloured crusted erosion. Kissing lesions are arise where two skin surfaces are in contact.
- Common in young children.
- Infection of the epidermis with crusted lesion
- Two types Bullous impetigo and non-bullous impetigo or school sores.

Treatment

- Fusidic acid cream bd for 7 days
- 2% mupirocin ointment or bactroban 3 time for 10 days
- Widespread non-bullous impetigo (>3 lesions) or topical fail, oral is recommended.
- Dicloxacillin 250 mg qid for 5-10 days or
- Flumox 250 mg tds for 5-7 days or
- Cephalexin 250 mg qid for 5-10 days or
- Azithromycin 500 mg on day l, 250 mg on day 2 to day 5.

2. Ecthyma

A deeper infection than impetigo caused by Staphyloccous

• Infection of the epidermis which may extend into dermis with crusted deep erosions or ulcers

Treatment

- A topical antiseptic such as povidone iodine or H_2O_2 solution
- Fusidic acid cream bd for 7 days
- 2% mupirocin ointment or bactroban 3 time for 10 days
- Dicloxacillin 250 mg qid for 5-10 days or
- Flumox 250 mg tds for 5-7 days or
- Cephalexin 250 mg qid for 5-10 days or
- Azithromycin 500 mg on day 1, 250 mg on day 2 to day5.





https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/i mpetigo https://hermnetnz.org/cme/bact erial-infections/impetigo



http://www.antimicrobe.org/ne w/photolink/gangrenosum.asp



https://www.pcds.org.uk/clinica l-guidance/erysipeloid

3. Cellulitis

Infection of dermis and subcutaneous tissue characterized by fever, erythema, edema and pain. Caused by *streptococcus and Staph*. Related to underlying Diabetes Mellitus.

Doctors typically diagnose cellulitis by a physical examination and looking at the affected skin. It usually affects the lower legs. It is associated with lymphangitis and lymphadenitis.

Treatment

- Pain relieved by cool Burrow's wet dressing
- Elevation of affected limb
- Amoxicillin + Clavulanate 500 mg bd 5-7 days
- Dicloxacillin 500-1000 mg qid for 7 days or
- Cephalexin 250-500 mg qid for 5-10 days or
- Azithromycin 500 mg on day l, 250 mg on day 2 to day 5.

4. Erysipelas

An acute inflammatory form of cellulitis that differs from other types of cellulitis in that It is superficial with lymphatic involvement (streaking) prominent.

It is a tender, intensely erythematous indurated plaque with a sharply demarcated border. It has well defined margin.

It is caused by a beta-hemolytic Streptococcus and Staphlococcus aureus.

The affected skin has a very sharp, raised border. It is bright red, firm and swollen.

- Erythema, well define and sign of inflammation
- Most often in face and common in lower limbs

Treatment

- Bed rest, elevate limbs, cold pack
- Oral or Intravenous penicillin is the antibiotic of first choice.
- Pencillin V 500 mg qid x -10 days
- Erythromycin 500 mg qid x 10-14 days
- Dicloxacillin 500 mg qid for 10 days or
- Allergy to penicillin Ceftriazone or cefazolin.

5. Erysipeloid

Acute infection of skin and soft tissue caused by Erysipelothrix rhusiopathiae.

Local pain, itching, burning and swelling usually on fingers or hand. It has clearly defined bright red to purple lesions with smooth, shiny surfaces.

Lesions may be warm and tender and cause pain or burning.



https://podiatryhq.com.au/areyou-suffering -from-ce



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Er ysipelas

A purplish red plaque, with demarcated raised borders Contact with poultry, fish, crab or pig.

Treatment

- Penicillin V 250 500 mg qid for 2 weeks.
- Cephalexin 250 500 mg qid for 5-10 days

6. Folliculitis

An inflammation of the hair follicle, caused by *staphylococcus*. Folliculitis can be due to infection, occlusion (blockage) or irritation. Deep folliculitis is called furunculosis which healed with scarring. KOH examination to exclude the fungal infection

Treatment

- 2% mupirocin ointment for 7 days
- Dicloxacillin 250 mg qid for 5-10 days or
- Flumox 250 mg tds for 5-7 days
- Cephalexin 250 mg qid for 5-10 days or
- Pityrosporum folliculitis Clotrimazole cream

7. Pseudofolliculitis (Pseudofolliculitis barbae)

Razer bumps, ingrowth hairs.

Is popular and pustular foreign body inflammatory reaction that can affect hair who shaves closely on a regular basis

Treatment

- Imbedded hair shaft must be dislodged.
- Shaving must be discontinued until inflammation is under control
- Topical clindamycin ointment
- Dicloxacillin 500-1000 mg qid for 7days or
- Cephalexin 250-500 mg qid for 5-10 days
- Intralesional triamcinolone acetonide 2.5 mg /ml for persist papule
- Avoidance of close shaving
- A moisturizing lotion /gel (Aveeno) after shaving



https://www.bajajfinservmarkets .in/insurance/healthinsurance/healthproblems/folloculitis.html



https://www.pinterest.com/pin/1 37289488747443750/

8. Furuncles (boil)

A boil is a deep form of bacterial folliculitis (infection of a hair follicle).

Boil is a walled off, deep and painful, firm or fluctuant mass enclosing a collection of pus.

It evolves from a superficial folliculitis. It is caused by *Staph, Ecoli,* Pseudomonus, Strept.

Treatment

- Warm, moist dressing are applied to the lesion
- Antiseptic or antibiotic ointment
- Incision and drain
- Dicloxacillin 250 mg qid for 5-10 days or
- Cephalexin 250 mg qid for 5-10 days or
- Augmentin 875 mg bd for 10 days or
- Clindamycin 150 300 mg tds for 10 days

9. Carbuncle

A carbuncle is a cluster of boils that form a connected area of infection.

It is also an extensive infection of a group of contagious follicles caused by *Staphyloccous*. Carbuncles cause a deeper and more severe infection and more likely to cause scars.

Predisposing factor - DM, prolong steroid therapy, malnutrition, generalized dermatosis

Treatment

- Warm, moist dressing are applied to the lesion
- Incision and drainage
- Dicloxacillin 250 mg qid for 5-10 days or
- Flumox 250 mg tds for 5-7 days or
- Cephalexin 250 mg qid for 5-10 days or
- Augmentin 875 mg bd for 10 days or
- Clindamycin 150-300 mg tds for 7days

10. Staphylococcal Scalded Skin Syndrome (Ritter's Disease)

It is a serious skin infection caused by exotoxin of Staphyloccous aureus GP 2, Type 71 and 55.

The exfoliative toxin that causes the outer layer of skin to blister and peel.

Most common in neonate during first 3 months. It is rare. It can be serious and painful, but It is usually not deadly.

Early erythematous areas are very tender

Localized form - bullous impetigo

Generalized form - exfoliation toxin induced changes



https://www.vinmec.com/en/onc ology-radiotherapy/healthnews/boils-on-thighs-what-youar-need-to-know/



https://www.vinmec.com/en/on cology-radiotherapy/healthnews/boils-on-thighs-what-

Nikolsky sign positive, acantholysis Tender red skin, denuded skin No scarring after

Complication

Cellulitis, pneumonia

Treatment

- Bacitracin or silver sulphadiazine
- Refer to hospital for systemic antibiotics
- Antibiotics i.v. flucloxacillin, or i.v. clindamycin

11. Toxic Shock Syndrome

A A A

https://www.pcds.org.uk/clinica l-guidance/staphylococcalscalded-skin-syndrome



https://emedicine.medscape.co m/article/169177-clinical

Toxic shock syndrome is a rare but life-threatening condition caused by toxin producing bacteria such as Staphylococcus aureus and Group *A Streptococcus (GAS)*.

It can affect anyone.

It is a multisystem disease caused by an exotoxin produced most often

by S. Aureus. Staphylococcal TSS and Streptococcal TSS

Rapid onset of fever and hypotension

Skin finding - early - generalized skin and mucosa erythema

Late - desquamation in early convalescence

Organ hypo-perfusion and multisystem failure

Treatment

- Refer to hospital for systemic antibiotics
- Supportive

12. Scarlet Fever

- It is a bacterial illness mainly affects children.
- It is caused by Group A Streptococcus (GAS)
- The first sign of scarlet fever can be flu like symptoms including high temperature, sore throat and swollen neck glands.
- A rash appears 12 48 hours later. It looks like small, raised bumps and starts on the chest and tummy, then spread.
- The rash makes the skin feel rough, like sand paper.
- A white coating appears on the tongue. The peel, leaving the tongue red, swollen and covered in little bumps called strawberry tongue.
- Severe infection toxin production causes streptococcus

Treatment

- Antibiotics (oral amoxicillin for 10 days)
- Alternative Erythromycin or cephalexin)
- Supportive antihistamine, calamine lotion



https://www.gponline.com/man agement-scarlet-feverpaediatricmedicine/paediatrics/article/10 87062

13. Cutaneous Anthrax

- Caused by Bacillus anthracis
- Zoonosis, Toxin mediated, can occur anywhere.
- A group of small blisters or bumps that may itch
- Black eschar surrounded by edema and purple vesicles
- A painless skin sore (ulcer), blackened, necrotic eschar and may
- or may not present regional lymphadenopathy

Treatment

• Doxycycline 100 mg bd or ciprofloxacin 500 mg bd for 8 weeks

14. Meningococcal Infection

- Caused by Neisseria meningitides
- Commonly carried in the nasopharynx
- Release of endotoxin
- **Medical Emergency** Seek medical attention immediately If the child develops symptoms of meningococcal disease.
- Two common types meningitis and septicemia
- Fever, chills, nausea, headache, neck stiffness, vomiting, myalgias, stupor, confusion hemorrhagic lesion, hypotension, meningitis
- Early exanthem- pink papules/macules (Maculopapular rash) distributed on trunk, lower limbs and mucus membrane, petichae may coalesce into haemorrhagic bullae or undergo necrosis and ulcerate.
- Later lesions petechiae appear center of macules, lesion become meningococcemia and meningitis.
- Fulminant meningococcaemia infection can cause septicaemia and death within hours of the first symptoms
- Most common cutaneous sign of meningococcal disease is localized acral purpura. The typical meningococcal rash doesn't disappear when pressure, this is known as a **blanching rash**.
- The meningitis glass test the rash does not fade under pressure

Complication

- Intercurrent infection
- CNS damage, necrosis of skin
- Arthritis, pneumonia
- Sinusitis, urethritis
- Endocarditis, pericarditis, Chronic Meningococcemia Case fatality rate 20 40%

Treatment

- Acute meningococcemia Cefotaxime 2 gm iv 8 hourly or
- Pen G 4 million U iv 4 hourly
- Refer

Prophylaxis

• Ciprofloxacilin 500mg single dose, or injection ceftriaxone.



https://acpinternist.org/archive s/2018/02mksap-quiz-5-dayhistorv-of-a-lesion-html



https://www.meningitisnow.org/meningitis-explai ned/signs-and-symptoms/glass-



https://www.meningitisnow.org/fight-for-now/wtfmeningitis/ identifying-disease/meningitis-rash/

15. Pseudomonas Folliculitis

- Caused by **Pseudomonas**, gram negative bacterial infection of hair follicles
- Hot tub folliculitis or spa pool folliculitis
- Sudden eruption of scattered red macules that evolve into papules and pustules centred on hair follicle.

Treatment

- Antiseptic cleanser e.g., Hydrogen peroxide
- Topical Antibiotics Mupirocin or erythromycin cream
- Wet dressing of acetic acid 5% is applied for 20 min bd or silver sulfadiazine cream
- Oral Antibiotics Ciprofloxacin 500 mg bd for 7-10 days
- Dicloxacillin 250 mg qid for 7-10 days
- Cephalexin 500 mg bd 10 days

16. Necrotizing Soft Tissue Infection

- Rapid progression of infection with extensive necrosis of subcutaneous tissue and overlying skins.
- It is serious life-threatening condition, can destroy skin, muscle and soft tissue.
- Severe spontaneous pain, indurated edema, bullae, cyanosis, skin pallor, absence lymphangitis, skin hyperesthesia
- May associated with toxic shock syndrome

Management

• Refer to hospital



https://www.medicalnewstoday. com/articles/324721#gallaryopen



http://faoj.org/2008/04/01/necrotizing-s oft-tissue-infection-of-the-foot-a-case-re port/

17. Lymphangitis

An acute inflammatory process involving the subcutaneous lymphatic channel by infection.

- Acute Most often due to GAS and Staphylococcus aureus
- Red linear streaks and palpable lymphatic cords

Treatment

- 2% mupirocin ointment or bactroban 3 time for 10 days
- Dicloxacillin 250 mg qid for 5-10 days or
- Flumox 250 mg tds for 5-7 days or
- Cephalexin 250 mg qid for 5-10 days or
- Azithromycin 500 mg on day 1, 250 mg on day 2 to day5.
- Clindamycin 300mg tds 5-7 days



https://www.sciencephoto.com/keywor d/lymphangitis

18. Erythrasma

Overgrowth of Corynebacterium minutissimum in the honey layer of epidermis

- Asymptomatic infection
- Intertriginous areas of web spaces of feet, groins, axillae, submammary areas
- Well demarcated red or tan patches with fine scales
- Distinguish from dermatophytosis and non-infectious intertrigo.
- Wood lamp examination shows coral red fluorescence.

Treatment

- 2.5% Benzoyl peroxide gel daily for 7 days
- Fusidic acid cream
- Topical erythromycin or clindamycin bd for 7 days
- Tetracycline 250 mg qid for 7 days or
- Doxycycline 100 mg bd for 7 days
- Topical miconazole cream

19. Pitted Keratolysis

- Caused by Kytococus sedentarius, Dermatophilus Congolensis and Corynebacterium spp
- Planter feet, web-space feet
- Defects in thickly keratinized skin,
- Have small holes in the top layer of skin
- With eroded pIt of variable depth
- Itchiness and smelly feet
- Hyperhidrosis –excessive sweating of feet
- Maceration
- Pain and itching while walking

Treatment

- 2.5% Benzoyl peroxide gel daily for 7 days
- Fusidic acid cream
- Topical erythromycin or clindamycin bd for 7 days
- Topical miconazole cream
- Tetracycline 250 mg qid for 7 days or
- Doxycycline 100 mg bd for 7 days

20. Nonspecific Intertrigo

- Non-specific inflammation of opposed skin (Infra-mammary regions, axillae, groins, gluteal folds, redundant skin fold of obese individual.
- Clinical feature
- Erythema ± symptoms of pruritus, tenderness or increased sensitivity, excluding infectious causes.
- Rule out infectious intertrigo; bacterial or fungi and dermatoses

Treatment

- Zinc oxide ointment
- Antifungal (e.g., clotrimazole powder) or antibacterial powders

https://healthjade.net/erythrasma/



https://www.medicalnewstoday.com/arti cles/326911
21. Lyme Disease

It is vector borne illness caused by infection with the spirochaetes of *Borrelia burgdorferi* and transmitted by the bite of genus *Ixodesscapularis* and related ticks.

- Occur in the forest area
- Start with Flu like symptoms
- A small erythematous macules or papule appear at the site of bite, annular lesion with central clearing or a roundish smooth erythematous patch look like a bull's eye with circles around the middle.
- Erythema migrans is an early sign of localized disease.
- The rash usually resolves in days to weeks, but may persist for years.
- Symptoms such as a rash, fever, headache and fatigue
- Disseminated lyme AV block, rheumatological and neurological manifestation

Treatment

- Doxycycline 100 mg bd for 21 days
- Amoxicillin or cefuroxime for pregnant woman and children.

22.Scrub Typhus

Scrub typhus, also known as bush typhus, is an acute, febrile, infectious illness disease caused by a bacteria called *Orientia tsutsugamushi*.

Scrub typhus is **spread to people through bites of infected chiggers** (larval mites). The most common symptoms include fever, headache, body aches, and sometimes rash

Symptoms of scrub typhus usually **begin** within 10 days of being bitten. Signs and symptoms may include:

- Fever and chills
- Headache
- Body aches and muscle pain
- A dark, scab-like region at the site of the chigger bite
- (also known as **eschar**)
- Mental changes, ranging from confusion to coma
- Enlarged lymph nodes
- Rash
- People with severe illness may develop organ failure and bleeding,
- which can be fatal If left untreated.
- Scrub typhus lasts for 14 to 21 days without treatment.

- Doxycycline (100 mg orally or intravenously twice daily) is the drug of choice for this illness.
- Azithromycin has been advocated as an alternative agent.



https://healingartsvalp o.com/lyme-disease-a nd-tick-borne-illness/



23. Acute Rheumatic Fever

- Acute rheumatic fever (ARF) is caused by a reaction to a bacterial_infection with particular strains of group **A <u>streptococcus</u>**. ARF only follows streptococcal pharyngitis (sore throat).
- It usually affects children aged 5–15 years.
- Fever
- Abdominal pain
- Muscle aches
- Polyarthritis (multiple inflamed joints)
- Carditis (inflammation of the heart)



https://www.orthobullets.combasicscience9045acute-rheumatic-fever.jpg

- Sydenham chorea
- Erythema marginatum rheumaticum This is a characteristic type of annular <u>erythema</u> that occurs in about 10% of first attacks of ARF in children.
- The rash appears as pink or red macules (flat spots) or papules (small lumps), which spread outwards in a circular shape
- Subcutaneous nodules (small lumps under the skin)

- Oral Penicillin V 250 mg tds for 10 days for acute fever
- Clindamycin 20 mg/kg/day for 3 divided dose for 10 days (If sensitive to Pen)
- Azithromycin 12 mg /kg/day for 5 days (If sensitive to Pen)
- Continuous Penicillin (Inj; Benzathine Pen G every 4 weeks for 10 years) is recommended for established rheumatic heart disease.

4. VIRAL INFECTION OF SKINS

1. Molluscum Contagiosum

- caused by Molluscum contagiosum virus
- Self-limited epidermal viral infection.
- Risk group include children, sexually active adult, immunocompromised, HIV/AIDS
- Presents as localized clusters of small rounded bumps (papules) especially in armpit, groin or behind knees
- Size from 1- 6 mm and may be white, pink or brown, often a waxy, pinkish look with a small **central pIt or umbilicated.**
- Spread skin to skin, sex is possible in adult
- Papules from row is known as koebnerized molluscum
- Direct microscopic exam; Giemsa stain central semisolid core reveals molluscum bodies (Inclusion body)

Treatment

- No specific treatment is necessary. Untreated lesions resolve spontaneously after 12-18 months.
- Soft white core can be squeezed out
- Antiseptics such as hydrogen peroxide cream or povidone iodine solution
- Cryotherapy, Minor surgery, Curettage
- 5% Imiquimod cream at bed time x 3-5 times x 1-3 months
- Wart paints containing salicylic acid or phodophyllin

2. Herpes *simplex* (Cold sores, Fever Blisters)

- It is caused by double strand **DNA herpes simplex virus.**
- Type 1 is associated with vesicular ulcerative oral and facial lesions and type 2 is the genital and rectal infection.
- Primary infection after the established in the nerve ganglion
- Secondary infection -recurrent disease at the same site
- Can spread by respiratory droplets, direct contact with an active lesion or virus containing fluid such as saliva or cervical secretions
- 3-7 days after the contact
- **Recurrent** Type 1 (HSV-1) can occur any site mostly on face and lips.
- Type 2 (HSV-2) can occur any site mostly effect on genital area.
- Clinical diagnosis is enough. If there is clinical doubt, do lab. Test.

Laboratory

- Tzanck smear from base of the vesicle, characteristic multinucleated giant cells
- Rapid Direct Florescent Antibody test
- PCR detect HSR DNA.
- Serology can perform for type 1 or 2.



https://step2.medbullets.com/dermatolo gy/120053/molluscum-contagiosum



https://stamfordskin.com/en/news/76 085-2/ https://newsnetwork. mayoclinic.org/discussion/mayo-clin ic-q-and-a-direct-contact-with-cold-s

Types

- Herpes simplex labialis is most common
- Herpetic whitlow (the finger tip)
- Herpes gladiatorum (athletes, wrestlers)

Treatment

- Symptomatic relief e.g., analgesic mouthwashes e.g., benzydamine
- If seen less than 48hours after onset, oral antivirals acyclovir 200 mg five times per day for 5 days. (or)
- Valaciclovir 500 mg twice daily for five days (or)
- Famciclovir as a single dose of 3 x 500 mg
- Recurrent 5% acyclovir 200 mg five times per day for 5 days If needed.

3. Eczema Herpeticum (Kaposi's Varicelliform Eruption)

- Associated with Atopic Dermatitis, HSV or Darier disease commonly seen in infants and children with <u>atopic dermatitis</u>.
- Most of the cases are due to HSV type 1 and 2
- Is a disseminated viral infection characterized by fever and clusters of itchy blister or punched-out erosions.
- Most cases, primary infection is herpes infection, this infection can spread rapidly over wide areas, may be camouflaged and heralded
- More common on corticosteroid treated skin
- Eczema herpeticum is also called Kaposi varicelliform eruption
- Lesions heal over 2-6 weeks.
- Can be diagnosed clinically with atopic dermatitis history.



https://perridermatology.com/viruses-e czema-herpeticum/

- Tetracaine (Cepacol Viractin) cream 1.8% can reduce the healing time of recurrent herpes labialis lesions by two days
- Abreva (Docosanol) also reduce the healing time herpes labialis lesions
- Topical acyclovir is not approved for use in core sore of immunocompetent patient
- Wet dressing with cold water decreases erythema
- Antibiotics for secondary bacterial infection.
- Consult an ophthalmologist when eye or eyelid involvement is suspected.
- Oral therapy is most effective when administered within 48 hours of the onset of sign
- Acyclovir
- Initial episode 200 mg 5 time for 7-10 days (or)
- Acyclovir 400 800 mg 3 time for 7-10 days
- Suppressive therapy, 400 mg bd for 1 year
- Fanciclovir
- Initial episode 250 mg 3 time for 7-10 days
- Recurrent, 125 mg bd for 5 days
- Suppressive therapy, 250 mg bd for 1 year OR
- Valacyclovir
- Initial episode 1000 mg bd for 7-10 days
- Recurrent, 500 mg bd for 3 days
- Suppressive therapy, 100 mg of for 1 year

4. Varicella (Chicken Pox)

- A highly contagious infection caused by the Varicella Zoster virus and results in lifelong immunity.
- Primary infection is caused by varicella zoster virus and sometime
- called human herpes virus type 3.
- Incubation period is 14-16 days
- The virus can be spread from person to person by direct contact,
- inhalation of aerosols from vesicular fluid of skin lesions of acute varicella or zoster, and possibly through infected respiratory secretions that also may be aerosolized
- Lesions are centripetal
- Patients are contagious from 2 days before the onset of the rash until all lesions have crusted.
- There is simultaneous presence of lesions (Vesicles, Pustules and crusts) in all stages
- The rash begins on the trunk and spreads to the face and
- extremities
- Crusts fall off in about 7 days and usually heal without scarring.
- Pneumonia is most common complication.
- Hepatitis is most common complication in immunocompromised patients.
- Bacterial superinfection with staphylococcus or streptococcus
- Ataxia, thrombocytopenia, associate with Reye syndrome, ocular involvement.
- Maternal infection during the first 20 weeks of gestation poses the Foetal Congenital Varicella Syndrome is 2%.
- The blisters clear up within one to three weeks but may leave a few scars. These are most often depressed (anetoderma), but they may be thickened (hypertrophic scars).
- Scarring is prominent when the lesions get infected with bacteria
- Vaccination is available for chickenpox and is highly recommended.

- Oral antihistamine and calamine lotion may help control excoriation
- Use bland anti-pruritus lotion
- Recommended that certain group at increased risk for moderate to severe varicella be considered for oral acyclovir or valacyclovir treatment.
- These high-risk groups include:
- Healthy people older than 12 years of age
- People with chronic cutaneous or pulmonary disorders
- People receiving long-term salicylate therapy
- People receiving short, intermittent, or aerosolized courses of corticosteroids
- For maximum benefit, oral acyclovir or valacyclovir therapy should be given within the first 24 hours after the varicella rash starts.
- Acyclovir (Oral)
- > 40 kg 800 mg 4 times for 5 days
- <40 kg 20 mg/kg per dose 4 times for 5 days
- Intravenous route for severe disease (e.g., disseminated VZV such as pneumonia, encephalitis, thrombocytopenia, severe hepatitis) and for varicella in immunocompromised patients.



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Chickenpox



https://www.clinicaladvisor.com/slidesho w/slides/varicella-zoster-virus/

- Adult 20 mg /kg x divided by 3 dose for 5 -7 days
- Children,>2 years 10 mg/kg/day for 3 time for 7-10 days

5. Herpes Zoster (Shingles)

- Herpes Zoster is a localised, blistering and painful rash of acute dermatomal infection associated with reactivation of Herpes Zoster virus or varicella virus.
- Following primary infection or vaccination VZV remains latent in the sensory dorsal root ganglion cells. The virus begins to replicate at some later time, when immunity to VZV decline, travelling down the sensory nerves into the skin.
- Affected on Thoracic region 55%, Cranial 20%, Lumbar region- 15%, Sacral 5%
- The first sign of herpes zoster is usually localised pain without tenderness or any visible skin change.
- Within one to three days of the onset of pain, a blistering rash appears in the painful area of skin. It starts as a crop of red papules. New lesions continue to erupt for several days within the distribution of the affected nerve,
- 3 clinical stage Prodromal, Active infection, chronic (post herpatic neuralgia)
- Prodromal stage neuropathic pain or paresthesia precedes for 2-3 weeks
- Acute vesiculation 3-5 days
- Crust formation days 2-3 weeks
- Post herpetic neuralgia -persistence or recurrence of pain more than a month after the onset of shingles
- Chronic or Post-herpetic neuralgia phase pain is burning or iceburning or shooting
- The first sign is pain, which may be severe, patient feels quite unwell with fever and headache. Lymph node often may enlarge
- Within 1-3 days of onset of fever, blistering rash appears in the painful area.
- It starts as a crop of closely grouped red bumps in a continuous and on the area of skin.
- Facial nerve palsy is most common
- In uncomplicated cases, recovery is complete within 2–3 weeks in children and young adults, and within 3–4 weeks in older patients.

Ophthalmic Zoster

- Involvement of any branch of the ophthalmic nerve is called herpes zoster ophthalmicus with zoster ophthalmic nerve, the rash extends from eye level to the vertex of the skull but does not cross the midline.
- Vesicles on the side or tip of the nose (Hutchinson's sign) are associated with most serious complication.
- Ramsay Hunt syndrome (herpes zoster oticus) occurs when a shingles outbreak affects the facial nerve near one of the ears. The two main signs and symptoms of Ramsay Hunt syndrome are: A painful red rash with fluid-filled blisters on, in and around one ear and facial weakness or paralysis on the same side as the affected ear



https://www.msdmanuals.com/home/mul timedia/image/shingles-rash-on-the-chest



https://www.hmpgloballearningnetwork. com/site/thederm/feature-story/treating-z oster-associated-pain-and-postherpetic-n euralgia

Investigation

- Tzank smear nonspecific for HSV and VZV formation of multinucleated giant cells to confirm diagnosis.
- Test is rapid but accuracy rate 60-90%, False positive rate 3-13%
- Direct Fluorescent Antibody method more accurate
- Viral culture, more difficult for HSV
- PCR most reliable method, more sensitive than Viral culture
- ELISA can test specific infection of HSV 1, HSV2 and VZV

Treatment

Goal of treatment

- Relieve constitutional symptoms,
- Minimize pain,
- Reduce viral shedding,
- Prevent secondary bacterial infection,
- Speed crusting of lesions and healing
- Ease physical, psychological and emotional discomfort
- Prevent dissemination or other complication

If seen the lesions less than 48hours after onset,

- oral -Acyclovir 800 mg po 4 times daily for 7-10 days (or)
- Valacyclovir 1000 mg tds for 7 days (or)
- Famciclovir 500 mg 3times daily for 7 days (or)
- Acyclovir resistant VZV Foscamet

Immunosuppressed patient – iv acyclovir and recombinant interferon alpha 2a to prevent dissemination of HZ

Supportive

- Bed rest
- Non-steroidal anti-inflammatory drug
- Suppression of pain -early control of pain is narcotic analgesic
- Gabapentin: 300 mg three times daily
- Tricyclic antidepressants such as sedation Doxepin 10-100 mg at bed time
- Inflammation and Infection
- Cool tap water wed dressing
- Dressing application of moist dressing
- Chronic pain Capsaicin cream 4 hourly
- Topical anesthetic such as EMLA or 5 % lidocaine, or nerve block to area of allodynia

Prevention

- VZV immunization
- Most effective in aged 60-69 years
- HZ in immunocompromised host
- May involve several contiguous dermatomes
- Have more extensive cutaneous necrosis
- Have wide hematogenous dissemination to mucocutaneous structures and viscera
- Symptoms of typical zoster, but the lesions may be more ulcerative, necrotic and may more severe.



https://www.aao.org/eyenet/article/herpe s-zoster-ophthalmicus-pearls



- Multidermatosomal zoster
- Visceral dissemination
- Associated with SIADH
- Persistent dermatomal infection, cutaneous or haematogenous
- In HIV/AIDS -acute retinal necrosis blindness (loss of vision)

6. Hand, Foot and Mouth Disease (HFMD)

- Usually caused by Coxsackie A 16 virus and other virus Enterovirus 71, CVA6, CVA5, A7
- Oral aphthae like lesion varies, irregularly distributed in oral cavity.
- The vesicle appears on the palms, soles dorsal aspect of fingers and toes, face, buttock and legs.
- Square blisters and small painful ulcers on throat and tonsil.
- Characterized by blisters on the hands, feet and in the mouth and other symptoms like fever, headache, sore throat and runny nose.
- Very infectious and epidermics are most common.
- Most often infects children under age of 10 and most are under 5 years of age.
- Sign and symptoms usually clear up in 7 to 10 days.
- There is no specific treatment. Give symptomatic.



https://www.fvhospital.com/learn-more/hand-foot-and-mouth-disease/ https://story.motherhood.com.my/blog/hfmd-treatments-prevention/ https://www.merckmanuals.com/en-pr/professional/infectious-diseases/enteroviru ses/hand-foot-and-mouth-disease-hfmd

7. Erythema infectiosum (Slapped Cheeks)

- Human parvovirus B19 or EVB 19
- Single stranded DNA virus and known as fifth disease
- Droplet aerosal
- Is a common childhood infection causing edematous erythematous plaques on the cheeks (slapped cheeks) and a rash.
- Erythematous lacy eruption on the trunk and extremities
- Erythematous macules with ring formation on the upper arm. Mostly
- mild childhood infection.



http://www.yogavanahill.com/slap-cheek

Treatment

• Symptomatic

8. Gianotti-Crosti Syndrome

• Also called papular acrodermatitis or infantile papular acrodermatitis or acrodermatitis papulose infantum. It is a rare skin disease.

Causal agents are -

- Virus EBV, CMV, HBV, HCV, HAV, HIV, Rota Virus,
- Adenovirus, Poliovirus, Poxvirus
- Bacteria Mycoplasma pneumonia, Borrelia burgdorferi
- Vaccine Influenza, Tetanus, Diphtheria
- 6 months to 12 years
- Exanthem- discrete, non-pruritus, erythematous, monomorphic papules
- Usually found on face, buttocks, arms or leg. The blisters consist of large, flat-topped, fluid filled sacks.
- The rash resolves over several weeks. The rash is self-limiting.

Treatment

• Symptomatic



- Also called WARTS.
- HPV DNA virus
- Subtype 150
- Local spread by autoinoculation
- Transmission by contact
- Type of warts
- Common warts HPV 2,4,7
- Planter warts HPV 1,4 (Verrucas)
- Genital Warts HPV-1,2,6,10.11.16.18.31. 32.33.34
- Genital Human Papilloma Virus subtype 16, 18 and 31 are risk subtypes
- account for 75% of invasive Ca
- Butcher's wart common in butchers, meat packers and fish handlers
- Mucosal wart condyloma acuminatum (Genital warts)





https://www.pcds.org.uk/clinical-guidance /gianotti-crosti-syndrome-syn-papular-acr odermatitis-of-childhood



https://www.healthline.com/health/skin/wart



https://quizlet.com/553146266/27-human-pa

- Flesh colour papules evolve into dome shaped, gray to brown, hyperkeratotic discrete and rough papules, often with black dots on the surface
- Black dots are thrombosed capillaries
- Common site are hands, periungual skin, elbows, knees and planter surface
- Filiform warts are growths with finger like fresh colour projections
- Common warts (Verruca Vulgaris)
- Firm papules, red or brown dots
- Linear arrangement
- Annular warts
- Planter warts- Kissing warts, Verruca plana

Treatment

- Small lesion -10-20% salicylic acid and lactic acid in collodion
- Large lesion 40% salicylic acid plaster for 1 week, then application of salicylic acid and lactic acid in collodion
- Podophyllin apply once a day for 3 days a week for 2 weeks
- 5% Imiquimod cream-3 time per week for 6-12 weeks
- Cryosurgery
- Electrosurgery (curettage and cautery)
- Ablative laser
- Surgery
- Vaccine against HPV are available to prevent anogenital warts.

10. Rubella (German measles)

- Rubella virus, an RNA togavirus
- A viral infection of children and adult
- Characteristic exanthema and lymphadenopathy and fever
- Pink papule, macules initially on forehead, spreading to face, trunk and extremities.
- By second day, facial exanthems fade. By third day, exanthems fade complete without residual pigmentary changes.
- Infection to pregnant mother may result in the congenital rubella syndrome with serious chronic fatal infection and malformation.
- Characters of childhood congenital rubella syndrome are congenital heart defects, cataracts, microphthalmia, microcephaly, hydrocephaly and deafness.
- Rubella is part of TORCH complex.
- Childhood immunization is highly effective for prevention of infection.
- MMR vaccine among preschool children
- There is no specific treatment.



http://medwarts.com/warts-on-face-all-possible-locati ons-their-causes-and-effective-treatment/



https://www.aafp.org/pubs/afp/issues/2014/0 901/p312.html



https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/rubella/



https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/rubella/

11. Measles

- Caused by measles virus, RNA virus. It is a notifiable disease.
- Droplet aerosol. I.P is 7 14 days.
- A highly contagious childhood viral infection, characterized by fever, coryza cough, an exanthema, conjunctivitis, koplik spots.
- Fever, malaise, upper respiratory tract infection, photophobia, conjunctivitis.
- On fourth febrile day, erythematous macules and papules appear on the forehead at hairline, behind ears, spread centrifugally and inferiorly to involve the face and trunk, extremities, palm and sore reaching the feet by third day. Initial lesions become confluent on face, neck and shoulder.
- Lesions gradually fade in order of appearance and exanthema resolves in 4-6 days.
- There is no specific treatment for measles. Supportive and symptomatic.
- MMR vaccine among preschool children



httpswww.cdc.govmeaslessymptom sphotos.html

12. DHF

- Flavivirus infection (DENV 1- 4)
- Transmitted by bite of Aedes mosquito. I.P 4 -10 days
- Classical fever- arthralgia-rash syndrome with abrupt onset of fever and muscle and joint pain usually with retro-orbital pain, photophobia and lymphadenopathy.
- DHF characterized by high fever, haemorrhagic phenomena and often hepatomegaly.
- DSS with circulatory failure, can be fatal.
- Initial rash 1-2 days after onset of symptoms, erythema/flashing of face, neck and chest. Later rash 4-7 days after onset of symptoms; morbiliform eruption beginning on trunk, spreading to extremities and face in uncomplicated dengue, lasting for 1-5 days, petichiae, island of sparing (White islands in sea of red).
- Mucosal lesions- conjunctival, epistasis, bleeding gums, nose, GI tract.

Dengue fever with warning signs:

- Abdominal pain or tenderness
- Persisting vomiting
- Mucosal bleeding (from nose and gum)
- Lethargy (somnolence or restlessness) Hepatomegaly
- Increase haematocrIt (a feature of fluid loss)
- Thrombocytopenia (low platelet count)
- Pleural or peritoneal effusion (fluid in the lining of the lungs or abdominal organs)

Severe dengue

- Dengue fever plus at least one of the following
- Kidney failure
- Acute pulmonary oedema
- Shock feature
- Severe bleeding



https://www.bansalglobalhospital.com/de ngue-hemorrhagic-fever-sign-and-causes/

- Heart failure AST or ALT > 1000 IU
- Altered consciousness level

Diagnosis

- The presence of IgM against dengue virus (IgM is an antibody produce in acute infection)
- The increase in IgG titres against dengue virus in two different blood samples.(IgG is an antibody produced when the person has been infected before.)

Treatment

• Symptomatic

13. Monkey Pox

- Monkeypox is a rare disease that is caused by infection with monkeypox virus. Monkeypox virus belongs to the *Orthopoxvirus* genus in the family *Poxviridae*.
- The natural reservoir of monkeypox remains unknown.
- The symptoms of monkeypox are similar to but milder than the symptoms of smallpox.
- Monkeypox begins with fever, headache, muscle aches, and exhaustion, swollen lymph nodes and chills.
- Incubation Period is 7–14 days, range from 5–21 days.
- Virus can spread in direct contact with the virus from an infected animal, infected person, or materials contaminated with the virus.
- The virus can also cross the placenta from the mother to her fetus.
- It also can be spread by respiratory secretions during prolonged, face-to-face contact.
- Monkeypox virus have a <u>mild</u>, <u>self-limiting disease course</u> in the absence of specific therapy.
- The illness typically lasts for 2–4 weeks.
- People with severe disease (e.g., hemorrhagic disease, confluent lesions, sepsis, encephalitis, or other conditions required hospitalization)

Antiviral Medication

- Tecovirimat (also known as TPOXX)
- Cidofovir (also known as Vistide)
- Brincidofovir (also known as Tembexa)



https://island.lk/us-cdc-suspects-monkeyp ox-virus-to-be-airborne-advises-public-to -wear-masks/

Prevention

- Avoid contact with animals that could harbor the virus (including animals that are sick or that have been found dead in areas where monkeypox occurs).
- Avoid contact with any materials, such as bedding, that has been in contact with a sick animal.
- Isolate infected patients from others who could be at risk for infection.
- Practice good hand hygiene after contact with infected animals or humans.
- E.g., washing your hands with soap and water or using an alcohol-based hand sanitizer.
- Use personal protective equipment (PPE) when caring for patients.

5. ARTHROPOD INSECT BITES AND CUTANEOUS INFECTIONS

1. Scabies

Is a parasitic infestation of the skin caused by mite Sarcoptes scabiei Intensely pruritic eruption and may be the seven years itch. Skin to skin contact; fomites

Manifestation

Generalized intractable pruritus especially at night and a pimple like (popular) itch rash is most common symptom.

Often minimal cutaneous finding. Burrows under stratum corneum, scabetic nodule, eczematous dermatitis

Burrows found in finger webs, wrists, side of the hands and feet, lateral fingers and toes and genitalia including gland penis, buttocks and scortum.

Scabies rash cause little bumps that often form a line. The bumps look like hives, tiny bites, knots under the skin, or pimple.

Scratching the itchy rash can cause sores. Crusts form in severe type. A common sign of crusted scabies is widespread crusts on the skin. Crusted form scabies is called Norwegian scabies.

Classical scabies

a dozen of female mite but crusted scabies or Norwegian scabies-> 1 million mites may be present or up to 4700 mites/g skin, associated with HIV/AIDS.

Nodular scabies develops in 7-10 % of patient

Pruritus is Id or Auto sensitization type reaction.

Mineral oil applied to burrow, vesicles and papules to preserve the mite feces.

Investigation

by KOH and Heat, and Ink test

- Antihistamine to control itch
- 5% Permethrin cream applied to all areas of the body from the body from neck to down.
- Wash after 8-12 hour after application.
- 10% and 25% Benzyl benzoate lotion- swabbing only once; two applications separated by 10 min or two applications with a 24 hour
- Benzyl benzoate with sulfiram
- 0.5% Malathion lotion is used If permethrin is ineffective



https://my.clevelandclinic.org/health/di seases/4567-scabies



https://step2.medbullets.com/dermatolog y/120061/scabies



https://www.cmaj.ca/content/181/5/289



- 10% Crotamiton cream applied thinly to the entire body
- Lindanel % (gumma benzene hexachloride) lotion is effective m most area but resistance reported and Seizures and Aplastic anaemia had reported. Lindane should be avoided because of CNS toxicity.
- Systemic Ivermectin (Stromectol 6 mg scored tablets) 200µg /kg PO single dose, two to three doses separated by 1-2 weeks usually required for heavy infection or Norwegian Scabies.
- Caution for elderly patients.
- Need to repeat the treatment 1 week later
- Everyone in the home needs to be treated at the same time, even If they do not have symptoms
- Anyone that have had sexual contact with in the 8 weeks should be treated.
- Wash all bedding and clothing in the house on the first day of treatment
- Put the clothing that cannot be washed in a sealed bag for 3 days until the mite die.
- Do not share bedding, clothing or towels with someone with scabies.

2. Lice (Pediculosis)

- Lice are small wingless insects that infest the hair of the scalp, body and pubic region
- Lice attach to the skin and feed on blood. They lay eggs or nits on hair shafts.
- Head lice- Pediculus capitis
- Body lice Pediculus corporis
- Pubic lice Phthirus pubics
- It is highly contagious, direct contact is the primary source of transmission
- Lice have a blood meal every 3-6 hours
- They live for about 1 month
- Female lays 7-10 eggs a day
- Nits are small white eggs firmly cemented to the hair shafts.
- Red-brown spots on the skin are due to excreted digested blood.
- Infestation mild itch
- Scratching can cause crusting and scale on the scalp.

Treatment

- Physical methods comb down the hair shaft towards the scalp.
- *NIt combs used in wet hair are effective way.*
- The most commonly used for topical insecticides for head lice is 0.5% malathion.
- 1% Permethrin rinse, rinse out in 10 min. Additional, 1-2 treatment per week is also required.
- Synergized Permethrin cream and shampoo, 2-3 treatment a week.
- 5% Permethrin for treatment failure.
- 0.5% Malathion lotion is rapidly pediculicidal and ovicidal, lotion applied for 8-12 hours
- For Head lice -web combing
- Pubic lice Shaving and Lindane should be applied
- Systemic Ivermectin (Stromectol 6 mg scored tablets) 200 µg/Kg PO single. For adult 12 mg as a single dose and can repeated in 10 days.

3. Cutaneous Larva Migrans (Creeping Eruption)

Is a parasitic skin infection caused by hookworm larvae. Human can be infested with the larvae by walking barefoot. Common type of hookworms by *Ancylostoma braziliense*



https://www.marksimonianmd.com/lice

Clinical features

A non-specific eruption occurs at the site of penetration A serpiginous red to purple lesion with a 3 mm wide tract Commonly affected in feet, web spaces, hand, knee and buttocks Itching to moderate to intense Worm migrates about 2 cm daily Loeffler syndrome is a possible complication

Treatment

- Albendazole 400mg | day or 200 mg bd for 3 days
- Ivermectin 200 µg/kg (12 mg) single dose
- Thiabendazole orally 50 mg /kg/d in two divided dose for 2-5 days
- Thiabendazole 15% in liquid or cream applied topically tds for 5 days
- Antihistamine and topical corticosteroids to relief itch.

Prevention

• It is a key and involves avoidance of direct skin contact with faecally contaminated soil.



https://benthamopen.com/FULLTEXT/TODJ-1 4-1/FIGURE/F1/ https://www.dermcoll.edu.au/atoz/cutaneous-la rva-migrans/

6. INSECT BITES AND STINGS

1. Bee and Wasp Stings

- Honey bees can cause severe allergic reaction
- Localized or systemic allergic reaction may develop.
- Allergic anaphylactic reaction involved itching, hives, shortness of breath, wheezing, nausea and abdominal cramps. It can occur within minutes to hours.
- Fatal in hypersensitivity person.
- Delayed onset up to one week.
- Multiple stings can cause death. The medium lethal dose of bee venom is 500-1500 stings.



https://www.westernexterminator.com/blog/mythbusters-allergi c-to-bee-stings-and-wasp-stings/

Treatment

- For ordinary bee stings that do not cause allergic reaction- need home treatment
- Multiple stings or allergic reaction, can be medical emergency that require immediate treatment.
- Remove the stinger, remove It by scraping over It with fingernail or a piece of gauze.
- Apply Ice and Cold pack
- An antihistamine e.g., Benadryl 25-50 mg Oral or IM
- Severe generalized reactions are treated with Epinephrine (Adrenalin) 1:1000 (0.3-0.5 ml) SC, 20 min interval is needed.
- If hypotensive IV 1:10000 dilution of epinephrine can used.
- Inj: Adrenalin
- Oxygen
- EpiPen (Bee sting kits -If available)

2. Flea Bites

- Fleas are tiny red brown hard body's wingless insects but have 3 pairs of leg that are capable of jumping 60 cm.
- Main symptom of flea bite is intense itching
- Red to purpuric papules sometime central blister
- Persistent scratching

Treatment

- Oral antihistamine
- Anti-pruritus lotion e.g., Sama
- Mild to moderate steroid cream
- Anaphylaxis has not been reported.



https://pestseek.com/how-to-get-rid-of-flea-bites/

3. Fire Ant Stings

- Are wingless Hymenoptera species
- Main symptoms are pain, itching, hive, pimples, swelling
- Initially burning and sharp pain occur at the site of sting. A single ant can inflict multiple stings
- A systemic allergic reaction can occur, occasionally resulting death from anaphylactic shock

Clinical features

- Skin finding two pinpoint red papules (the bite) Surrounded by a ring of pustules (the sting)
- Edema and itching are accompanied by a wheal of 5-10 mm

- Cool wet dressing
- Topical anti-pruritus cream Sama lotion
- 1% Hydrocotisone cream
- Pain medication paracetamol
- Oral antihistamine -Benadryl
- Short course of Prednisolone
- •





https://www.pinterest.com.mx/pin/ 424956914831026465/ https://plasticsurgerykey.com/bites -and-stings-4/

7. FUNGAL INFECTIONS

- Dermatophytes infection which include Trichophyton, Epidermophyton and Microsporum species occur 90% fungal infection of hair, nails, and skin.
- Less frequently superficial skin infections are caused by nondermatophyte fungi e.g., Candida species and Malassezia furfur or pityrisporum ovalae, they cause normal skin.
- Deeper chronic cutaneous fungi infections can occur after cutaneous inoculation of Mycetoma, Chromomycosis, and Sporotrichosis species.
- Systemic fungal infection mostly occurred in immunocompromised host.

DERMATOPHYTOSES OF EPIDERMIS

1. Tinea Pedis

• Dermatophytic infection of the feet. It is also called athlete's foot.



https://www.semanticscholar.org/paper/Foot-bacterial-intertrigo-mimicking-interdigital-Lin-Shih/4f9cd9c992931229ffc580f58 541e1a28a170d9a https://www.durbanskindoctor.co.za/services/tinea-pedis-fugal-infections-of-the-foot/, https://healthjade.net/tinea-pedis/

Causal organism -

Trichophyton rubrum, T. interdigitale and Epidermophy floccosum

Types

- (a) Interdigital tinea pedis (toe web infection) dry, scale and fissure, white, macerated and soggy
- (b) Chronic scaly infection of the planter surface- often present with dry silvery white scaling surface
- (c) Acute vesicular tinea pedis the burning and itching that accompany the formation of the vesicle

Clinical finding -

Tinea of feet may present with the classical ringworm pattern nut most infection is found in the toe webs or on the sole.

Itchy erosions and/or scales between the toes, especially between 4th and 5th toes

Scale covering the sole and sides of the feet (hyperkeratotic/moccasin type)

Small to medium-sized blisters, usually affecting the inner aspect of the foot (vesiculobullous type).

uncommonly cause oozing and ulceration between the toes (ulcerative type), or pustules asymmetrical, and may be unilateral

Erythema, scaling, maceration and or bulla formation

Itching is most intense; skin is pink and tender

Laboratory

Diagnosis is mainly by clinically

Potassium hydroxide wet mount (KOH) (10%-20%)

Dermatophyte appears as translucent, branching, rod shape filaments (hyphae) of uniform width with line of separation (septa) spanning with and appearing at irregular intervals.

Treatment

- Terbinafine cream or Econazole cream bd for 2- 4 weeks
- For acute or extensive lesions
- Terbinafine250 mg / day for 14 days orally or
- Itraconazole 200 mg / bd for 7days OR 200 mg /day for 14days or
- Fluconazole 150-200 mg I daily for 4-6 weeks
- Antibiotic for bacterial infection and cool wet dressing, sock change
- Patients with the hyperkeratotic variant of tinea pedis may benefIt from the addition of a topical keratolytic cream containing salicylic acid or urea

Prophylaxis

• Daily washing of feet while bathing with benzoyl peroxide or antifungal powder or alcohol gels.

2. Tinea of the Groin (Tinea Cruris, Jock Itch)

- Subacute or chronic dermatosis of the groin, pubic regions and thighs.
- Always associated with tinea pedis, the source of infection.
- Male > female.
- Itching becomes worse as moisture accumulate.
- Predisposing factors
- warm, humid environment, obesity and steroid therapy.

Etiology

- T rubrum, T mentagrophytes.
- Predisposing factors for tinea cruris include:
- Longstanding tinea pedis
- Previous episodes of tinea cruris
- Occlusive clothing
- Obesity
- Excessive sweating (hyperhidrosis)
- Diabetes mellitus
- Topical steroid use.

Symptoms

- Often bilateral, begins in the crural fold.
- A half -moon shaped plaque forms with well-defined scaling and sometime a vascular border advanced out of the crural fold onto the thigh.
- Ringworm pattern of infection with multiple round superficial plaques with scaling borders.
- The entire surface of the lesions is dry and scaling.





https://nursingfile.com/nursing-careplan/nursing-interventions/ nursing-interventions-for-tinea-cruris .html

- Acute tinea cruris may present as a moist and exudative rash.
- Chronic tinea cruris presents as a large well-demarcated scaly plaque with a raised border and central clearing.
- Scale is most prominent at the leading edge of the plaque.
- Tinea cruris is usually itchy.
- Involvement of scrotum is unusual. Rarely involve scortum and penis.
- Distribution groins and thighs may extend to buttock.

Treatment

- General and preventative measures
 - Careful toweling after washing to avoid transfer of fungi from the feet
 - Loose fitting clothing
 - Treatment of triggers such as hyperhidrosis or obesity
 - Topical antifungal powder after bathing
- Specific
 - Terbinafine cream or Econazole cream bd for 2-4 week
 - Terbinafine 250 mg / day for 14 days or
 - Itraconazole 200 mg / bd for 7 days or 200 mg /day for 14 days or
 - Fluconazole 150-200 mg | daily for 4-6 weeks
 - Antibiotic for bacterial infection.
 - Absorbent powders help to control moisture and prevention and reinfection.

3. Tinea of the Body (Tinea Corporis) (Tinea circinata)

- Etiology T. rubrum most commonly, M canis, T. tonsurans
- Transmission autoinoculation from other part of the body
- e.g., T. pedis, T. capatis

Skin lesion

- Lesions varying in size, degree of inflammation and depth of involvement.
- There are two general clinical patterns round annular lesions (Classical ring worm and deep inflammatory lesions).

Classical ringworm

- Lesions begin as flat, scaly papules which slowly develop a raised border that extends at variable rates in children
- Advancing, scaly border may have red raised papules and vesicles
- The central area becomes brown or hypo pigmented and less scaly
- as active border progress outward
- Red papules may occur in the central area
- Several annular lesions may enlarge to cover large areas of the body surface
- It is commonly called 'ringworm' as It presents with characteristic
- ring-shaped lesions.
- Larger lesions tend to be mildly itchy or asymptomatic







Deep inflammatory lesions

- The round, intensely inflamed lesion has a uniformly elevated, red, boggy, pustular surface
- The pustules are follicular and represent deep penetration of fungus into the hair follicle
- Secondary infection can occur such as *Staphylococcus aureus*
- Majocchi's granuloma is a deep fungal infection of the hair follicle, typically occurring on the lower legs, more often in women, shaving and superficial trauma are believed to play a role.
- Tinea corporis initially presents as a solitary circular red patch with a raised scaly leading edge.
- A lesion spreads out from the centre forming a ring-shape with central hypopigmentation and a peripheral scaly red rim (ringworm).
- The border can be papular or pustular.
- Itch is common.

Medical risk factors

- Previous or concurrent tinea infection
- Diabetes mellitus
- Immunodeficiency
- Hyperhidrosis
- Xerosis
- Ichthyosis

Course and prognosis

- With treatment the scale resolves before the erythema fades.
- Post inflammatory depigmentation blends away over several months
- Reinfection is common

Diagnosis

- Diagnosis is mainly by clinically
- Potassium hydroxide wet mount (KOH) (10%-20%) with skin scrapings taken from the scaly lesion edge
- Dermoscopy may assist the clinical diagnosis

Treatment

- Antifungal cream clotrimazole or econazole or miconazole, or Terbinafine cream bd for 2 weeks
- Continue treatment at least one week after resolution of the infection
- Extensive lesions or those with red papules require oral therapy.
- Terbinafine 250 mg /day for 2-4 week or
- Itraconazole 100 mg /day for 15 days
- Fluconazole 150-300 mg /week for 4 weeks
- Antibiotic for bacterial infection.
- Short course of prednisone considered for highly inflamed lesions.

Tinea of Hands (Tinea manuum)

- A fungal infection of the hand
- Children are rarely affected
- May be insidious and progress slowly
- Itching is moderate, minimal or absent

- UNILATERAL, mostly common on the dominant hand
- Usually associated with tinea pedis
- Tinea involving the dorsal hand has all of the feature of classical ringworm lesions of the body
- A raised, red, scaly advancing border is typical.
- Papules or vesicles may be present at the border or in the
- Well demarcated scaling patches and scaling confirm to palmar crease, fissures on the hand.
- *Tinea manuum* causes a slowly extending area of peeling, dryness and mild itching on the palm of one hand (hyperkeratotic tinea). Skin markings may be increased
- Hyperkeratotic tinea of the palms may be unaware of the infection
- Erythema and scaling of the right hand, which was associated with bilateral tinea pedum;
- "ONE HAND, TWO FEET" syndrome distribution is typical epidermal dermatophytosis.

Complications

- Spread of the fungal infection to other skin sites
- Spread of the fungal infection to others



https://www.facebook.com/GLUQUINE EZ/posts/tinea-manuum -is-a-fungal-infection-of-the-hands-tin ea-an/624428371296727/

Treatment

- Antifungal cream ketoconazole 2% cream, or clotrimazole 1 % cream, or econazole 1% cream, or miconazole 2% cream, or terbinafine cream bd for 2 weeks
- Continue treatment at least one week after resolution of the infection
- Extensive lesions or those with red papules require oral therapy.
- Terbinafine250 mg /day for 14 days or
- Itraconazole 200 mg /day for 7 days
- Fluconazole 150 mg 200 mg/days for 2- 4 weeks
- Antibiotic for bacterial infection.

Prophylaxis

• Daily washing of hand while bathing with benzoyl peroxide or antifungal powder or alcohol gels.

Tinea incongnito

- It is a localized cutaneous fungal infection, of the groin, pubic region and thighs, scortum and penis rarely involved.
- Cortisone cream applied to cutaneous fungal lesions alter the usual clinical presentation.
- Trichophyton rubrum is the most common organism
- The clinical appearance has been altered by inappropriate treatment, usually a topical steroid cream.
- The result is that the original infection slowly extends
- Always associated with tinea pedis
- The alter clinical picture is called tinea incongnito.
- Large scale, well demarcated dull red / tan brown plaques.
- It is a localized cutaneous fungal infection.

- The appearance of which has been altered by application of topical corticosteroid leading to atypical eruption.
- Commonly seen in groin, face and dorsal aspect of the hand.
- Scaling at the margin may be absent. Is less scaly.
- Diffuse erythema, diffuse scale, scattered pustules and brown hyperpigmentation may result.
- Has a less raised margin, and more extensive and more pustular
- No well define border and more irritable
- It is also known as steroid-modified tinea.
- Tinea incognita can also be caused by systemic steroids.

Treatment

- Discontinue Topical Steroid
- Antifungal cream ketoconazole 2% cream, or clotrimazole 1% cream, or econazole 1% cream, or miconazole 2% cream, or terbinafine cream bd for 2 weeks
- Continue treatment at least one week after resolution of the infection
- Extensive lesions or those with red papules require oral therapy.
- Terbinafine250 mg /day for 2 week or
- Itraconazole 100 mg /day for 15 days
- Fluconazole 150-300mg /week for 4 weeks
- Antibiotic for bacterial infection.

Tinea faciei/Tinea facialis

- Dermatophytosis of the glabrous facial skin.
- Well circumscribed macule to plaque or erythematous patch.
- It may be acute or chronic
- Of variable size: elevated border and central regressions
- Etiology Tinea tonsurans
- There are round or oval red scaly patches, often less red and scaly in the middle or healed in the middle.
- Symptoms -mostly asymptomatic
- Scaling minimal
- Pink to red colour
- In black patient, it is hyperpigmentation

Treatment – the SAME as other Tineas











https://perridermatology.com/fungu s-tinea-faciei/ https://plasticsurgerykey.com/diseas es-resulting-from-fungi-and-yeasts/

8. DERMATOPHYTOSIS OF HAIR

Dermatophytes are capable of invading hair follicles and hair shaft causing dermatophytic trichomycosis, such as

- Dermatophytic folliculitis
- Tinea capitis
- Tinea barbae
- Majochi granuloma

Dermatophytic folliculitis

Ectothrix - mycelia and arthroconidia are seen on the surface of the hair follicle. Endothrix type - hyphae and arthroconidia occur within the hair shaft.

Tinea Capitis

Dermatophytic trichomycosis of the scalp.

Tinea capitis is a fungal infection of the scalp, involving both the skin and hair.

Clinical presentation may

Non inflammatory of the scaling, scaling and broken off hairs

- Grey patch:
- Black dot
- Diffuse scale: severe painful inflammatory with painful, boggy nodules that drain pus and result of scarring alopecia.
- Diffuse pustular
- Kerion
- Favus

Etiology

Trichophyton tonsurans (90% of cases), less common – M. canis

Transmission

Person to person via fomite Animal to person Spores are present on asymptomatic carrier

Skin Finding

Four clinical patterns

- Seborrheic dermatitis type
- Inflammatory tinea capitis (KERION)
- Black dot pattern
- Pustular type







https://www.researchgate.net/figure/ Grey-patch-type-of-Tinea-capitis-with-Tinea-facieii_fig3_235729586

Seborrheic dermatitis type

The most common type resembles seborrheic dermatitis There is diffuse, or patchy, fine white adherent scale on the scalp. KOH test often negative

Inflammatory tinea capitis (KERION)

One or many Painful, inflammatory, purulent, boggy, nodules and plaque tender areas Caused by - T.verrucosum, T, mentagrophytes, M. canis Extremely painful, drains pus from multiple opening like honeycomb Scaring alopecia may occur Fever, occipital adenopathy and leucocytosis may occur Hair do not break off but hair fall off, can be pull without pain Involvement of entire skull Heal with scarring alopecia.

Black dot pattern

Uncommon

Large areas of alopecia are present

Broken off hairs near surface give appearance of DOT in dark hair patients.

DOTs occur as affected hair breaks at surface of scalp. Tends to be diffuse and poorly circumscribed.

Trichophyton tonsurans and T.violaceum isolated

Grey patch tinea capitis, partial alopecia, often circular in shape, showing numerous broken off hairs dull grey form

Pustular type

There are pustules or scabbed area without scaling or significant hair loss.

Tinea capitis favus - Extensive hair loss with atrophy, scaring and so called scutullae.

Grey yellowish adherent crusts present on the scalp remaining hairs pierce the scutula.

Usually T.schoenleinii was isolated.

Laboratory

Wood lamp - bright green hair shaft by M. canis and M. audouinii

No fluorescent - T.tansurans

Dermoscopy- findings characteristic of tinea capitis with a high predictive value but not seen in every case

Fungal culture - dermatophytes can be cultured



https://dermnetnz.org/topics/tineacapitis https://dermnetnz.org/topics/woodlamp-skin-examination

Treatment

- Shampoo with selenium sulphite 1% or ketoconazole 2% every other day
- Topical antifungal is INEFFECTIVE in Tinea capitis.
- Base line Liver function is needed.
- Terbinafine, itraconazole, and fluconazole are at least as effective as griseofulvin for trichophyton infections

For Childern

- Itraconazole 5 mg/kg/day east 6 weeks to several weeks
- Ultramicrosized 10 mg /kg | day

For Adult

(Gray patch Tinea Capitis)

• Terbinafine, itraconazole, and fluconazole are at least as effective as griseofulvin for trichophyton infections 6 weeks

Black Dot Tinea Capitis

• Terbinafine, itraconazole, and fluconazole are at least as effective as griseofulvin for trichophyton infections 6 weeks or longer period

KERION

- Terbinafine 250 mg /day for 4 week or according to weight in children
- Itraconazole 100 mg /day for 6-8 weeks, (Paediatric dose 5 mg/kg/day or Adult 200 mg /day)
- Fluconazole 100 mg or 150 mg per day 6-week (Paediatric dose) 6mg/Kg/day for 2-4 weeks or Adult 200mg /day
- Ketoconazole (Paediatric dose 5mg /Kg /day for 4-6 weeks or Adult 200mg 400 mg/day for 4-6 weeks)
- Adjunctive therapy prednisolone 1 mg/kg/day for 14 days for children for kerion.
- Antibiotic for bacterial infection.

Tinea barbae

Dermatophytic trichomycosis by *T. verrucosum or T. mentagrophytes var. equinum* involving the beard and moustache areas.

Ring worm pattern and follicular pattern

Ring worm pattern – resembles the annular plaques of tinea corporis with sharp define border

It is usually very inflamed with red lumpy areas, pustules and crusting around the hairs

Follicular pattern - deep follicular infection resembles bacterial folliculitis.



https://quizlet.com/220415924/tinea -barbae-flash-cards/

- Terbinafine 250 mg daily for 2-4 weeks or
- Itraconazole 200mg every day for 2-4 week
- Fluconazole 150 mg once a week for 3 4 week.

Tinea Versicolor or Priasisity Versicolor

It is a common yeast infection of the skin, in which flaky discoloured patches appear on the chest and back.

Etiology - Malassezia furfur (*Pityrosporumovale, P.orbiculare*) It is part of normal skin flora

E-----

Excessive heat and humidity predispose to infection

Oily skin

Immune deficiency

Corticosteroid treatment

The white or hypopigmented type of pityriasis versicolor is thought to be due to a chemical produced by malassezia that diffuses into the epidermis and impairs the function of the melanocytes.

The pink type is mildly inflamed, due to dermatitis induced by Malassezia or its metabolites

Skin finding

Numerous small, circular, white, scaling papules on the upper trunk. May extend to involve the upper arms, neck and abdomen.

Facial involvement is more common

Powdery scale

usually asymptomatic, but in some people, It is mildly itchy.

Lesions are hypo pigmented in tanned skin and pink or brown color in untanned skin.

Colour is uniform in each person

Wood light examination shows hypo pigmented areas of infection and a faint yellow green florescence.

Laboratory

Dermoscopy of pityriasis versicolor — pallor, background faint pigment network, and scale. Wood lamp (black light) examination — yellow-green fluorescence may be observed in affected areas KOH examination- The scale shows numerous hyphae that tend to break into short, rod shape fragment intermixed with round spores in grape like cluster called SPAGHETTI and MEATBALL.

Differential Diagnosis

Vitiligo, Guttate psoriasis Post inflammatory following nummular eczema, or pityriasis rosea

- Topical agents
- Mild case
- Topical medications are considered the first-line therapy for pityriasis versicolor.
- Selenium sulphite 2.5% lotion or shampoo applied daily for 10-15 min followed by shower for 1 week. or Ketoconazole shampoo







- Ketoconazole is the most common topical treatment used to treat pityriasis versicolor. cream or econazole cream or miconazole or ciclopirox olamine 1%, clotrimazole cream applied daily bd for 2 weeks. or
- Terbinafine 1 % solution bd for 7 days.
- Systemic therapy
- Oral medications are viewed as a second-line of treatment for pityriasis versicolor in the event of widespread, severe.
- Itraconazole 400 mg stat or and 200mg od for 7 days or
- Fluconazole 400 mg stat or and 150 mg or 300mg per week for two -four weeks.
- Oral terbinafine is not effective in the treatment of pityriasis versicolor.
- Oral Ketoconazole no longer approved due to its potential hepatotoxic side effects.

Prophylaxis

- It is commonly recurrent superficial fungal infection of the skin. The patients need effective follow-up care to implement a relapse prevention strategy.
- Ketoconazole shampoo once or twice a week or 2.5% Selenium sulphite
- Oral Itraconazole is also used for prophylaxis of recurrences

CANDIASIS (Moniliasis)

Etiology -

candida albicans (Yeast) is most common organism Other C. parapsilosis, glabrata, C. tropicalis C. parapsilosis The organisms lived among the normal flora of the mouth, vagina tract and lower gastrointestinal tract. Superficial infection Disseminated candidemia in immunocompetent patients. With balanitis Candida can transmIt from sexual partners. o

Host factor -

Immunocompromised patient such as HIV, D.M, Cushing syndrome Obesity Hyperhydrosis Systemic and topical corticosteroid General debility e.g, from cancer or malnutrition Underlying skin diseases e.g., Psoriasis, lichen planus

Skin finding

The yeast infects outer layers of the epithelium of mucus membrane and skin

Primary lesion is pustule and peel It away

Erythematous papules with a few pustules becoming confluent on the media thigh. Small peripheral satellite papules and pustules that have become confluent, creating large erode area Tender pinpoint red papules and pustules

Laboratory

KOH preparation - budding yeast forms and sausage likes pseudo hyphal forms.

- Keep inter trigonous area dry
- Washing with benzyl peroxide bar may reduce Candida colonization
- Power with imidazole applied daily
- Topical Castellani paint immediate relief of symptoms
- Glucocorticoid preparation judicious short-term use speed up resolution of symptoms.
- Topical antifungal cream -nystatan, imidazole cream
- Oral antifungal agents nystatan
- Fluconazole 200 mg po once followed by 100 mg/d for 2-3 weeks
- Increase 400-800 mg in resistant infection.
- Itraconazole 100 mg po, od or bd for 2 weeks. Can increase in resistance case.









- Ketoconazole 200 mg po, od or bd for 1-2 weeks
- Clotrimazole oral tablet (lozenges) 10 mg, one tablet 3 time daily may be effective.

Oral candidiasis or Thrush

Predisposing factors

Infancy, old age, antibiotic therapy, steroid and other immunosuppressive drugs, xerostomia, anaemia, endocrine disorders, and immunodeficiency. It is a common finding in people with HIV infection.

The most common presentations of oral candidiasis are:

Pseudomembranous candidiasis (syn. thrush)

white patches on the surface of the oral mucosa.

Lesions develop into confluent plaques that resemble milk curds and can be wiped off to reveal a raw erythematous and sometimes bleeding base

Candidiasis in the mouth and throat can have many different symptoms, including:

- White patches on the inner cheeks, tongue, roof of the mouth, and throat
- Cotton-like feeling in the mouth
- Loss of taste
- Pain while eating or swallowing
- Cracking and redness at the corners of the mouth

Erythematous candidiasis –

erythematous areas found generally on the dorsum of the tongue, palate, or buccal mucosa are characteristic.

Lesions on the dorsum of the tongue present as depapillated areas.

Red areas often are seen on the palate of individuals with HIV infection

Thrush is often treated with antifungals in the form of lozenges, tablets, or liquid mouthwash that you swallow.

Treatment

- Topical antifungal cream -nystatan, imidazole cream
- Oral antifungal agents nystatan
- Fluconazole 200 mg po once followed by 100 mg/d for 2-3 weeks
- Increase 400-800 mg in resistant infection.
- Itraconazole 100mg po, od or bd for 2 weeks. Can increase in resistance case.
- Ketoconazole 200 mg po, od or bd for 1-2 weeks
- Clotrimazole oral tablet (lozenges) 10 mg, one tablet 3 time daily may be effective.
- The treatment for candidiasis in the esophagus is usually fluconazole.

Candidial Balantitis

A localized acute infection of the fore skin and gland penis caused by candida species.



https://medcraveonline.com/JOENTR/diagno sis-and-management-of-pseudomembranou s-candidiasis.html

Occur more frequently in uncircumcised penis DM is risk factor Inflammation intense, causing fissure

- Topical therapy is usually sufficient
- Miconazole, or clotrimazole cream or econazole cream

Diaper dermatitis

Irritant contact diaper dermatitis Most commonly red, scaly, erode, painful plaque on the convex surface or groin and buttock.

Treatment

- Barrier ointments such as petrolatum or zinc oxide are useful.
- 1% hydrocortisone cream twice daily for until inflammation is controlled.
- Candida infection is well treated with miconazole or ketoconazole or clotrimazole.
- Localized bacterial cream mupirocin cream

Candida intertrigo

Yeast thrives in intertriginous areas where skin touches skin.

Red, moist, glistering plaques extend to or just beyond the limits of the opposing skin fold.

Satellite papules dot the normal skin just beyond the plaques. There is tendency of painful fissuring

Treatment

- Wet dressing applied several times for 20-30 min o Antifungal cream
- Fluconazole cream 100-200 mg daily for 7 days

Tinea of the Nail

Is a fungal infection of the nail plate of the fingers or toe caused by the many different species of the fungus?

Once It established - It tends to be chronic and asymptomatic o Lifelong infection, with no spontaneous remission

Predispose factor is trauma o 4 distinct clinical patterns

Nail infection may occur simultaneously with hand or foot tinea

- Distal subungual onychomycosis
- White superficial onychomycosis
- Proximal subungual onychomycosis
- Candida onychomycosis



https://www.pcds.org.uk/clinical-guidance/ candida-infection# introgallery-3





https://www.msdmanuals.com/professional/ dermatologic-disorders/ fungal-skin-infections /intertrigo

Distal subungual onychomycosis

Most common pattern

Distal nail plate turns yellow or white as accumulation of hyperkeratotive debris cause the nail to rise and separate from the underlying bed.



https://dermnetnz.org/cme/fungal-infections/tineaunguium https://step1.mebdullets.com/dermatology/112095/onych omycosis

White superficial onychomycosis

The nail surface is soft, dry and powdery and can easily be scrapped. Nail plate is not thickened and adhere to the nail bed

Proximal subungal onychomycosis

Microorganisms enter the posterior cuticle area of the nail fold and invade the nail plate from below.

The surface of the nail plate remains intact. *Trichophyton rubrum* is the most common cause. Commonly seen in HIV patients

Candida onychomycosis

It generally involves all of the finger nails Nail plate thickens and turns yellow to brown Rare disease

Differential Diagnosis

Psoriasis Leukonychia Eczema

Course and prognosis

Indication for treatment include - pam with thick nails, functional limitations, secondary bacterial function, and diabetes and cosmetics.

Oral therapy has highest success rate with nail infection in young persons Systemic therapy is more effective. Relapse rate 15-20%



Treatment

- Topical antifungal treatment
- Terbinafine 250 mg daily for fingernail 6 weeks, toe nails for 12 weeks
- Itraconazole 200mg od for 6 weeks for finger nails and 12 weeks to toe nail.
- Nail clipper with plier's handles may be used to remove substantial amounts of hard, thick debris.

Pulse Therapy for Onychomycosis

- Ltraconazole (Three- or four-month cycles of 200 mg of itraconazole twice daily for one week (400 mg daily for one week), followed by three weeks off and the drug for 3 or 4 pulse doses)
- Terbinafine
- Terbinafine 250 mg Pulse dose twice daily for 1 week on and 3 weeks off.
- Fluconazole
- Fluconazole 300 mg once a week for 6-9 month or until the nail is normal.

Table: Summary of Treatment of Fungal infections

Candiasis Moniliasis	HE	Anti-fungal cream	Antipruritic drugs	Antifungal powder / Suspension(Oral)	Antifungal drug	Steroid Cream	Antibiotics cream	Shampoo
Oral Candidiasis	\checkmark			\checkmark	\checkmark			
Candidial Balanitis	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark					
Diaper dermatitis	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		\checkmark	\checkmark	
Candidal Intertrigo	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark			
Tinea Versicular	\checkmark	\checkmark			\checkmark			\checkmark

Table: Summary of Treatment of Fungal Infections

	HE	Antipruritic drugs	Anti-fungal cream	Anti-fungal drugs	Anti-fungal powder	Antibiotics	Short-course PNLD	Shampoo	Surgery
Tinea pedis	\checkmark	✓	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	+/-			+/-
Tinea cruris or Tinea groin	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark				
Tinea corporis or Tinea of the body	\checkmark	✓	\checkmark						
Tinea manuum	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark						
Tinea faciei	\checkmark	✓	\checkmark						
Onychomycosis	\checkmark	✓		\checkmark			\checkmark		\checkmark
Tinea incognito	\checkmark		\checkmark	✓					
Tinea capitis	√			√		\checkmark	1	\checkmark	\checkmark
Tinea barbae	\checkmark	√	\checkmark	\checkmark					

8. ACNE VULGARIS AND ROSACEA

Acne Vulgaris (Acne)

Acne vulgaris is chronic inflammatory disease of the pilosebaceous follicle characterized by comedones, papules, pustules, and nodules and often scar.

Acne vulgaris and rosacea are very common yet and heavy emotional burden for its victims Acne vulgaris is the most common of all skin disorder.

It is a chronic inflammatory process that affects the pilosebaceous unIt every adolescent and in many adults and pre pubertal children.

Acne is very common among adolescents and young adults, but can persist into adulthood Nearly 85% of teenagers are affected by acne at some point during their teenage years Permanent scarring, poor self-image, depression, and anxiety can result from acne More severe in male than female.

Pathogenesis

Multifactorial pathogenesis

Possibly linked to keratin plugging of follicles due to abnormal or follicular hyper keratinization

Androgen-induced increase in sebum secretion and

Secondary proliferation or colonization of *Propionibacterium acnes*, an anaerobic organism normally resides in the follicles

Key pathological feature is follicular plugging and distension and perifollicular inflammation.

Role of androgen must be carefully considered.

Telltale signs of hyper androgenism as hirsutism

Hyperandrogenism secondary to polycystic ovary syndrome.

Acne Lesion

Primary lesion of AV is microcomedo, the microscopic bulging mass that results from a combination of hyperproliferative comeocytes and sebum and lead to follicular plugging.

Microcomedo is the closed comedo (white head) is the first visible acne lesion.

It is a non-inflammatory lesion that evolves from the microcomedo and appear as a white dot ranging from 0.1 to 3.0.mm in diameter.

The open comedo (black head) is a 0.1 to 3.0 mm non-inflammatory lesion that like black dot.

The dark color is blockage of light transmission through the occluded.

Open comedo is inflammatory acne lesions include papules, pustule, nodules and cysts.

A papule is a pink to red raised, papule lesion with no visible accumulation of fluid which can range from 1 to 4 mm in diameter.

A pustule is a raised accumulation of purulent materials on the skin's surface and similar size to papules.

Nodule is a tender firm lesion that may persist for weeks.



Cysts may be as large as several centimeters in diameter and they may drain creamy, yellowish materials.

Darkly pigmented skin affected by acne tends to develop significant post-inflammatory hyperpigmentation.

Classification

Superficial lesions

Open and closed comedones (blackheads and whiteheads) Papules (small, tender red bumps) Pustules (white or yellow "squeezable" spots)

Deeper lesions

Nodules (large painful red lumps) Pseudocysts (cyst-like fluctuant swellings)

Secondary lesions

Excoriations (picked or scratched spots) Erythematous macules (red marks from recently healed spots, best seen in in fair skin) Pigmented macules (dark marks from old spots, mostly affecting those with dark skin) Scars or various types

Individual acne lesions usually last less than 2 weeks but the deeper papules and nodules may persist for months. Many acne patients also have oily skin (seborrhoea).





Ref: https://www.pinterest.com/pin/types-of-acne--326229566743521926

Acne Grading

Acne may be classified as mild, moderate or severe. Comedones and inflammatory lesions are usually considered separately.

(Mild acne)

- < 20 comedones
- < 15 inflammatory lesions
- Or, total lesion count <30
- (Moderate acne)
 - 20-100 comedones
 - 15-50 inflammatory lesions
- Or, total lesion count 30-125

(Severe acne)

- >5 pseudocysts
- Total comedo count > 100
- Total inflammatory count >50
- Or total lesion count > 125



Mild Moderate Severe https://www.studocu.com/en-gb/document/ lancaster-university/medicine-and-surgery/acnevulgaris-and-rosacea/14243784

Some dermatologists assess the severity of a patient's acne more precisely by using a grading scale. The inflammatory lesions are compared with a set of standard photographs to determine the grade, which may be 1 (very mild) to 12 (exceptionally severe) for example

Treatment

- <u>Treatment for acne</u> depends on the patient's age and sex, the extent and the severity of the acne, how long It has been present, and response to previous treatments.
- Treatment for mild acne includes topical anti-acne preparations, lasers and lights
- Treatment for moderate acne includes antibiotics such as tetracyclines and/or antiandrogens such as birth control pill
- Treatment for severe acne may require a course of oral isotretinoin
- Topical treatment for acne is available as washes, solutions, lotions, gels and creams. They may have single or multiple active ingredients.

Treatment algorithm of Acne for adolescents and young adults (aad guideline)

First line trea	atment options		
Mild	Benzoyl peroxide (BP)	Topical retinoid	Topical combination therapy*: BP + antibiotic; or Retinoid + BP; or Retinoid + BP + antibiotic
Moderate	Topical combination therapy*: BP + antibiotic; or Retinoid + BP; or Retinoid + BP + antibiotic	Oral antibiotic + topical retinoid + BP	Oral antibiotic + topical retinoid + BP + topical antibiotic
Severe	Oral Antibiotic + topical combination therapy: BP + antibiotic; or Retinoid + BP; or Retinoid + BP + antibiotic	Oral isotretinoin	

* May be prescribed as a fixed combination product or as separate component.

	Alternative options			
Mild	Add topical retinoid or BP (If not on already)	Consider alternate retinoid	Consider topical dapsone	
Moderate	Consider alternate combination therapy	Consider change in oral antibiotic	Add combined oral contraceptive or oral spironolactone (females)	Consider oral isotretinoin
Severe	Consider change in oral antibiotic	Add combined oral contraceptive or oral spironolactone (females)	Consider oral isotretinoin	

https://www.aad.org/member/clinical-quality/guidelines/acne

When to refer

Non responsive acne vulgaris may evolve to cystic acne, scarring, hyperpigmentation
Pyogenic granuloma

Very severe acne condition needs to treat with systemic isotretinoin treatment

Acne scar and Hyperpigmentation

Many people develop one or more of the following after getting acne.

Acne scars: When an acne breakout clears, It can leave a permanent scar.

Some scars cause depressions in the skin. Others are raised.

It's impossible to predict who will develop scars when the acne clears, but the following increases your risk:

Living with acne for an extended amount of time because you don't treat It or treatment doesn't work Having one or more close blood relatives who developed acne scars

Dark spots on the skin:

As an acne breakout clears, some people see a spot where the acne once was. This completely flat spot can be pink, red, purple, black, or brown, and it's

often mistaken for a permanent acne scar.

As the acne clears, It can leave long-lasting dark spots on the skin.

Drugs for acne

- Azelaic acid (Azelex) for post-inflammatory dyspigmentation
- A dicarboxylic acid 20%
- Effect is anti-inflammatory
- Azithromycin and cephalexin are alternative to moderate to severe.
- Monotherapy with systemic antibiotics is NOT recommended

Antibiotics

- Moderate to severe acne
- Front line antibiotics Tetracycline 250-500 mg qid for 6-8 weeks
- or minocycline 50-1 00 mg od or bd or doxycycline 100 mg bd 6-8 weeks
- Erythromycin second line drug, 250-500 mg bd or qid for 6-8 weeks or Clindamycin 150 mg tds for 6-8 weeks
- Others septrin, dapsone, amoxicillin, clindamycin

Isotretionoin

- Most effective therapy for severe nodulocystic and scarring acne
- Dose 0.5-1 mg / kg / day in od or bd | day long duration (6 month)
- Side effect dry skin, eyes, lips, muscle joint pain.
- Fetal abnormality If use in pregnancy
- Possibility of depression and suicide

Hormonal Therapy

- Oral contraceptive pills improve acne, by decreasing the amount of circulating androgen.
- It may improve acne for many women. They could be used alone or in combination with other acne treatments.



https://www.researchgate.net/figure/Acnean d-Postinflammatory-Hyperpigmentation-Cou rtesy-of-Valerie-Callender-MD-Callender_fig2 _313792481



- Recommended for Estrogen-containing combined oral contraceptives for inflammatory acne in females
- Currently four FDA-approved combined oral contraceptives for the treatment of acne
- Acne reduction with these agents can take time
- Appropriate for women with moderate acne
- These agents block both adrenal and ovarian androgens.
- As pregnancy while on antiandrogen treatment will result in feminization of a male fetus. 50-100 mgl day

Dexamethasone

• Reduce the androgen excess and may alleviate cystic acne. Corticosteroids (CS) are effective in the treatment of adult-onset adrenal hyperplasia.

Prednisolone

• It is generally only given to the patients with severe inflammatory acne during the first few weeks of treatment with isotretinoin, for initial reduction of inflammation and to reduce isotretinoin induce flares.

Other hormonal agents

- Finasteride, flutamide, estrogen, gonadotropin releasing agonist, and metformin beneficial effect on acne but due to side effect and expenses.
- Spironolactone can be useful in the treatment of acne in select females, though evidence of its efficacy is limited

Intralesional Corticosteroid

• Injection Kenalog 10 is best dilute with sterile water normal saline, less than 0.1 ml directly into the center of the nodule.

Role of diet in acne

- No specific dietary changes are recommended in the management of acne
- Emerging data suggests that high glycemic index (GI) diets may be associated with acne
- Limited evidence suggests that some dairy, particularly skim milk, may influence acne
- There is limited evidence to recommend the use and benefIt of physical modalities for the routine treatment of acne including:
- Comedo removal
- Pulsed dye laser
- Potassium titanyl phosphate (KTP) laser
- Fractionated and non-fractionated infrared lasers
- Fractionated CO2 laser
- Photodynamic therapy (PDT)
- Glycolic acid peels
- Salicylic acid peels

Rosacea

Rosacea is a cutaneous vascular disorder.

It appears on the central face (Cheeks, chin and nose, forehead) where inflammatory papules and pustules erupt on a background of erythema and telangiectasias.

This occurs more in fair skinned, fair-haired people. Rosacea is more common in women. It occurs after age of 30 years, peak 40-50 years Etiology is unknown It tends to appear in patients who are flushers and blushers. The flushing and blushing reaction, which is sometimes called pre-rosacea, may response to emotional, psychological or environmental. Rosacea is not curable.

Diagnosis

Primary feature (Must present one or more) Flushing (transient erythema) Non-transient erythema: persistent redness of the central face - the most common sign of rosacea. Papules and pustules which appear in cluster Telangiectasias: common but required for diagnosis Secondary Feature Burning or stinging Plaques Dryness: itchiness, scaly skin resembling dry skin Edema Ocular manifestation Peripheral location including chest, neck, scalp, or back Phymatous changes

Subtype

Erythematotelangiectatic - redness, flushing, visible blood vessels Papulopsutular - redness, swelling, and acne-like breakouts Phymatous - skin thickens and has a bumpy texture Ocular - eyes red and irritated, eyelids can be swollen, and the person may have what looks like a sty

No medical test can tell whether you have rosacea

Treatment

Find your triggers.

- Many things you do can cause rosacea to flare. Common triggers for rosacea include becoming overheated, having cold wind blowing on your face, and eating spicy foods.
- Minimize sun exposure
- Apply a broad-spectrum sunscreen with an SPF 30 (or higher) every day before you head outdoors
- Think sun protection 24/7.
- Use a moisturizer
- Use only gentle skin care product
- Cover up the face when you go out



https://www.everydayhealth.com/rosacea/is -it-something-else/ https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/rosacea/

Practice rosacea friendly skin care

- Avoid the midday sun
- Seek shade when outdoors
- Slip on a wide-brimmed hat when outdoors to protect your face and neck from the sun
- Wear sun-protective clothing and sunglasses
- Care of eye
- Avoid spicy food
- Mild case topical alone

Azelaic acid:

- Most patients apply this medicine twice a day in the morning and evening
- Metronidazole cream (Metrogel 0.75%, or Metrolotion 0.75% can used)

Metronidazole:

- Available as a gel or cream, has been used for more than 60 years
- to treat the acne-like breakouts of rosacea

Retinoid:

- It can irritate skin with rosacea. Applying a retinoid can help you prevent flare-ups
- Sodium sulphacetamide topical (Klaron or sulfacet cream) used to safely treat the acne-like breakouts of rosacea for more than 60 years.

Systemic treatment

- Oral antibiotics
- Tetracycline 250-500 mg bd up to 12 weeks
- Doxycycline 50-100 mg bd
- Minocycline 50-100 mg bd
- Tetracycline It can quickly reduce the acne-like breakouts and redness
- Minocycline, doxycycline, or erythromycin, can also effectively treat rosacea
- Not response use oral isotretinoin, but side effect -teratogenic Other
- Electrosurgery
- Laser surgery
- Dermabrasion

Laser or light therapy

9. DERMATOSIS

Dermatosis is a term that refers to diseases of the integumentary system.

Dermatitis

Any sort of inflammation of the skin which usually produce a rash.

Eczema

Eczema is a chronic (persistent) skin condition with symptoms such as itching which creates inflammation, rashes and redness which causes the skin to swell.

Stages of Eczema

- (1) Acute Eczema
- (2) Subacute Eczema
- (3) Chronic Eczema

Acute Eczema

It is characterized by clinically erythema, edema, and vesicle. Weeping or oozing from lesion is typical. Pruritus is often severe.

Skin Finding

Erythema, edema, vesiculation, weeping, inflammation can be moderate to tense, vesicle and bullae can be seen

Type of reaction –

Id reaction (Autoeczematization)

Duration

within week Examples - poison ivy, poison oak, poison Sumac

Treatment

- Cool and wet dressing with Burrow's solution
- Topical steroid Group II to III
- Oral Antihistamine such as diphenyl hydramine or cetrine
- Infection for Antibiotics, e.g., dicloxacillin 10-14d or flucloxacillin 250 mg tds x 7d
- Oral corticosteroid is reserve for Severe cases. (C.S 0.5-Img/kg/day)



https://clinicalgate.com/eczema-basic-principl es contact-dermatitis/

Subacute Eczema

It is characterized by clinically itchy, red and scaling patches, papule and plaque in various configurations.

Duration

Over one week

Skin Finding

Erythema and scaling occur. Indistinct border. Redness may be faint or intense. Type of Reaction - Autoeczematization Examples - Atopic dermatitis

Treatment

- Wet dressing should be avoided.
- Topical steroid cream Group II-V
- Oral Antihistamine such as diphenylhydramine or loratidine
- Immune modulators Tacrolimus ointment 0.1-0.03% applied bd
- Tar oilment and creams
- Infection for Antibiotics, e.g., dicloxacillin 10-14 d
- Moisturizes are essential, apply bd, e.g., Aveeno or DML

Chronic Eczema

Affected skin is inflamed, red, scaling and lichenified.

Duration

month to year

Skin Finding

Intense itching, inflamed, itchy skin thickens and surface markings become more prominent. Lichenification present, hyperpigmentation and hypopigmentation present

Treatment

Cool and wet dressing.

Emollients (petrolatum)(white soft paraffin)(vaseline cream) Topical steroid Group I or II are used with plastic occlusion for 8 hrs.

Steroid impregnated tape, e.g., cordran tape for 12 hrs.

Immune modulators Tacrolimus ointment 0.1-0.03% applied bd

Intralesional injection, e.g., Kenalog 10 mg/ml for 3-4 weeks interval can use.

Common Types of Eczema

Atopic dermatitis Seborrhoeic dermatitis







Discoid / nummular Dyshidrotic/ Pompholyx Stasis eczema Venous leg ulcer Xerotic dermatitis - caused by extremely dry skin made worse by dry winter Contact dermatitis - in response to allergen Lichen Simplex Chronicus Plurigo Nudularis Pityriasis Alba



Atopic Dermatitis (Atopic means sensitive to allergen)

AD is a chronic, inflammatory skin disease that is characterized by pruritus and a chronic course of exacerbation s and remission.

Characteristics

Dry Skin, crack and scaly Pruritus or itchy Rubbing lead to increased inflammation Red Broken skin Thicken Crack Itch scratch cycle

Predisposing factors

Genetic, family tendency Environmental component Food e.g., cow's milk, egg, soybean Infection Season Clothing Emotional stress Hormonal changes Exercises Auto allergens



https://www.singhealth.com.sg/patient-care /conditions-treatments/atopic-dermatitis

Clinical presentation

1 month to 2 years (Infantile type)

Hallmark - Pruritus Characteristic lichenified appearance Erythema and scaling of cheeks and eruption may extend to scalp, neck, forehead, wrist and extremities. Secondary effects from scratching, rubbing and infection - Crust, infiltration and pustules Sparing of naso-labial fold in face Disappear in end of second year of life.

2 years to 10 years (Childhood Type)

Pruritus is characterized feature Classical location is antecubital and popliteal fossa Lichenified and indurated plaque Lichenification and secondary infection Change of itch to pain due to scratching (Itch -scratch cycle)

Adolescent | Adult (Adult type)

May occur as a localized erythematous, scaly, papular, exudative or lichenified Location is antecubital and popliteal fossa and front and side of neck, forehead and area around the eye Lichenification and prurigo like lesions are common Infection such as Staphlococcus Hyper or hypopigmentation seen Associated Finding White demographism is a special and unique features of involved skin Ichthyosis vulgaris and keratosis pilaris occur in 10%. Flare up During the flare up, the skin may be itchy, red, hot, dry and scaly, wet, weeping and swollen and

infected with bacteria.

Diagnosis Criteria

Major Criteria (must have three of the following)

Pruritus

Typical morphology and distribution (flexural lichenification in adult or facial and extensor involvement in infancy)

Chronic or chronically relapsing dermatitis

Personal or Family history of atopic diseases (asthma, allergic rhinitis, atopic dermatitis)

Minor (must have 3 of the following.)

Chelitis Recurrent conjunctivitis







tps://www.pcds.org.uk/clinical-guid topic-eczema



https://www.amboss.com/us/k pic dermatitis

Orbital darkening Pityriasis alba Icthyosis Nipple eczema Elevate Serum IgE Xerosis IgE reactivity Early age onset

Treatment in Primary Care

Dry skin - Emollients are first line, such as emulsifying ointment BP, three time per day (white soft Paraffin gel or Vaseline petroleum,)

Use bath oil such as oilatum or oilatum plus Avoid soaps and shampoo but you can use Soap like Eucerine wash and Physiological shower cream Cooling the skin Antihistamine such as diphenhydramine 5mg/kg/d for child, 25-50 mg qid Topical steroid such as 1% hydrocortisome cream should be used Immunomodulator such as tacrolimus 0.03% for children and 1% for adult Skin infection -Topical fucidin or systemic Antibiotics such as erythromycin 10 – 14 days UVA-UVB phototherapy Cyclosporine treatment in all over treatment failure.

Seborrhoeic Dermatitis

SD is common chronic, superficial, inflammatory disease characterized by redness and scaling and occurring in regions where the sebaceous glands are most active such as face, scalp, trunk, pre sternal area, body fold, groin and gluteal crease.

Co factor - SD linked to pityrosporum ovale

Linked to T cell depression

Increase sebum production

It affects areas rich in sebaceous glands

Activation of complement pathway



https://www.dermacaredirect.co.uk/advice/s kincare-sd/

SD caused by immunologic abnormalities and activation of complements.

May worsen in Parkinson diseases and in AIDS and neurologic disease (head trauma, stroke)

SD is aggravated by changes in Humidity, seasonal changes and emotional stress.

Age -onset -infancy (within first month of life), usual onset with puberty, most 20-50 years, peak 40 years

Increase activity is seen in winter and early spring.

Skin Finding

The disease is characterized by scale on erythematous based.

The scale has a yellow, greasy appearance or the papules are moist, transparent to yellow, greasy and scaling, among coalescing red patches and plaques.

Characteristic locations are seen on the eye-brown, the base of eyelashes, nasolabial folds and

paranasal skin and external ear canal.

Red, sharply marginated macules / patches covered with greasy-looking yellowish scales Head - Scalp, eyebrows, eyelashes, beard - Erythema and yellow orange scales and crusts Vertex of infant - yellow, greasy adherent scale on the vertex of the scalp (Cradle cap) with minimal underlying redness.

Face - Flush (butterfly) areas, on forehead (Corona seborrhoica), nasolabial folds eyebrow, glabella. Diaper area -yellow crusts and psoriform lesions. More redness than scaling.

Dermatopathology

KOH rule out for Dermatophytes Hyperkeratosiis, Acanthosis, Accentuated Rete ridges, Focal spongiosis, Parakeratosis

Treatment

Early Treatment of flare (Infants) – (For cradle cap)

- Removal of crusts with warm olive oil compress
- Follow by baby shampoo (2% ketoconazole shampoo)
- Application of 1-2.5% cortisone cream and 2% ketoconazole cream
- 1% pimiecrolimus cream

(Face and Trunk)

- 2% ketoconazole shampoo and
- 2% Glucocorticoid cream and lotion
- 2% ketoconazole cream and
- 1% Pimiecrolimus cream

(Adult) - (Scalp)

- 2.5 %Selenium Sulphide or 2% ketoconazole shampoo for 2-3 weeks OR
- Zinc pyrithioneand
- 2% Glucocorticoid cream and lotion OR
- 2% ketokonazole cream
- 1% Pimiecrolimus cream or 0.03% Tacrolimus
- Antibiotics for secondary infection
- Itraconazole 200 mg bd for 2 weeks

Discoid or Nummular Eczema

NE is a chronic, pruritus, inflammatory dermatitis occurring in the form of coin shaped plaque composed of small papules and vesicles on a erythematous based.

One of the difficult forms of eczema to treat.

can occur in association with atopic eczema, eczema craquelé, and secondary eczematisation.

Skin finding

Symptom - Pruritus often intense

Sharply demarcated, scaling, round eczematous plaques appear on the trunk and extremities.

Weeping lesions and vesiculation can flare. Secondary infection with Staphylococcus.

Distribution

Generalized or regional cluster or Scatter Lower leg, trunk, hands and finger

Laboratory

Patch testing Rule out Staph infection

Differential Diagnosis

Ringworm or Tinea infection Psoriasis Cutaneous T cell lymphoma

Treatment

- Moisturizer such as Petrolatum cream bd or
- Emollient -Vaseline or Aveeno
- Topical corticosteroid medium to high potency, twice a day for 3-4 weeks
- Dicloxacillin 250 mg qid for secondary infection
- Antihistamine such as loratadine
- Coal tar 2-5 % ointment daily
- UVB for light therapy

Dyshidrotic Eczema/Pompholyx/Hand and Foot Eczema

Pompholyx is a common type of eczema affecting the hand (Cheriopompholyx) and the feet (Pedopompholyx).

It is also called Dyshidrotic eczema or Vesicular Eczema.

Pompholyx is characterized by sudden eruption of usually highly pruritus, symmetric vesicles on the palm, lateral fingers and planter feet.

Sudden onset of much deep-seated pruritus, clear tapioca like vesicles.

Hand alone involvement occurs in 80%.

It is a distinctive, chronic relapsing vascular eczematous dermatitis of unknown etiology.

More common in women.





https://dermnetnz.org/topics/discoid-eczema https://www.theindependentpharmacy.co.uk/ eczema-dermatitis/ guides/discoid-eczema

Clinical Feature

Vesicles are 1-5 mm in diameter, are monomorphic, deep seated, filled with clear fluid and resemble TAPIOCA, wet and weeping

Vesicles erupt suddenly and symmetrically on the palm or lateral fingers or on the planter feet.

Dry and scaling

Depending on the phase of the disease, the physician may see BROWN SPOT. Brown spots are site of previous vesiculation.

Course and prognosis

Vesicle resolved slowly over 1-3 weeks, recurrent maybe a month or a few time a year. Secondary bacterial infection and paronychia can get.

Treatment

- Cool compresses Soaks and compresses using weak solution of CONDY's crystal (Potassium permangate), aluminum acetate, applied 15 min 4 time a day
- Emollients dimethicone barrier cream.
- Topical corticosteroid cream (high potency) or
- Intralesional injection of triamcinolone 3 mg | ml
- Systemic steroid -PNLD 0.5-1 mg | kg/day
- Tacrolimius ointment (protopic 0.1%)
- UVA therapy for refractory cases.
- Others methotraxate or azathioprine

Stasis Dermatitis

Stasis Dermatitis is an eczematous dermatitis of the legs, associated with edema, varicose and dilated veins and hyper-pigmentation.

It is chronic problem and commonly relapses.

It is also known as 'stasis eczema' and 'gravitational dermatitis.

History

prior history of DVT, surgical trauma, ulceration Family history or personal history of varicose vein the legs are swollen at the end of the day Prolong standing or walking

Skin finding

The affected skin is red and scaly, and may ooze, crust and crack.

Irregular haemosiderin pigmentation is usually present.

Dilated and tortuous veins are frequently present.

Edema, brown discoloration, erosion, or ulceration

Pruritus

White scars on medial calf indicate previous ulceration

Inflammation, skin is scaling, thicken from itching and both legs are swelling.

Secondary infection may be present



Treatment

- Elevate feet when sitting or lying
- Wear graduated compression stockings long term
- Don't stand for long periods
- Take regular walks
- Cool water dressings
- Emollients e.g., vaseline
- Oral Antihistamine e.g., hydroxyzine 10-25 mg qid
- Topical corticosteroid G II to V twice a day for 2-3 weeks
- Antibiotics e.g., dicloxacillin
- Oral steroid for 3 week and taper
- Compressing 20-30 mg is accompanying with stocking

Venous Leg Ulcer

A venous leg ulcer is chronic non-healing ulcer typically located on the medial aspect of the lower leg associated with chronic venous insufficiency.

They are flat, have sharp or slightly sloping borders and are typically shallow with covering granulation tissues. Pitting edema is common.

Ache and swollen legs by the patient complaints

Treatment

- Elevation of legs
- Exercise
- Stop smoking
- Treatment of underlying disease such D.M.
- Compression with Ace wraps. But must not use in arterial diseases.
- Corticosteroid cream group III-V
- Heavy moisturizers e.g., Aveeno cream
- Neomycin topical Antibiotics
- Pentoxifylline 400 mg tds
- Careful assessment of ulcer (Arterial or venous ulcer) and ulcer therapy
- Special wound dressing
- Metro gel cream
- Hydrocolloid dressings
- Asprin 300 mg | day
- Continuous wet saline dressing

Refer

- A large ulcer sizes
- Long ulcer duration
- Ulcer size do not decrease



853

Xerotic Eczema

Xerotic Eczema is also called Eczema Craquele, Pruritus hiemalis, Asteatotic Eczema or winter Itch.

• a common type of dermatitis that occurs as a result of <u>dry skin</u>.

The most common site is the shins, but asteatotic eczema may occur elsewhere including upper limbs and trunk.

Desiccation dermatitis and winter Eczema is a form of Eczema that is characterized by changes

that occur when skin becomes abnormally dry, itchy and cracked.

The sites are legs, arms and hands but also trunk.

May worse in winter when the humidity was reduced.





https://dermnetnz.org/topics/astea totic-eczema https://healthjade.net/xerotic-ecze

Symptoms

The primary lesion is an erythematous patch covered with adherent scale.

It has a distinctive crazy-paving appearance. Diamond-shaped plates of skin are separated from each other by red bands forming a network.

The dehydrated skin showing redness, dry scaling, and fine cracking that may resemble cracked porcelain or the fissure in the bed of a dried lake or pond.

The erythematous, scaling lesions are pruritus. There may also be scratch marks.

Treatment

- Life style changes to avoid the temperature, humidity and exacerbation factors
- Bathe only once every 1-2 days (Tepid water bath), Use bath oil such as QV or Hamilton's Alphaker.
- Keep the nails cut short or wear a covering the hands (gloves and socks)
- Wear cotton clothing
- Use low allergic washing powders such as DOVE
- Moisturizer twice a day with such as QV and Dermaveen, or Lubriderm or Oils such as olive oil can be used.
- Topical immunomodulators such as pimecrolimus and tacrolimus may be used
- Topical steroid such as Group III-V (Medium potency) for short term.
- Topical antibiotics cream for secondary bacterial infection.

Icthyosis Vulgaris

It is autosomal dominant tralt of a disorder of keratinization characterized by dry, rectangular scales resembling a cracked pavement especially on extremities.

Finding

Dry, small, rectangular scales appear on the lower extremities particularly the anterior shin. Affected skin has the appearance of cracked pavement or fish scale.

It is also called fish scale disease," or "fish skin disease.

Characteristically spare on flexor surfaces.

Usually, asymptomatic may become pruritus or chapped in the winter.

Associated with Keratosis Pilaris and may also be present.

This condition may result from a defect in the synthesis of epidermal proteins

, profilaggrin and filaggrin (FLG).

Most often It appears after about 2 months and in most cases before the age of 5. Symptoms may worsen up to <u>puberty</u>, and sometimes improve with age.

Differential Diagnosis

Acquired icthyosis - more sudden onset, generalized

Infection with HIV virus, Sarcoidosis, Malignancy, drugs and metabolic disorder, Bone marrow disorder,

X-linked ichthyosis - large scales are dart brown colour, flexural may be involved. (Patient may have dry skin in the summer months that evolves into large, brown, quandricular scales during the winter months.

Treatment

- Often improve with age
- Bathe in salt water increased environment humidity and warmth result in resolution or improvement
- Regular application of Moisturizers cream or lotion after bathing
- Emollients containing Lactic acid, Urea, AHA
- Ammonium Lactate 12% (Lac Hydrin cream)
- Oral retinoids such as acitretin or isotretinoin can be prescribed in severe cases.

Keratosis Pilaris

KP consists of rough, monomorphic, tiny, follicle-based scaling papules most commonly on the posterolateral aspect of upper arms but occasionally more widespread including the anterior and lateral thigh and the buttocks.

Keratosis pilaris is a very common, dry skin condition caused by keratin accumulation in the hair follicles.

Common in young, peaking in adolescent asymptomatic

Finding

goosebump' or 'chicken skin' appearance of their skin. These small bumps can be skin-coloured, red, or brown.

The skin can feel rough, dry, and can occasionally be itchy.

It has been associated with other skin diseases such as atopic_eczema and ichthyosis.

Small, pinpoint follicular papules and occasionally pustules, remain in the same area for years

The skin feels rough, like sandpaper

A red halo appears at the periphery of the keratotic papules.



https://bestpractice.bmj.com/topics/ en-us/584

Differential Diagnosis

Acne

Bacterial folliculitis - typical bacterial folliculitis is haphazard distribution. KP often improves or resolve by adulthood.

Treatment

- There is no cure for keratosis pilaris, however, It often clears up during adult life.
- Moisturizing cream that contains <u>urea</u>, <u>salicylic acid</u>, lactic acid or alpha hydroxy acids
- Ammonium Lactate 12% (Lac Hydrin cream)
- Topical retinoid cream
- Low potency C.S cream
- Emollients

https://www.healthline.com/health/k eratosis-pilaris-treatment

Pityriasis Alba

It refers to the characteristic fine scale, and alba to its pale colour (hypopigmentation).

- Asymptomatic, hypo pigmented, slightly elevated fine scales patches with indistinct borders, typically on the lateral cheeks.
- Affect lateral cheeks, lateral upper arms, and thigh
- prevalence in children of around 5%
- mainly affects children and adolescents aged 3 to 16 years, but can occur in older and younger people.
- cause of pityriasis alba is unknown.
- Pityriasis alba often coexists with dry skin and atopic dermatitis.

Skin finding

White macules are round to oval and vary m size, 2-4 cm in diameter.

A fine scale surface may be seen

More obvious in summer and in the darker

Treatment

- Usually, no treatment
- Reassurance
- Hypopigmentation fade with time
- A moisturizing cream may improve the dry appearance.
- A mild topical steroid (0.5-1% hydrocortisone) may reduce redness and itch If present.
- Calcineurin inhibitors (pimecrolimus cream and tacrolimus ointment) may be as effective
- Treated with cosmetic reason

Contact Dermatitis

CD is a generic term applied to acute or chronic inflammatory reactions to substances that come in contact with the skin.

Types of Contact Dermatitis based on etiologic background-



https://stamfordskin.com/en/dermato logy/pityriasis-alba/

Irritant contact dermatitis (Icd) Allergic Contact dermatitis (Acd) Photo contact dermatitis Contact urticaria Reaction to pharmacologically active agents

Irritant Contact Dermatitis (ICD)

ICD is a localized disease confined to areas exposed to irritants It is produced by a substance that has a direct toxic effect on the skin. After exposure to an irritant a skin reaction can occur immediately or gradually after repeated exposure. e.g., Common irritants - acids (certain toilet bowel and drain cleaners, dish washer detergents), hand sensitizers, alkalis (ammonia, dye), cement, turpentine and paint thinners.





https://drclementlo.com/refer/index. php/dermatology-jean-l?view=articl e&id=102&catid=19

Symptoms

Itching and burning Typically, redness, swelling and oozing The longer the contact or more concentrated The agents the more severe the reaction. Irritant contact dermatitis is an eczematous Dermatitis often caused by repeated exposure to Mild irritants such as water, soaps, heat and frictions. About 80% of cases of contact dermatitis involve irritant contact dermatitis. It does not require Sensitization.

Clinical Finding

The hands are most often affected; both dorsal and palmar surfaces can be affected. Eyelids are another irritant prone site. Chronic lip lickers will develop an Irritant dermatitis from repeated Wet-Dry cycle Erythema, dryness, painful cracking or fissuring and scaling are typical. Vesicle may be present. May shows juicy papules, weeping and edema Persistent, Chronic irritants dermatitis is characterized by lichenification, patches of erythema, fissures, excoriation and scaling.

Laboratory

KOH examination for tinea infection Patch testing for ACD Blood test -Acanthosis, hyperkeratosis, and lymphyocyte infiltration

Treatment

- Removal or avoidance or the substances causing irritation
- Cleaning the area with water and mild soap (mildest cleaner Dove or Cataphil)
- Application of bland emollients such as Vaseline
- Appropriate protective gloves should be worn.

- Corticosteroid ointment or cream 2-3 weeks (Low potency for face, medium potency for arms, legs and trunk and high potency for hands and feet.
- Corticosteroid tablets- 3 weeks then tapering.

Contact Dermatitis (CD)

CD is a reaction which occurs when skin comes in contact with certain substances. Two mechanisms

- Allergic contact dermatitis (allergic reaction)
- Irritant contact dermatitis or

Common irritants:

• Soap, detergents, acids, alkalis and organic solvents e.g., nail varnish remover due to warm, moist condition in the shoes and socks

Seen in around the hands or areas that touched were exposed to the irritants / allergens Laundry soaps is irritants such as sodium silicate, sodium phosphate, sodium carbonate, rosin Chemical irritants such as chlorine, cleansers, detergents and soap, fabric softeners, glues used on artificial nails, perfumes and topical medications

Allergic Contact Dermatitis (ACD)

The reaction does not occur the first time one is exposed to a particular substance but on subsequent exposures, which can cause dermatitis in 4 to 24 hours.

Allergic Contact Dermatitis

Is red, itchy, weepy reaction where the skin has come into contact with a substance that immune system recognizes as a foreign such as poison ivy, or certain preservatives in creams and lotion. Red, bumpy, scaly, itchy and swollen skin are symptoms

Allergic phytodermatitis or RHUs dermatitis

is also called Toxicodendron dermatitis.

It is also allergic contact dermatitis exposed to members of Toxicodendron

Lesions appear within 12-24 hours New lesion appears on 2-3 weeks

Allergic Contact Dermatitis

Nickel allergy

Nickel containing items such as ear rings, in jewelry such as necklaces, necklace clip, earrings, watch strap (especially low carat goal)

In clothing - metal zip, bra hook

Lipstick holder, powder compacts, handbag, cigarette lighter, razors,



https://gladskin.com/blogs/resources/types-of-ec zema-contact-dermatitis





https://sso.uptodate.com/contents/image?ima geKey=PI%2F62784

key rings

Mental items - cupboard handles, kitchen utensils, toaster, metal teapots, scissors, needles, pins, torches

Silver coins contains cupro-nickel

Hives or Urticaria

Are red, itchy, swollen areas of the skin that can range in size and appear anywhere on the body.

Caused by infections, drugs, food or latex

Hives are caused by a chemical called Histamine and are responsible for many of the symptoms of the skin.



https://www.allergyuk.org/types-of-allergies/urtic aria-hives-other-skin-allergy/

Angioedema

It is a swelling of a deeper layers of the skin, sometime occurs with hives. It is not itchy or red and often occurs in soft tissue such as eyelids, mouth and genitals.

It is results from the actions of these chemicals in the deeper layers of the skin.

The mast cells which are cells heavily involved in allergic reactions.

Medication such as aspirin, NSAID such as Ibuprofan, ACE inhibitors, codeine, foods

Allergic Contact Dermatitis (Clinically)

When an allergen comes and contact with previously sensitized skin (Cell mediated hypersensitivity or delay type) or eczematous delay type hypersensitivity reaction.

The time required for previously sensitized person to develop clinically apparent inflammation is about 12 -48 hours.

Allergic contact dermatitis

is characterized by Vesicles, edema redness and often pruritus. Itch and swelling are key components of history. In ivy poison - vesicles, blister and linear lesions present The hands, forearms and face and foot. Irritant and ACD can be Impossible to distinguish clinically.

Laboratory

ADRESS AND

https://alrustom-laser.com/ allergic-contact-rashes/

Blood - spongiosis

Patch test

Contact Dermatitis (Sensitizer type)

CD can occur any part of the body but usually affects hands, feet and groin

Does not spread from one person to another

This type of allergic contact dermatitis usually occurs anywhere from 5-7 days occasionally as long as 20 days after the initial or sensitizing contact, at the site of contact.

There are no circulatory or detectable antibodies produced, although there is a local tissue allergy.



859

The most common sensitizers are plants, paraphyenylenediamine, nickel, rubber and dichromates. Commonly occurs - hair dyes, nail polishers, perfumes, lipsticks, tooth paste and sun creams, Rubber, Elastic in hair net, Adhesive tapes, Latex, Non-rubber.

CD to Soaps and detergents, dishwashers, contact with clothing washed in strong soaps or detergents CD from clothing natural fiber clothing, made from wool, cotton, linen or dark clothing Fabric finishes

Footwear

Diaper rash

Treatment

- Removal or avoidance or the substances causing irritation
- Cleaning the area with water and mild soap
- Manganese sulphate solution to reduce itching
- Antihistamine
- Corticosteroid ointment or cream 2-3 weeks (Low potency for face, medium potency for arms, legs and trunk and high potency for hands and feet.
- Corticosteroid tablets 3 weeks then tapering.

Lichen Simplex Chronicus

A special localized form of lichenification, occurring in circumscribed plaques.

Result from repetitive rubbing and scratching

Lichenification is a characteristic feature of atopic dermatitis whether generalized or localized

LSC can last for decades

Skin symptoms consist of pruritus, often in paroxysm

Lichenified skin is like an Ergoneous zone

It became pleasure to scratch

Skin Lesions

The rubbing becomes automatic and reflexive and unconscious habit.



https://www.mdedge.com/familymedicine/article/140009/dermatology/itchy-rash-neck https://plasticsurgerykey.com/42-lichen-simplex-chronicus-and-prurigo/

A solid plaque of lichenification, arising from the confluence of small papules, scaling is minimal except on lower limbs.

Lichenified skin is palpably thickened

Nuchal area, scalp, ankles, lower legs, upper thighs, exterior forearm, vulva, pubis, anal area, scortum and groin.

In black skin-special lichenification pattern - Follicular pattern

Treatment

- Rubbing and scratching must be stopped
- Topical Corticosteroid, or TAR preparation
- Combination of 55 Crude coal tar in zinc oxide paste plus class II Corticosteroid cream
- Occlusive dressing is effective

- Adhesive plastic tape.
- Intralesional Triamcinolone 3 mg/ml
- Oral hydroxyzine 25-50 mg

Prurigo Nodularis (PN)

Idiopathic form, popular or nodular form of lichen simplex chronicus

Nodular prurigo is a skin condition characterized by very itchy firm lumps.

It is the most severe form of prurigo.

PN - pruritic firm papules and nodules and secondary to repeated localized scratching and picking. Onset gradually and primarily on adult.

The individual prurigo nodule is a firm lump, 1–3 cm in diameter, often with a raised warty surface Nodular prurigo lesions are usually grouped and numerous but may vary in number from 2–200. Nodular prurigo tends to be symmetrically distributed.

Extensor arms and legs are typically affected, lumbosacral area, nape of neck, dorsal hands

The small papules and nodules are red or brown, hard and often dome shape with a smooth, crusted or warty surface. Nodules are often eroded, excoriated and sometimes even in ulcerative as patient dip into them with their nails.

Hypo pigment or hyperpigmentation and scratch marks, often resistance to treatment and last years



https://en.drmakise.com/prurigo-nodularis/

Treatment

- Emollients
- Oral antihistamine
- High potency Corticosteroid group II IV cream or
- C.S impregnant tape (Cordan)
- Intralesional steroid kenalog
- Coal Tar ointment as a steroid alternative
- Calcipotriol ointment (topical vitamin D3), can be applied twice daily
- Pramoxine with hydrocortisome
- UVB or UVA therapy
- Cryotherapy

Overall Treatment

- Health Education
- Chronicity of eczema, Association of other conditions: AR, asthma
- Vast number of sensitizing chemicals used currently in our soaps, shampoos, detergents, foods, etc.
- Detailed sensitizers/triggers
- Moisturize daily
- Wear cotton, avoid wool and tight clothes
- Take lukewarm showers, using mild soap or non -soap cleansers

- Pat dry do not rub
- Avoid extremes of heat/humidity and perspiration
- Learn triggers and how to avoid them
- Keep fingernails short
- Remove carpets and pets from the home

Conservative Therapy

- Education (chronicity, prevention, and trigger id)
- Use of astringents and emollients/moisturizers
- OTC products (hydrocortisone, benadryl, calamine, etc.)

Steroid - Low to mid potency steroid creams or High potency steroid creams

Immunomodulators - Elidel and Protopic creams

PO therapy: antipruritic,

Cyclosporine, methotrexate

Coal Tar

PUVA therapy (phototherapy)

Summar of Treatment of Dermatitis

	HE	Emollients / moisturizers	Antipruritic creams	Antipruritic drugs	Anti-fungal cream	Steroid Cream	Steroid oral / Injection	Antibiotics	Immune modulator	Cyclo / meth	Coal Tar	PUVA
Atopic Dermatitis	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		\checkmark		\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	~
Seborrhoeic Dermatitis	~	~		~	~	~		~	~			
Pompholyx	\checkmark	~	\checkmark	\checkmark		~	~		\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	~
Nummular Eczema	~	~	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark			~	~
Stasis Dermatitis	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark				
Lichen Simplex Chronicus	~	~	~	~		~	~		~		~	
Prurigo Nodularis	~	~	\checkmark	~		~	~		\checkmark		~	~
Icthyosis Vulgaris	~	~										
Pityriasis Alba	~	~				~			\checkmark			
Xerotic Eczema	~	~		~	~	~		~	~			
Contact Dermatitis	\checkmark	\checkmark			\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark					

10. URTICARIA

Urticaria (hives) is a vascular reaction of the skin characterized by wheals surrounded by a red halo or flare (area of erythema)

Cardinal symptom **PRURITUS** (itch)

Urticaria is caused by swelling of the epidermis

Angioedema can be caused by the same pathogenic mechanisms as urticaria, but the pathology is in the deep dermis and subcutaneous tissue and swelling is the major manifestation.

Angioedema commonly affects the face or a portion of an extremity. Involvement of the lips, cheeks, and periorbital areas is common, but angioedema also may affect the tongue, pharynx, larynx and bowels Urticaria and Angioedema, both are not a disease but a cutaneous reaction pattern.



https://www.theharleystreetdermatologyclinic.co. uk/conditions/hives-urticaria/

Urticaria and angioedema may occur in any location together or individually.

It is self-limited and benign, It can cause significant discomfort, continue for months to years, and uncommonly represent a serious systemic disease or life-threatening allergic reaction.

Angioedema and/or urticaria may be the cutaneous presentation of anaphylaxis,

Assessment of the respiratory and cardiovascular systems is vital.

Urticaria is a common dermatologic condition that typically presents with intensely pruritic, wellcircumscribed, raised wheals ranging from several millimeters to several centimeters or larger in size. Urticaria can occur with angioedema, which is localized non-pitting edema of the subcutaneous or interstitial tissue that may be painful and warm.

The intense pruritus can cause significant impairment in daily functioning and disrupt sleep.

Types of Urticaria

Acute urticaria, new onset urticaria, (<6 weeks duration, and often gone within hours to days) Chronic urticaria, recurrent urticaria, (>6 weeks duration, with daily or episodic wheals) Chronic urticaria may be spontaneous or inducible. Both types may co-exist.

Causative Factors (6 IS)

Ingestants - medication, food, additives Inhalants - dust, feather, pollen Injectants- drugs, stings, bite Infections -bacteria virus, fungal Internal diseases such as chronic infection, LE, erythematous, Occult cancer Idiopathic Genetic Stress Urticaria is caused by immunoglobulin E- and non–immunoglobulin E-mediated release of histamine and other inflammatory mediators from mast cells and basophils. Chronic urticaria is idiopathic in 80% to 90% of cases.

Classification

Immunologic

IgE mediated urticaria Complement mediated urticarial Autoimmune urticaria Immune Contact urticarial

Physical

Dermographism Cold urticaria Cholinergic urticaria Contact urticaria Delayed pressure urticaria Solar urticaria Heat urticaria Vibratory urticaria Aquagenic urticaria Due to mast cell releasing agents, pseudo-allergens, ACEI



https://www.aafp.org/pubs/afp/issues/2011/0501 /p1078.html

Idiopathic

Nonimmune Contact urticaria Associated with vascular/connective tissue autoimmune disease Distinct Angioedema syndrome Hereditary angioedema Angioedema urticarial eosinophilia syndrome

History - ASK -6 IS

Physically, Urticaria is characterized by the following: Blanching, raised, palpable wheals, which can be linear, annular (circular), or arcuate (serpiginous) Wheals small (< 1 cm) to large (>8cm), large areas of erythematous, raised lesions that blanch with pressure Lesions are transient Angioedema - skin coloured, transient enlargement of the portion of face Localized or regional or generalized in solar, pressure, vibration, cold... Dermographism (urticarial lesions resulting from light scratching) Potentially life-threatening, Angioedema of the lips, tongue, or larynx Individual urticarial lesions that are painful, long-lasting, or ecchymotic or that leave residual hyperpigmentation or ecchymosis upon resolution Hypotension Respiratory distress Stridor

GI disturbance

Etiology

Immunoglobulin E (IgE) often mediates this release, but non-IgE and nonimmunologic mast cell activation also can occur.

Proteases from aeroallergens and activation of the complement system have been proposed as examples of non-IgE triggers

Systemic Sign or Symptoms

Scleral icterus, hepatic enlargement, or tenderness

Thyromegaly

Pneumonia or bronchospasm (asthma)

Cutaneous evidence of bacterial or fungal

Table: Assessment of disease activity in urticaria patients							
Score	Wheal	Pruritus					
0	None	None					
1	Mild (<20 wheals /24 hours)	Mild (present but not annoying or troublesome)					
2	Moderate (20-50 wheals/24 hr)	Moderate (troublesome but does not interfere with normal daily activity or sleep)					
3	Intense (>50 heals /24 hours or large confluent areas of wheals	Intense (severe pruritus, which is sufficiently troublesome to interfere with normal daily activity or sleep)					

Sum of score: 0-6

Urticaria is a clinical diagnosis

A detailed history and physical exam should be performed

Many times, patients will not present with urticaria during their clinic visit

Treatment

- Discontinue the all-suspected triggers. The mainstay of treatment is avoidance of triggers, If identified.
- Antihistamine e.g., hydroxyzine 10 -25 mg / per day
- The first-line pharmacotherapy is second-generation H_1 antihistamines, which can be titrated to greater than standard doses.
- Non-sedating Antihistamine e.g., cetrizine, or loratadine 7-10 days
- H_1 blocker such as cimetidine 400 mg bd or ranitidine 150 mg/day 7-10 days.
- First-generation H₁ antihistamines, H₂ antihistamines, leukotriene receptor antagonists and high-potency antihistamines.
- Montelukast 10 mg hs for 7 -10 days
- Doxepin, tricyclic antidepressant and antihistamine can be given
- Oral prednisolone can use the condition of difficult to control (adjunctive treatment) with antihistamine.

Treatment of Chronic urticaria (AAFP)



NOTE: If symptoms are severe, a short course (3 to 10 days) of systemic corticosteroids (e.g., oral prednisone, 0.5 to 1 mg per kg per day) may be added

- at steps 1, 2, or 3.
- https://www.aafp.org/pubs/afp/issues/2017/0601/p717.html
- When to ReferReferral to a dermatologist and biopsy should be performed in patients with one or more of the following features:

Individual lesions that persist beyond 48 hours, are painful rather than pruritic, or have accompanying petechial characteristics

Systemic symptoms, Lack of response to antihistamines

Lesions that leave pigmentation changes upon resolution

11. PSORIASIS

Psoriasis is an inflammatory immunological reaction and It is a noncontagious skin disorder most commonly appears as inflamed, edematous skin lesion covered with silvery white scale. or A common chronic inflammatory genodermatosis which appear to be due to abnormal T lymphocyte function.

Site - Scalp, nails, extensor surface of the limbs, umbilical regions and sacrum

CHARACTERISTIC OF LESION

Circumscribed, erythematous, dry, scaling plaques of various sizes and covered with silvery white lamellar scales.

Sex - more common in female.

Race- more common in white.

Age - 10-15% new cases in younger child than 10 years, mean age onset is 28 years

Frequency - 2 and 2.6 % of US affected.

Flare -may be related to systemic or environmental factors. e.g., stress or infections

Heredity- Polygenic trait. Associated with HLA B13, B17, Bw57

Trigger factors - Physical trauma (Koebner phenomenon), infection, stress, drugs, alcohol

TYPES

Plaque or discoid psoriasis



https://emedicine.medscape.com/article/1108072-overview https://www.dermatologyadvisor.com/home/topics/psoriasis/long-term-plaque-pso-treatment-clinician-recommendations/ https://www.aad.org/public/diseases/psoriasis/what/symptoms

Is most common type, characterized by patches on the scalp, trunk, and limbs.

Red sharply defined, scaling papules that coalesce to form stable round to oval plaques. Deep rich colour is a characteristic feature.

Scale is adherent, when removed reveal bleeding (Auspitz sign).

Most common on extensor surface of knee, elbow, scalp and trunk.

Guttate psoriasis

Sudden appearance of numerous monomorphic psoriasis papules (Salmon pink papules or

small red drop/dots (Rain drop) appear on the arms, trunks and legs. May have some scales. Triggered by URTI (streptococcal infection). Guttate lesion may resolve spontaneously within a few weeks but usually become recurrent

and may evolve into chronic stable plaques. Age start at 30 years.

Inverse psoriasis (Intertriginous)

Occur on the flexural surface, armpit, groin, ear, axilla, navel,

and intergluteal crease, penis, under the breast and in the skin fold.

It is characterized by smooth, inflamed lesions without scaling.

Super- imposed candidal infections in DM patients and with topical steroid use.

Napkin psoriasis is seen in diaper area of infant of 2-8 months old.

Pustular psoriasis

Presents as sterile pustules appearing on the hands and feet or at time diffusely

and may cycle through erythema, pustules and scaling.

Characterized by pustules not papules, arising on normal or

inflamed, erythematous skin.

https://www.healthline.com/health/inverse-psoriasis#gallery-open



https://www.verywellhealth.com/what-are-the-different-types-of-pustular-psoriasis-3876679 https://dermnetnz.org/images/generalised-pustular-psoriasis-images

Two types, palmoplanter pustulosis and generalized acute pustular psoriasis (Von Zumbush) which is medical emergency.

Erythrodermic Psoriasis

Presents generalized erythema, pain, itchy and fine scaling. There is total body redness with weakness, fatigue with chills, It is called **RED** Man Syndrome.

Massive scaling can lead to protein loss and maximal dilation of skin capillaries to considerable heat dissipation and high output cardiac failure.

One of the medical emergencies. May be drug related.



https://www.uptodate.com/contents/image/print? imageKey=DERM%2F111552~DERM%2F111553~ DERM%2F111554



https://www.pcds.org.uk/clinical-guidance/guttatepsoriasis

Nail Psoriasis

Pitting is the most characteristic sign of psoriasis of the nail plate. Onycholysis is separation

of the nail from the nail bed.

Accumulation of parakeratotic debris and serum under

the nail bed creates a light brown spot called an oil spot lesion.



https://www.uptodate.com/contents/image/print?imageKey=DERM%2F111552~DERM%2F 111553~DERM%2F111554 https://www.researchgate.net/figure/Nail-pitti

Scalp Psoriasis

Affected 50% of patients, presents as

• Erythematous raised plaques with Silvery white scales on the scalp.

Psoriasis Arthritis

10% with skin symptoms, 5 clinical patterns,

Oligoarthritis with swelling and tenosynovitis of one or a few hand joints (70%)

Asymmetrical distal interphalangeal joint involvement (16%)

Symmetrical polyarthritis like rheumatoid arthritis with claw hands (15%)

Ankylosing spondylitis alone or with peripheral arthritis (5%)

Arthritis mutilans with osteolysis of phalanges and metacarpals (5%)



https://www.everydayhealth.com psoriasis/guide/scalp-psoriasis/



https://www.orthobullets.com/basic-science/9050/psoriatic-arthritis

Oral Psoriasis

May present with lesions on the buccal mucosa which may appear to change day to day. May

present as a severe chelosis with extension onto the surrounding skin.

Causes

Lesions of psoriasis are caused by increase in the turnover rate of dermal cells from the

normal 23 days to 3 - 5 days in affected area. Silver scale is due to a layer of dead skin cells.

Gene locus

Trigger factors - immunologic events, stress, drug induced



https://www.healthline.com/health/psoriasis/psori asis-on-the-tongue#pictures

After respiratory tract infection Autoimmune function Superantigens and T cells

Pathogenesis

Hyperproliferative disorder

The proliferative disorder is driven by a mixed T helper THI and THI 7 inflammatory diseases. It is clear that immune factors and inflammatory cytokines (messenger proteins) such as IL1 β and TNF α are responsible for the clinical features of psoriasis. Current theories are exploring the TH17 pathway and release of the cytokine IL17 T cells and cytokins play the pivotal role in psoriasis.

Laboratory Diagnosis

Punch biopsy - shows Acanthosis, Parakeratosis, Hyperkeratosis and Munro microabscesses. ASO titre for streptococcal pharyngitis Potassium hydroxide - candida infection (fungal studies) HIV test especially extensive psoriasis. Rheumatoid factors Uric acid - elevate in psoriasis arthritis Latex fixation test ESR Radiographs Bone scan

Differential Diagnosis

Seborrheic dermatitis Dyshidrotic eczema Tinea capitis Pityriasis rosea

Treatment

All patients should be given basic information, consultation, consider features of diseases and patients characteristics.

Goals of treatment

- Controlling itch, discomfort and scaling
- Cleaning psoriasis patches
- Limiting the extent of the diseases
- preventing complications such as erythroderma or generalized psoriasis
- Preventing recurrent

Emergency Department care

- Patients with Guttate, Erythroderma or Pustular psoriasis may present to emergency care
- Restoration of the barrier functions is important.
- Do cleaning and bandaging.
- Solar or UV radiation may be helpful.

• Oatmeal baths may be helpful.

Therapy to consider

- A step-by-step guide to medical management
- PASI Score <20 % of body surface area affected use topical
- PASI Score >20% of body surface area affected refer to hospital

General Treatment

- Life style modification
- Behavior or life style change
- Relaxation therapy
- Psychotherapy
- Exercise
- Avoidance of exacerbating factors
- Assistant to supports group for the patients

Adjunct to treatment

- Moisturizers
- Scale removing agents containing salicylic acid
- Sunshine

Initial treatment

- Topical corticosteroids group (I-V) reduce the plaque formation and have anti- inflammatory affect. e.g., Triamcinolone acetonide 0.1% cream, but not affective in nail psoriasis.
- Calcipotriene (Dovonex) A synthetic vitamin D3 analog that regulates skin cell production and development. It can be used in chronic plaque psoriasis and scalp psoriasis. It can apply once or twice daily.
- Coal tar1 -10% (DHS tar) useful in hair bearing area, It has antipruritic and antibacterial action. It is particularly affective for scalp psoriasis.
- Keratolytic agents Anthralin 0.1-1% (Dithranol cram), use to remove scale, to smooth the skin and to treat hyperkeratosis, especially chronic plaque psoriasis.
- Topical retinoids Tazarotene (Tazorac) aqueous gel 0.05% to 0.1%, It is converted to its active form in the body and modulates differentiation and proliferation of epithelial tissues, and It has anti-inflammatory and immunomodulatory. The most common side effect is skin pain and local irritation. Contraindicated in -pregnancy.
- Calcineurin inhibitors (Tacrolimus)
- They are steroid sparing agents on sensitive sites where the skin is thinner (Face, genital are) usually used under occlusion.

Failure of Topical treatment

- Affecting more than 20 % of body surface area
- UVB therapy, it is generally reserved for topical therapy was ineffective. It is very effective for psoriasis, usually 2-3 treatment per week for 20-30 treatment. Not effective for scalp and flexural site.
- Combination of topical therapy and phototherapy.

Oral therapy

- Failure of topical and phototherapy, repeated hospitalization, extensive chronic plaque, severe psoriatic arthropathy, erythrodermic or generalized pustular psoriasis
- Methotrexate
- Cyclosporin
- Combination therapy
- Biological therapies

Treatment of Localized Psoriasis

Algorithm for the treatment of localized psoriasis.



https://www.aafp.org/pubs/afp/issues/2000/0201/p725.html

- Treatment of localized psoriasis is initiated using topical corticosteroids, alone or in combination with coal tar or calcipotriene.
- Patients with resistant lesions may benefit from the addition of anthralin or tazarotene.

In special situation (Scalp psoriasis)

- Difficult to treat
- Corticosteroid lotion or tar gel (Linotar, coal tar gel) or shampoo (Neutrogena T shampoo) or spray or foams to treat mild to moderate scalp psoriasis.

Genital Area

• Mild corticosteroid (with or without calcitriol ointment)

- Medium-strength or potent corticosteroid (used for a short time)
- Mild coal tar (use this only If a doctor recommends it)
- Calcipotriene cream
- Pimecrolimus cream or tacrolimus ointment
- Stronger medicine such as cyclosporine, methotrexate, or a biologic
- Body wash (QV wash or Halmiton's body wash)
- Colloidal oat meal in the bath
- Moisturizers

Nail

- General nail care
- Moisturize your nails and the skin around your nails.
- Keep your nails trimmed short.
- Apply a nail hardener polish.
- Cut off hangnails.
- A corticosteroid cream, ointment or nail polish.
- injection triamcinolone acetonide (Kenacort Al O) 2-3 monthly

Complication

- secondary infection
- Psoriatic arthritis
- Mitral valve prolapsed

Prevention

- Avoid injury to skin
- Avoid sunburn
- Physical trauma

Prognosis

- Life-long involvement
- Usually benign
- May be refractory to treatment

Pitfall

- Abrupt stopping steroid therapy in psoriasis or adding known irritant drugs may cause worsening of the psoriasis
- Many of therapies for psoriasis manipulate the function of the immune system and expose the risk of infection.

12. MISCELLANEOUS INFLAMMATORY DISORDERS

Lichen Planus (LP)

LP in an acute or chronic inflammatory dermatosis involving skin and or mucous membrane.

Characterized by flat-topped (Latin, planus -flat), pink to violaceous, shiny, pruritus, polygonal papules.

6 Ps - Papule, Purple, Polygonal, Pruritus, Planter (Flat top), Plaque

Flat top with interspersed lacy white line.

It is thought to be an abnormal immune reaction provoked by a viral infection e.g., VHC or a drug. Cell mediated immunity plays in a major role.



https://statmed.org/knowledge/lichen_planus https://dermnetnz.org/topics/lichen-planus https://almostadoctor.co.uk/encyclopedia/lichen-planus

Lichen planus may cause a small number of skin lesions or less often affect a wide area of the skin and mucous membranes.

85% of cases It clear from skin surface within 18 months but may persist longer.

Age of onset -30-60 years

Female > male

Onset - Acute (Days) or insidious

Mucous membrane lesions are painful especially when ulcerated.

Skin Lesion -Papules, flat topped,1 - 10 mm, sharp defined, shiny.

Violaceous with white lines (Wickham striae)

Grouped, Annular< disseminated scattered discrete lesions when generalized.

Classical Lichen Planus

Characterized by shiny, flat topped, firm papules varying from pin point size (guttate) to larger than 1 cm.

There are a purple colour and often are crossed by white lines (Wickham line).

They may be

Liner lichen planus - group in line

Annular lichen planus -ring

Hypertrophic LP (Very thick scaly patches are particularly itchy.



https://dermnetnz.org/topics/lichen-planus

Variants

Hypertrophic - Large thick plaques arise on the foot, dorsum of hands and shin. Typical LP papule is smooth, hypertrophic lesion become hyperkeratotic

Atrophic - White bluish, well demarcated papules and plaque

Follicular - Individual keratotic follicular papules and plaques that lead to cicatricial alopecia. Cicatrical alopecia of scalp is called Graham little syndrome.

Vesicular - Vesicular or bullous lesions may develop within LP patches.

Pigmentosus - Hyperpigmented, dark brown macules lesions in sun exposed areas.

Actinicus - Papular LP lesions arised in sun exposed areas site.

Ulcerative type - LP lead to therapy resistant ulcers on the soles.

Mucous Membranes

Reticular (Net-like) - pattern of lacy white hyperkeratosis on buccal mucosa, tongue, gingiva, most common pattern

Erosive or Ulcerative - Superficial erosion with or without overlying fibrin clot; occur on tongue and buccal mucosa.

Genitalia - Papular, annular, or erosive lesions arise on penis., scortum, labia majoria, vagma

Hair and Nails, Scalp - Follicular LP, atrophic scalp skin with scarring alopecia.

Nails- destruction of nail fold and nail bed with longitudinal splintering.

Classical lichen pianos

Classical lichen planus is characterised by shiny, flat-topped, firm papules (bumps) varying from pin point size ('guttate') to larger than a centimetre.

Oral lichen pianos

The mouth is involved in 50% of cases and is often the only affected area.

The usual areas affected are the inside of the cheeks and the sides of the tongue, but the gums and lips may also be involved. The most common features are:

Painless white streaks in a lacy or fem-like pattern

Painful and persistent ulcers (erosive lichen planus)

Diffuse redness and peeling of the gums (desquamative gingivitis)



https://dermnetnz.org/topics/erosive-lichen-planus https://www.aaom.com/oral-lichen-planus

Vulval lichen pianos

As in the mouth, lichen planus may cause painless white streaks.

Erosive lichen planus affects the labia minora (inner lips) and introitus (entrance to the vagina).

The affected mucosa is bright red and raw.

The labia minora can shrink and stick to each other or to the labia majora (the outer lips).

Erosive lichen planus can be very painful, preventing sexual intercourse. It can also scar, closing over the vagina.

Vaginal lichen pianos

Sometimes lichen planus affects deeper within the vagma where It causes desquamative vaginitis. The surface cells in the vagina peel off and cause a mucky discharge. The eroded vagina may bleed easily on contact.

Penile lichen pianos

Classical papules are the most common form of lichen planus on the penis and mostly occur in a ring around the glans (the tip of the penis).

White streaks and erosive lichen planus are much less common on the penis.

Other mucosal sites

Erosive lichen planus uncommonly affects the eyelids, external ear canal, oesophagus, larynx, bladder and anus.

Lichen planopilaris

Follicular lichen planus, also known as lichen planopilaris, results in tiny red spiny papules around a cluster of hairs.

Sometimes no follicular scaling or inflammation is present but bald areas of scarring slowly appear, often looking rather like footprints in the snow.

This is known as 'pseudopelade'. When the cause is unknown, It is called pseudopelade of Brocq.

Frontal fibrosing alopecia is thought to be a limited form of lichen planopilaris.



https://dermnetnz.org/topics/lichen-planopilaris, https://www.drbatras.com/lichen-planus-and-hair-loss

Lichen pianos of the nails

Lichen planus affects one or more nails in 10% of cases, sometimes without involving the skin surface. If all nails are abnormal and nowhere else is affected It is called twenty nail dystrophy.
The nail plate tends to thin and may become grooved and ridged. The nail may darken, thicken up or ift off the nail bed (onycholysis). Sometimes the cuticle is destroyed and forms a scar (pterygium). The ails may shed, stop growing altogether and rarely, completely disappear.



https://www.medicaljournals.se/acta/content/html/10.2340/00015555-1957 https://dermnetnz.org/images/nail-lichen-planus-images

Lichen pianos pigmentosos

In some patients ill-defined oval greyish brown marks appear on the face and neck or trunk and limbs without an inflammatory phase.

In some cases, lichen planus pigmentosus is provoked by sun exposure. In others, It arises in sunprotected sites such as the armpits. It has diffused, reticulate and diffuse patterns.

Lichen planus pigmentosus may be the same or similar to erythema dyschromicum perstans.

Skin biopsy of lichen planus pigmentosus reveals lichenoid features which are absent in a similar condition called idiopathic macular pigmentation.

Actinic lichen pianos

Actinic lichen planus only affects sun exposed sites such as face, neck and the backs of the hands.

Bullous lichen pianos

Bullous lichen planus is rare; blisters appear within lichen planus papules or by themselves, generally on the lower legs.

Skin biopsy

The diagnosis of lichen planus is often made by a dermatologist, oral surgeon or dentist by the typical appearance.

- However, a biopsy is often recommended to confirm or make the diagnosis and to look for cancer.
- The histopathological signs are of a 'lichenoid tissue reaction' affecting the epidermis (the skin cell layer). Typical features include:

Irregularly thickened epidermis

Degenerative skin cells

Liquefaction degeneration of the basal layer of the epidermis

Band of inflammatory cells just beneath the epidermis

Melanin (pigment) beneath the epidermis

Direct staining by immunofluorescent techniques may reveal deposits of immunoglobulins at the base of the epidermis.

Treatment

- Treatment is not always necessary.
- Potent and ultrapotent topical steroids Topical steroids such as clobetasol propionate and betamethasone propionate ointments are generally applied for 4 -6-week courses.
- In the mouth, steroid pastes or inhalant powders may be easier to apply to affected sites. Hydrocortisone foam can be used inside the vagina.
- Steroid injections into affected areas may be useful for localized disease.
- Systemic steroids in extensive cases systemic steroids such as prednisone may be prescribed for a few weeks or longer.
- This will lessen the itch and often clear up the lichen planus completely. However, It may recur later.
- Systemic Retinoids (Acitretin)
- PUVA Photochemotherapy
- Other treatments include long term antibiotics, oral antifungal agents, phototherapy, acitretin, methotrexate and hydroxychloroquine.
- The immune modulating drugs that inhibIt calcineurin, tacrolimus ointment and pimecrolimus cream, may be useful for oral and genital lichen planus.

Pityriasis Rosea

Is an acute exanthematous eruption with a distinctive morphology and often with characteristic of selflimited course.

Initially, a single (Primary or herald) plaque lesion develops usually on the trunk.

1 to 2 weeks later a generalized secondary eruption develops in a typical distribution pattern.

The entire process remits spontaneously in 6 weeks

Reactivation of HHV 6 and 7 is the most probable cause.

Onset - 10-43 years

Etiology - Good evidence that PR is associated with HHV 6 and HHV 7.

Clinical manifestation

A single herald patch precedes the exanthematous phase; which develops over a period of 1-2 weeks. PRURITUS absents in 25%, mild in 50% and severe in 25%

Skin lesion - Herald Patch in 80 % of the patients.

Oval, slightly raised plaque or patch 2-5 cm. Salmon red, fine Collarette scale at periphery, may be multiple.

Exanthem -fine scaling papules and plaques with marginal collarette.

Dull pink or Tawny

Oval scattered, with characteristic distribution with long axes of the oval lesions following the lines of cleavage in a CHRISTMAS TREE pattern.

Lesions confirm to trunk and proximal aspects of the arms and legs.

Atypical pityriasis rosea lesions may be present only on the face and neck. This usually results from irritation and sweating. called Pityriasis rosea irritate.



https://step2.medbullets.com/dermatology/120085/pityriasis-rosea https://patient.info/childrens-health/viral-skin-infections-leaflet/pityriasis-rosea https://www.penndermspecialists.com/pityriasis-rosea/

Pityriasis rosea is a viral rash which lasts about 6-12 weeks.

It is characterized by a herald patch followed by similar, smaller oval red patches that are located mainly on the chest and back.

Pityriasis rosea most often affects teenagers and young adults. However, It can affect males and females of any age.

Systemic symptoms

Many people with pityriasis rosea have no other symptoms, but the rash sometimes follows a few days after a upper respiratory viral infection (cough, cold, sore throat or similar).

The herald patches

The herald patch is a single plaque that appears 1-20 days before the generalized rash of pityriasis rosea.

It is an oval pink or red plaque 2-5 cm in diameter, with a scale trailing just inside the edge of the lesion like a collaret.

Secondary rash

A few days after the appearance of the herald patch, more scaly patches (flat lesions) or plaques (thickened lesions) appear on the chest and back.

A few plaques may also appear on the thighs, upper arms and neck but are uncommon on the face or scalp.

These secondary lesions of pityriasis rosea tend to be smaller than the herald patch. They are also oval in shape with a dry surface.

Like the herald patch, they may have an inner collaret of scaling. Some plaques may be annular (ring-shaped).

Pityriasis rosea plaques usually follow the relaxed skin tension or cleavage lines (Langer's lines) on both sides of the upper trunk.

The rash has been described as looking like a fir tree. It does not involve the face, scalp, palms or soles. Pityriasis rosea may be very itchy, but in most cases, It doesn't itch at all.

Pityriasis rosea clears up in about six to twelve weeks.

Pale marks or brown discoloration may persist for a few months in darker skinned people but eventually the skin returns to its normal appearance.

Second attacks of pityriasis rosea are uncommon (1-3%), but another viral infection may trigger recurrence years later.

Complications

Pityriasis rosea during early pregnancy has been reported to cause miscarriage in 8 of 61 women studied.

Premature delivery and other perinatal problems also occurred in some women.

Atypical pityriasis rosea due to reactivation of herpes 6/7 in association with a drug can also lead to the severe cutaneous adverse reaction, drug hypersensitivity syndrome.

General advice

Bathe or shower with plain water and bath oil, aqueous cream, or other soap substitute.

Apply moisturizing creams to dry skin.

Expose skin to sunlight cautiously (without burning).

Treatment

- Oral antihistamine
- Antipruritic lotion
- Topical Corticosteroid reduce the itch while waiting for the rash to resolve.
- UVB therapy Extensive or persistent cases can be treated by phototherapy.
- Short course of PNLD helpful

To speed up clearance of pityriasis rosea:

- A 7-day course of high-dose acyclovir
- A 2-week course of oral erythromycin has also been reported to help, probably because of a nonspecific anti-inflammatory effect.
- Other studies have found that erythromycin and azithromycin are not effective in pityriasis rosea.

13. BENIGN SKIN TUMOURS

Dermatofibroma

Common benign indolent dermal papule, occurs on the legs of adults. Mostly asymptomatic, may be pruritus and tenderness.

Aetiology unknown

Discrete firm pink dermal papules of 3-5 mm in diameter are typical, most are dome shape but some are depressed, fixed with skin

On palpation, lesions feel firm button

Typical fresh color to pink with define ring of tan to brown pigmentation due to melanin and hemosiderin

DIMPLE Sign- Dimpling (Retract) of the lesion is seen when pinched between two fingers.



https://www.msdmanuals.com/en-sg/home/quick-f acts-skin- sorders /noncancerous-skin-growths/ dermatofibromas

• Surgical excision with primary closure, or cryosurgery with cotton-tip applicator.

Keratoacanthoma

A rapidly evolving tumor composed of keratinizing squamous cells originating in the pilocebaceous

follicles and resolving spontaneously If untreated.

A dome-shaped nodule with central keratotic plug or depression conceals a deep keratinous cavity.

Aetiological factors: HPV 9, 16, 19, 25 & 37 and UV rays, industry pitch and tar

Characteristic is volcano-like lesion, color is slightly red or tan or brown, firm but hard, always appear on sun damage area, skin, cheeks, nose, ears and hands

Like molluscum contagiosum

3 growth phases (1) Proliferative phase (2) Mature phase (3) Resolving phase

Spontaneous healing takes 3 months.

Resolved or progressive into invasive squamous cell carcinoma.

• Excisional biopsy, surgical excision, complete excision with margin or electro- desiccation and curettage

Skin Tags

Common benign soft skin color or tan or brown, round or oval or loose fibrous tissue

pedunculated papilloma

Mainly on axillae, neck, eyelids, and major flexures such as axillae, inframammary, groins. More common in females and obese patients



May be part of Birt-Hogg-Dube Syndrome which also includes Trichodiscomas and

Fibro-folliculoma of the face.

May be associated with Renal Cell Carcinoma, Colonic Adenoma, pulmonary cyst, Ca thyroid.

- Simple snipping with scissors,
- Electrodessication or Cryosurgery or Electro cautery.

Sebaeceous Hyperplasia

Prominently enlarged sebaceous glands of unknown aetiology Common in older person, both sex

Can confuse with Basal Cell Carcinoma

Begins as a 1-2 mm soft pale yellow to skin colored minimally elevated papules, may be solitary but are more commonly multiple and on the forehead, nose and cheeks

> • Treatment is not required but may be cosmetic reason Biopsy, CO₂ laser ablation, electrodesiccation

Syringoma

Benign adenomatous eccrine ducts of sweat glands.

Small, firm, skin colored papules, most common in women, around the eyelids, upper chest, on vulva.

Specific histological pattern: many small ducts in the dermis with comma like tail with the appearance of tadpoles.

• Electrosurgery, cryotherapy, laser therapy

Seborrheic Keratosis (SK) (Dermatosis Papulosa Nigra)

Commonest benign epithelial tumors

Unusual before age 30 years

Most people develop at least one SK in their lifetime Usually asymptomatic, but can be irritation, trauma and bleeding

Multiple lesions, at any site except palms, sole and lips

Flat or raised, sharply demarked, rounded to oval or asymmetric

Surface: smooth, velvety or verrucous

Color: variable including white, pink, brown and black and color may be vary in a single lesion *Characteristic:* **STUCK-**ON appearance and waxy texture

Dermatosis Papulosa Nigra is darkly pigmented seborrheic keratosis of face seen in African –American people and myriad of tiny black lesions.



https://www.firstderm.com/skin-tags/



https://www.l-formulaclinic.co.uk/sebaceous-hyp erplasia



https://www.iskin.com.hk/syringomas-sebaceoushyperplasia-seborrhoeic-keratosis/

https://skinsurgeryclinic.co.uk/treatments/seborrhoeic-keratosis-removal/

STUCCO Keratosis is small white, firm SK more commonly found on the lower legs and ankle of older Caucasian people.

Leser Trelat (sudden onset, numerous SK in association with internal malignancy). Flat SK may mimic pigmented AK

- Biopsy -Acanthosis, hyperkeratosis and papillomatosis
- Cryosurgery is effective for Flat and minimal raised SK, best

Hypo or Hyper pigmentation are possible side effect of removal

Hypertrophic Scar

Exuberant fibrous repair tissues after a cutaneous injury Confined to site of original injury. Papule to nodules. Unknown etiology

• Intralesional injection Triamicinolone 10-40 mg/ml every months, can combine with cryotherapy, or surgical excision

Silicone cream and gel not very effective

Pilar Cyst (Trich Ilemmal Cyst)

A cyst containing keratin originating from epithelial cell of outer root sheet of the hair follicle.

Second most common type of cutaneous cyst, commonest on scalp (90%)

Smooth, mobile, firm and rounded nodule Larger lesion may be lobular and multiple cysts Cyst wall may be fused with the epidermis to form crypt No central punctum

• I&D with LA or elective excision.



https://www.pcds.org.uk/clinical-guidance/pilar-cy st-syn-trichilemmal-cyst

Epidermal Cyst

A firm subcutaneous keratin filled nodule originating from true epidermis

Common anywhere on the skin, on the trunk, post- auricular fold and posterior neck and scrotum

Usually solitary, firm, domed shaped, pale yellowish intradermal or subcutaneous

Mobile but are tethered to the overlying skin through a small punctum that open appear as a comedo.

Multiple cysts occurring on the face, scalp and back shoulder should suspect Gardner Syndrome (rare autosomal dominant associated with Colonic polyposis and adenocarcinoma of the colon)



https://www.researchgate.net/figure/The-epidermoid -cysts-multiplex-of-the-scrotum_fig1_263863774

Cysts on the face may rupture, yellow white keratinous foul- smelling debris extruding from a ruptured

epidermal cyst, and lead to scarring,

• I&D under LA, or complete surgical excision with narrow margins is curative.

Nervous Sebaceus

Congenital lesions of the scalp, head and neck and composed of skin and appendageal components

As a single lesion on the scalp, forehead or post-auricular area A linear to oval, yellowish to flesh coloured plaque

A triad of nervous sebaceous, epilepsy and mental retardation can occur.

Depending on location, It can be quite noticeable and even disfiguring

• Excision of entire lesions is recommended

Choncromermatitis (Nodularis-Helicis)

Is an inflammatory condition of the helical of the ear cartilage Tender papules on the most lateral edge of the helix

Primary lesion is a firm, tender, red to pink papule of 2-4 mm with a central keratotic punctum, which has firm, adherent crust or scale resembling a small cutaneous horn.

• Intralesional steroid, or Surgical removal



https://www.healthline.com/health/nevus-sebaceous



https://www.pcds.org.uk/clinical-guidance/chonder matitis-nodularis-helicis

Clear Cell Acanthoma

A scaly plaque or nodule that has a characteristic accumulation of clear, glycogen containing cells in the epidermis

Solitary, slightly elevated to dome shaped plaque or nodule with an abrupt margin and wafer like scale adherent at the periphery which leaves a moist or bleeding surface when removed.

Characteristically red with vascular puncta and It blanches on diascopy

• Treatment - Excision

Keloid

Feature of hypertrophic scars with added feature of thick, eosinophilic, acellular bands of collagen, but may arise spontaneously without history of injury

May extend in a claw-like fashion far beyond the original injury, may continue to expand in size for decades

Earlobe, shoulder, back, chest

• No treatment is highly effective



https://drclementlo.com/refer/index.php/dermatol ogy-jean-l?view=article&id =192&catid=98



https://www.thenationalskincentre.com/keloid.html

Milium

1-2 mm superficial, white to yellow, keratin containing epidermal cyst.

Can occur at any age, even in infant, small chalk white or yellow papule on the cheek.

Milia arises around the eye or in association with various dermatoses with subepidermal bullae

• Surgical Incision

Digital Myxoid Cyst

Pseudocyst occurring over the distal interphalangeal joint and base of the nail of the finger or toe, often associated with Heberden's node

Solitary cyst, rubbery, translucent.

A clear gelatinous viscous fluid may be extruded.

Older patient >60 years

When the Myxoid cyst is over the nail matrix, a nail plate dystrophy occurs.



https://www.healthline.com/health/myxoid-cyst

• Surgical excision, I&D



pele/

14. VASCULAR TUMORS AND MALFORMATION

HEMANGIOMAS OF INFANCY

Benign red, purple or blue vascular neoplasms, endothelial cell hyperplasia Most common vascular tumor in infancy

Nascent (Early) hemangioma may appear flat and pale white with a few telangiectasia and large dilated blood vessels

Growth phase -they are bright red or blue and feel firm and rubbery Infant with located near the eye, ears and mouth can threaten function of those organs

Infant with located near or on the mandible (Beard distribution) can be associated with glottis hemangiomas

Large segments facial haemangioma can be associated with malformation of other organs (PHACES)

Large perineal haemangioma can be associated with underlying malformation with GI Tract.



https://childrenswi.org/medical-care/ birthmarks-and-vascular-anomalies-center/conditi ons

- Skin Biopsy, should be followed closely to reassure that they are benign, Pulse dye laser, Systemic PNLD 2-5 mg/Kg/day, propanolol 2 mg/kg/day to complicated haemangioma
- Embolization, surgical resection and radiation are used for complicated Haemangioma.

VASCULAR MALFORMATION

Abnormalities of blood and lymphatic vessels due to abnormal development and morphologicies Occurs in normal endothelial cells

Classification

- Vessel types (capillary, venous, arterial, lymphantic, mixed, arteriovenous)
- Flow characteristics (slow flow and fast flow)

Capillary Malformation

Macuar staining occur on eyelids -Angle kiss

Forehead & Nuchal area- Stroke bite

Nevus FlammeusNuchae (Stroke bite, erythema nuchae, salmon patch) occurs in one third of infants on nape of neck and tend to regress spontaneously.

Capillary Haemangioma has remained Stable for years

PORT-WINE Stain: an irregular shaped red or violaceous, macular capillary malformation that is present at birth and never disappear.

Malformation is confined to the skin

Sturge-Weber Syndrome: the association of PWS in the trigeminal

distribution with vascular malformation in the eyes and leptomeningies and superficial calcification of brain.

Klippel-Trenaunary Weber syndrome: have associated with PWS overlying the deeper vascular



https://step2.medbullets.com/dermatology/120083 /port-wine-stain

malformation of soft tissue and bone.

Spider Angioma (Nevus Araneus)

Is an asymptomatic blanchable pink papule due to central dilated arteriole and very fine radial branches

Very common red, focal telangiectatic network of dilated capillaries radiating from a central arteriole (Punctum), is the site of the feeding arterioles with macular radiating telangiectasia vessels.

Most common occur in face, forearms and hands.

Pulsation on the central papule with firm pressure may be associated with hyperestrogenic states such as pregnancy.

Spider angioma arising in childhood and pregnancy may regress spontaneously



0391129088

Treated with Electro or laser surgery

Cherry Angioma

Common asymptomatic bright red to violaceous or even black, domed vascular lesions or occurring

as myraids of tiny red popular spots simulating petechiae.

Discrete, size 0.5-5 mm, smooth dome shape to polypoid papules, early lesions are cherry red and deeper larger lesions are maroon.

Primarily on the trunk. First appears at about age of 30 and increase in number over the years.

Associated with Bromide exposure, Sulpha mustard gas and glycol ether

A sudden appearance may warrant for Malignancy

Electrosurgery or laser or Cryosurgery

Angiokeratoma

Is scaly papules coloured red to purple, formed by dilation of superficial blood vessels and epidermal thicken OR

Vascular tumor with keratotic elements. Capillaries and post capillaries venules are packed into the post papillary body just beneath and bulging into the epidermis.

Solitary lesion and dark violaceous to black often keratotic papules or small plaques hard upon palpitation.

Clinical Variants

- Angiokeratoma of Fordyce
- Angiokeratoma of solitary or Papular
- Angiokeratoma of Mibelli
- Angiokeratoma of Corporis Diffusum



https://contourclinics.com.au/treatment/cherry-angi oma-removal

https://hemedicalclinic.com/scrotal-angiokeratoma/

Angiokeratoma of Fordyce

Most common Asymptomatic multiple angiokeratomasymmetrically distributed on the scortum and vulva Associated with Hernia, varicosities of legs, varicole Vulvular angiokeratoma may develop a younger age in pregnant woman

Angiokeratoma of solitary or Papular

Occur equally in both sex Common single lesion on the legs of young adult Papular angiokeratoma are larger than other variants



https://www.researchgate.net/figure/Vascular-papu les-of-angiokeratoma-of-Fordyce-on-the-scrotumof-the-same-patient_fig1_7194136



https://www.thedermatologyclinic.london/skin-con ditions/angiokeratoma-treatment-london/

Angiokeratoma of Mibelli

Pink to dark, symmetric group, multiple, occurring on the backs of finger and toes and It is autosomal dominant Lesions are more common on female

Angiokeratoma of Corporis Diffusum (Fabry Disease)

It is X-link recessive inborn error of metabolism Boys are more affective Deep red to maroon, blue to black papule 0.5 - 1.0 cm

• Symptoms of Fabry disease should be refer, Eye and CNS consultation are need, can be treated with Electrosurgery, Laser surgery



https://healthjade.net/angiokeratoma/



https://www.sciencephoto.com/media/642200/vie w/fabry-s-disease

Pyogenic Granuloma

It is an exophytic dome shaped papule made up of proliferating capillaries separated by thick fibrous bands and surrounded by epithelial collarette

Not infectious, followed by minor *trauma,lobular haemangioma* Cause is unknown

Yellow to deep red glistering, dome shaped to polypoid, papules 3-10 mm, grow rapidly, bleed profusely, not larger than 1 cm, can fall off and regrowth, common on head and neck and finger

- Most resolve with a single crateriform scar, recurrent occur
- Biopsy, Multiple PG should be referred, electrodesiccation and curettage



https://www.ebmedicine.net/content.php?action=s howPage&pid=351

VENOUS MALFORMATION

Usually are blue and sponge appearance

Tend to be enlarge in valsava maneuver

Venous malformation appears at birth as flat, irregular, red to purple patches. Later, they may become popular, simulating a cobblestone surface

Phleboliths (small calcified nodules) commonly found and are felt as hard nodules

Venous Lake

Is a dilated vein that occurs on the sun damage areas as a small blanchable dark blue to purple of elderly patients is a dark blue violaceous asymptomatic soft papule resulting from a dilated venule,

occurring on the face, lips and ears of patients

Soft papule of 2-10 mm that blanches with pressure

Multiple lesions may be present on the mucosa surface of the lips,

especially on lower lateral vermilion border

Occur after 50 years of age

Due to dark blue or black colour, lesions can confuse with nodular melanoma or pyogenic granuloma

• Treated with electro surgery, laser

LYMPHATIC MALFORMATION



https://healthjade.net/venous-lake/

Small (microscopic) and large (macrocystic) channel and can be localized or diffuse Lymphangioma circumscripta (micro) and Cystic hygroma (macro)

Lymphangioma

Lymphatic malformation

Lymphangioma circumscripta is malformation (like frog spawn), microcystic lymphatic like confluent grouped vesicles filled with a serosanguineous fluid

Present at birth or appears in infancy or childhood

May occurred as solitary or cover large areas and associated with Capillary venous lymphatic malformation



https://medicoapps.org/m-lymphangioma/

• Treated with sclerotherapy

CAPILLARY/VENOUS MALFORMATIONS

Deep vascular malformation characterized by soft, compressible deep tissue swelling lesions are not apparent at birth but become so during childhood

Manifest as soft tissue swelling, dome shape or multinodular and slow-flow-lesions They are easily compressed and filled promptly when pressure is released

May be complicated by ulceration and bleeding, scaring and secondary infection No satisfactory Treatment

Variants

Vascular Hamartomas Klippel-Trenaunay Syndrome Blue Rubber Bleb Nevus Marfucci Syndrome Parkes-Weber Syndrome

KAPOSI'S SARCOMA

Malignant of lymphatic endothelial cells associated with y Herpes virus, HHV 8

4 Clinical Variants: (1) Clinical, (2) Endemic, (3) Immunosuppression associated and (4) Transplant associated

Classical Kaposi's Sarcoma is sporadic and slowly progressive and occurs in 50-70 years old man

People receiving immunosuppressive therapy and organ transplant recipients are risk for Kaposi's sarcoma

A variety of morphologies (macules, patches, papules, plaque, nodules) and the lesions can vary depending on clinical variant

Early Kaposi's sarcoma nodules can feel soft, older nodules can feel firm

Lesions in AIDS associated KS have a predilection for the face the tarso and oral mucosa. Also linked with systemic involvement

Immunosuppression associated Kaposi's sarcoma is morphologically similar to classical Kaposi's sarcoma

Classical Kaposi's sarcoma starts with purple patches on the distal lower extremities that progress proximally and become multifocal. Individual lesions darken and thicken becoming brown and verrucous

Most affected organs are lymph node, GIT and lungs

• Skin Biopsy, CD 4 count, combination therapy with surgery, radiation and chemotherapy

TELANGIECTASIAS

Common, asymptomatic, dilation of capillaries, venules and arterioles within the sub- papillary plexus. Primary telangiectasis

Hereditary Haemorrhagic Telangiectasia (Osler-Rendu-Weber Syndrome)

Hereditary, A Dominant in which Telangiectasia are found on mucosa, skin, and internal organ Earliest sign - recurrent epistasis in child Prominent in tongue, palate, nasal mucosa, palms, sole and nail beds At risk for life threatening

Hereditary Benign Telangiectasia

Hereditary, A dominant No associate with bleeding



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Kaposi%27s_sarcoma



https://www.msdmanuals.com/professional/hematol ogy-and-oncology/bleeding-due-to-abnormal-blood -vessels /hereditary-hemorrhagic-telangiectasia

Ataxia Telangiectasia (Louis Bar Syndrome)

A recessive with progressive cerebellar ataxia, Telangiectasia and immune dysfunction Cardial sign – Ataxia appear on conjunctiva, face, and upper trunk Cafe-au-laIt macules, skin ulcerations, poikiloderma, premature gray hair, dry skin, scleroderma skin changes, eczema Generalized Essential Telangiectasia First appear on legs, then gradually progressively, symmetrically extend to involve the trunk and arm



https://www.contemporarypediatrics.com/view/at axia-telangiectasia

Unilateral Nevoid Telangiectasia

Trigeminal (V), III and IV cervical nerves are the most commonly affected dermatomes

Secondary Telangiectasia

Are seen in BCC, Rosacea, collagen vascular disease, corticosteroid atrophy, chronic graft versus host disease

Also occur in CREST and SCLERODERMA as a T MATS

The skin of the fingers feels WAXY, and Raynaud's phenomenon, cutaneous calcinosis and ulceration may be present.

Dilated dermal vessel with diameter of 1 mm or less, not palpable and easily blanched

Occur in occult liver disease

Cosmetically, T may be ablated with Laser surgery or pinpoint electro surgery.

15. PRECANCEROUS LESIONS

Actinic Keratosis (AK) or Solar Keratosis

Hyperkeratotic lesions occurring in sun exposed adult skin Malignant potential, precursor or early lesion of SCC, only 10% of AK change to SCC only 1% per annum. Single or multiple, discrete, dry, rough, adherent scaly lesion Face, head, neck and dorsal hand and temples Solar keratosis is usually a collection of telangiectatic capillaries 1-2 mm, dry, rough, adherent and often yellow or brown colour scales. AK are rough sandpaper like red to pink patches and papules



Treatment

- Cryothreapy, cautery or diathermy,
- Topical 5 fluorouracil is useful bd x 3-4 weeks, (or) Imiquimod twice weekly for 16 weeks (or)
- Topical retinoids,
- Diclofenac gel
- Laser surgery
- Facial peel
- Photodynamic therapy
- Systemic -Acitretion or isotretinion, Suncream, Low fat diet
- Avoidance of sunlight

Arsenical Keratosis

Appear after the chronic arsenic ingestion, have a potential to become invasive SCC

• Treatment -same as Actinic Keratosis

Bowen's Disease

A persistent, progressive, non-elevated, red, scaly or crusted plaque which is due to an intradermal Ca,

and is potentially malignant, intraepidermal SCC

Occur anywhere on the skin surface or mucosal surface

Typically solitary, raised red or pink patches or plaques with dry adherent scales

Full thickness replacement of epidermis with tumour cells

Erythroplasia of Querat (Penile Bowen's disease) is a variant in situ of gland penis

- Cryotherapy, Curettage and Excision,
- Topical chemotherapy with 5 Fluorouracil cream



https://healthjade.com/bowens-disease/

https://skintechmedical.com.au/actinic-keratosisatistics-risks-and-treatments

Cutaneous Horn

Appearance of an animal horn with a popular or nodular base and a keratotic cap of various shape and length

Represent hypertrophic solar keratosis Face, ear, dorsum of hands, forearm and shins White, black, or yellow, straight, curved or spiral shape

Surgical excision

Cutaneous T Cell Lymphoma

Helper T cell lymphoma of the skin May invade into lymph nodes and internal organ Sezary Syndrome is leukaemic form of T cell lymphoma Stages: (a) Patch stage (b) Plaque stage and (c) Tumour stage (d) End stage

Leukoplakia is a descriptive clinical term, not a definitive diagnosis Leucoplakia begins as a single small well-defined, translucent to

Referral to dermatologist or Oncologist

Leukoplakia



https://stamfordskin.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/ 02/2-600x338.jpg



ohemakey.com/wp-content/uploa 1_En_12_Fig2_HTML.jpg?w=960



https://www.healthline.com/health/leukoplakia



recurrent sunburn of the lips, predominantly on the lower lip

Oral hairy leukoplakia is seen in advanced HIV patient

Erythroplasia Of Queyrat

white, slightly elevated papule or patch

SCC is situ of the gland penis or prepuce, penile shaft also occurs Single or multiple, fixed, well circumscribed, erythematous, moist, velvety or smooth, red surface plaques on the gland penis.

Treat with 5% 5FU cream 3-12 weeks



https://www.pagepress.org/journals/index.php/dr/art icle/view/8566/8321

16.CUTANEOUS MELANOMA

Two types

- Dysplastic nevomelanotic nevi
- Congenital nevomelanotic nevi

Dysplastic nevomelanotic nevi

Specialized type of acquired, circumscribed, pigmented lesions that represent disordered proliferation of atypical melanocyte

Arise DE NOVO or as part of compound melanocyte nevus

Appears OUT OF STEP, e.g., a mix of large and small flat and raised tan and very dark lesions

• Treat with Surgical Excision

Congenital nevomelanotic nevi

Pigmented lesions of the skin usually present at birth Size may vary, Benign Giant congenital nevomelanocytic nevus

CLASSIFICATION OF MELANOMA

De noy melanoma	(a) Melanoma in situ		
	(b) Letingomaligna melanoma		
	(c) Superficial spreading melanoma		
	(d) Nodular melanoma		
	(e) Acral lentiginous melanoma		
	(f) Melanoma of mucous membrane		
	(g) Demoplastic melanoma		
Menoma arising from precursors	(a) Melanoma arising in Dysplastic nevomelanocytic nevi		
	(b) Melanoma arising in congenital nevomelanocytic nevi		
	Melanoma arising in common NMN		

Major risk factors for Melanoma (TRANSK)

Atypical (Dysplastic) >5 Common moles (numerous >50) Red hair and freckling (often these persons have few or no moles) Inability to tan (Skin photo types 1 and 2) Sunburn - Severe bum especially before age 14 Family History of melanoma

Risk factor for development of melanoma

Genetic markers Skin Type I/II Family History of dysplastic nevi or melanoma Personal history of melanoma UV Number >50 and size >5 mm Congenital nevi Number of dysplatic nevi >5 Dysplatic melanocytic nevus syndrome

SIX SIGNs of Melanoma (ABCDE RULE)

- A = Asymmetry in shape
- B = Border is irregular
- C = Colour is not uniform, mottled
- D = Diameter is usually large
- E = Elevation is always present and is irregular



https://sa1s3optim.patientpop.com/assets/images/provider/photos/2306654.jpg

Major type of melanoma

Туре	Frequency %	Site	Radial growth	Vertical growth
Superficial spreading	70	Any site	Mth -years	Delayed
Nodular	15	Any site	No	immediate
Letingo MM	5	Face neck hand	Years	Much delayed
Acral Lentigious M	5-10	Palm sole	Mth-years	Early but recognition delayed

Melanoma in situ

Also called Letingo Maligna. Large very irregular and asymmetric macule, striking variegation of pigmentation (tan, brown, dark brown)

Letingomaligna melanoma

Focal popular and nodular areas signal a switch from the radial to the vertical growth phase and invasion into the dermis.

Superficial spreading melanoma

The pigment variegation of SSM is similar to, but more striking than, the variety of color present in most LMM. The color display is a mixture of brown, dark brown, black, blue and red with slate gray or gray regions in areas of tumor regression.

Nodular Melanoma

Uniformly elevated and presents as a thick plaque or an exophytic polypoid or dome shaped lesions. Acral lentiginous melanoma

Special presentation of cutaneous melanoma; palm, sole, fingernail or toe nailbed.

Melanoma of Mucous Membrane

Major site are the vulva and vagina, nasal and oral cavity

Demoplastic melanoma

Connective tissue proliferation. A flat skin color nodule with a speck of brown in the center That appeared on the forehead. Total excisional biopsy, incisional or punch biopsy, surgical removal, chemothreapy, radiational therapy



https://www.your-doctor.net/derma_atlas/images/D esmoplastic_melanoma.jpg

NEVI

Nevi are benign skin tumors composed of melanocyte derived nervous cells.

After 30 years of age

Melanocyte nevi are composed of organized cluster of nerve cells arranged at various levels in skin

- Junctional Nevi
- Nevus Spilus
- Blue Nevi
- Recurrent Nevi
- Intradermal Nevi
- Compound Nevi
- Halo Nevi



• Spitz Nevus

Junctional Nevi

Flat or slightly raised brown to tan macules, most commonly found in Children

Nevi of palms, soles, genitalia and mucosa are junctional nevi.

Nevus Spilus

Is a sharply define tan to brown background patch similar to cafe-aulaIt spot The appearance is reminiscent of a chocolate chip cookie



https://upload.medbullets.com/topic/112094/imag es/screen%20shot%202017-12-06%20at%2011.21. 13%20am.jpg



https://upload.wikimedia.org/wikipedia/commons/th umb/4/4e/Naevus-spilus.jpg/450px-Naevus-spilus.jpg

Blue Nevi

Solitary bluish macules or papules most commonly on head and neck, or on buttock Commonly present in early childhood

Recurrent Nevi

Occur at the site of a previously partially removed nerves

Intradermal Nevi

Papules, most commonly elevated, fleshy and slightly or moderately pigmented, dark to brown to normal skin color.

Seen mainly after the adolescent

Nests and cords of nerves cells are found.



https://media.cheggcdn.com/media/e2f/e2f7b237 -ad3e-4154-9cda-f284215bde67/dp0204a07g001-14AF06131D945877453.jpg?height=160



https://media.sciencephoto.com/image/c0402849/80 0wm/C0402849-Intradermal_nevus.jpg

Compound Nevi

Slightly or markedly raised pigmented papules, surface may be smooth or slightly papillomatous, center tend to be more heavily pigmented than peripheral.

Halo Nevi

Spitz Nevus

ABCDE are useful grade

Occur primarily during adolescent. A pre-existing nevus Develops a surrounding rim of hypopigmentation that Heralds the gradual disappearance of the nevus over several month

Spindle cell nevus is usually a reddish pink, dome shape, smooth



https://uploads-ssl.webflow.com/5e9e5f7613f2f32 3fec92b3f/60f8cbc20d271d64567d9a24_compoun d_naevus-sq-p-800.jpeg



https://www.chandigarhayurvedcentre.com/wp-con tent/uploads/2021/10/1-26.jpg



google.com/search?q=Spitz+Nevus&tbm

Mongolian Spot

surface, most occur on face, scalp or legs

Suspected nevi should be BIOPSY

Congenital gray-blue macular lesions characteristically located on the lumbosacral area but can occur on back, scalp or anywhere on the skin. Underlying pathology is dispersed spindle shapes melanocytes within the dermis. (Dermalmelanocytosis)

Pigments cells have been interrupted in their migration from the neural crest to the epidermis

May disappear in early childhood



https://media.springernature.com/m312/springerstatic/image/chp%3A10.1007%2F978-1-4614-665 4-3_6/MediaObjects/310620_1_En_6_Fig4_HTML.j pg?as=webp

Nevus of Ota

Pigmentary disorder, very common in Asia

Pigments can be quite subtle or marked disfiguring consists of a motted dusky admixture of blue and brown hyperpigmentation of skin.

The blue hue results from the present of ectopic melanocytes in the dermis.



https://sifsof.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/03/Nev us-of-Ota-and-Laser-Treatment.jpg

It can occur in the conjunctiva, sclera and tympanic membrane May be bilateral, congenital, not hereditary

• Treatment with laser

Becker Nevus

Is asymptomatic clinical lesion that is a pigmented hamartoma Only in males and in all races, before 15 years of age

Predominantly a macule but with popular vertucous surface not like the lesion of acanthosis nigricans

Common location is shoulders and back. The increase hair growth follows the onset of pigmentation and localized to the areas that are pigmented.

Hypertrichosis can be of cosmetic concern.



https://healthjade.net/wp-content/uploads/2020/0 4/Beckers-nevus.jpg

17. SKIN CANCER

Basal Cell Carcinoma (BCC)

Most common cancer in humans Caused by UVR, PTCH gene mutations Derived from the basal layer of the keratino- cytes of the epidermis Rarely can metastasize

Different clinical types

- Nodular bcc (most common)
- Pigmented bcc
- Superficial bcc
- Morphea form bcc
- Sclerosing bcc (cicatricial)
- Ulcerating bcc (rodent)



https://www.skindoctor.co.za/images/basal_cell _carcinoma.jpg

In general: pink, violaceous or pearly white papules or nodules, frequently bleed, become erosive, crusted and ulcerated at center

Nodular bcc: papule or nodule, translucent or pearly, skin coloured or reddish, smooth surface with telangiectasia, well define and firm.

Pigmented bcc: may be brown, blue or black. Smooth, glistening surface, hard, firm, stippled pigmentation can be seen in any type of bcc.

Superficial multicentric bcc: appear as a thin plaque, pink or red, characteristic - fine thread border and telangiectasia.

Ulcerating bcc ulcer: often cover with a crust with rolled border (rodent ulcer) which against is translucent, pearly, smooth with telangiectasia and firm.

Morphea and sclerosing bcc: the most subtle and least common form of bcc.

Both forms tend to occur aggressively.

Morphea form: waxy, firm, flat or slightly raised and either pale white or yellowish.

Sclerotic bcc: with a flat and atrophic scar like central patch and other more elevated nodule and hemorrhagic crust within.

Treatment

- Excision with primary closure, skin flaps of grafts
- Cryosurgery
- Electro surgery for very small lesion and not in the danger sites
- In the danger area such as nasolabial area, around the eye, in the ear canal mohs surgery (microscopically controlled surgery) is the best.
- Radiation is alternate
- Topical 5 fu ointment and imiquimod cream 5 times a week x 6 weeks

Basal Cell Nevous Syndrome (Gorlin Syndrome)

Autosomal dominant condition of BCC and multiple associated abnormalities of the skin, skeleton and CNS

Appear in early in life of BCC and palmar pitting

Caused by gene mutation

Skeletal abnormalities: odontogenic cysts, frontal bossing, bifid ribs, kyphosclerosis, kymphosis, sclerosis

CNS: calcification of falx cerebri and development of medulloblastoma, blindness, deafness and seizures

Treatment Option: Cryotherapy, Electrosurgery

Squamous Cell Carcinoma



3.jpg

It is invasive, primary cutaneous malignancy arising from keratinocytes of the skin and mucosal surface, full thickness involvement

Most on face, head, neck or hands of elderly, arise from Actinic Keratosis may arise de novo

Second most common cancer, 20% of all cutaneous Ca, SCC in sun exposed areas.

Appearance of hypertrophic Actinic Keratosis

Typical: pink to dull red, firm, poorly define dome shape nodule with an adherent yellow white scale

Palpation of LN is important

Treatment: Mohs micrographic surgery, Radiation therapy

Paget's Disease of The Breast

Intraductal Ca of the breast, more common cutaneous lesion of Breast Cancer

Misdiagnosed with NIPPLE ECZEMA

pink to red, sharply demarcated irregular shaped scaly patch or plaque on the aerola or nipple

The process appears eczematous but will not response to topical steroid

The nipple, aerola and surrounding breast may be involved Most is unilateral, regional LN rarely palpable

Refer to Breast surgeon, 5year survival rate >90%



https://upload.medbullets.com/topic/121592/image s/squamous%20cell%20carcinoma.jpg



https://assets.nhs.uk/nhsuk-cms/images/C0131062. width-1534.jpg

Extramammary Paget's Disease

Intraepidermal malignancy involving the anogenital or axillary skin, occur in areas of apocrine glands

A red to white patch or plaque is sharply demarcated and has irregular borders

The lesions may appear inflamed, eczematous or lichenified

Light scale to heavy crusting erosion and serious exudate may occur Regional LN may palpable

Urogenital and rectal Ca is the most common origin

Skin Biopsy, Mohs surgery, Radiotherapy and 5% imiquimod cream



https://www.nejm.org/na101/home/literatum/publi sher/mms/journals/content/nejm/2017/nejm_2017. 376.issue-17/nejmicm1610755/20180122/images/i mg_large/nejmicm1610755_f1.jpeg

18. PHOTOSENSIVITY AND PHOTO-INDUCED DISORDERS

Skin Reaction to Sunlight

Abnormal response to sunlight, within minutes, hours, or days of exposure and lasting up to weeks, months and even long.

3 broad types of photosensitivity

- Sunburn type, erythema, edema, and bullae.
- Rash type Macules, papules, or plaques
- Urticarial type, occur in erythropoietic porphyria

Chronic photosensitivity: Chronic repeated sun exposure over time result in polymorphic skin changes such as dermatoheliosis or photoaging

UnIt of measurement of sunburn is the minimum erythema dose (MED) - which is the minimum UV exposure that produce a clearly marginated erythema in the irradiated site 24 hour after a single exposure.

Skin Phototypes

SPT I - Pale white, do not Tan
SPT II - White, Tan with difficulty, bum easily
SPT III - White, Tan easily but may bum initially
SPT IV - Light brown/olive, Tan easily, hardly bum
SPT V - Brown, Tan easily, usually do not bum
SPT VI Black, become darker, do not bum

- Skin Reaction to Sunlight Phototoxicity (Sunburn) Photoallergy (Drug or chemical induced) Idiopathic (Polymorphic light reaction) Metabolic and nutritional DNA deficiency photodermatoses Photoexacerbated dermatoses Chronic Photogamage Photo aging Solar lentigo Actinic keratosis Skin cancer



Acute Sun Burns (Damage)

Acute delayed and transient inflammatory response of normal skin after exposure to UVR from sunlight or artificial sources

By nature, It is a phototoxic reaction

Sunburn is characterized by erythema, If severe by vesicles and bullae, edema, Tenderness and Pain.

Prevention:

Avoid sun bathing between 11AM to 2 PM, UV screening clothing, Sun- screen: lotion, gel, cream,

Treatment:

• Topical cool wet dressing, Topical CS, Systemic - Acetylsalicylic

Drug/Chemical Induced Photosensivity

Two mechanism (1) phototoxic reaction (2) Photoallergic reaction (Type 4 Reaction)

Phototoxic reaction

is an irritant (Toxic) contact dermatitis or sunburn. Phototoxic reactions are photochemical reaction leading to skin pathology is an allergic eczematous contact dermatitis.

Photoallergic reaction

photoallergen is formed that initiates an immunologic response and manifests in skin as Type 4 immunologic Reaction)

PHOTOTOXIC DRUG / CHEMICAL INDUCED - PHOTOSENSITIVITY

It is adverse reaction of the skin that results from simultaneous exposure to certain drugs (injection, ingestion, or topical application) and to UVR or visible light.

These chemicals may be therapeutic, cosmetic, industrial or agricultural

There are two types of reaction:

Systemic phototoxic dermatitis: systemically exposed to a photosensitizing agent (Drug) and UVR Local phototoxic dermatitis: topically exposed to the photosensitizing agent and UVR Both are exaggerated sunburn response (Erythema, edema, vesicles and bullae)

Systemic phototoxic dermatitis

Systemic phototoxic dermatitis occurs in all exposed site, local phototoxic dermatitis only in topical application sites.

Systemic Phototoxic Agents

Antianxiety drugs Anticancer drug Antidepressants Antifungals Antimalarials Antimicrobials Antipsychotics Cardiac Medications Diuretics

Formation of toxic photoproducts such as free radicals or reactive oxygen species such as singlet oxygen.



https://media.springernature.com/m312/springer-s tatic/image/chp%3A10.1007%2F978-3-319-40221-5_15-2/MediaObjects/322814_0_En_15-2_Fig6_HT ML.jpg?as=webp



s://uploads-ssl.webflow.com/5f60c8810f2457c2c942df3e/5 9b02bc3dd9ad84f09f0202_barbara2-300x252.jpeg

The principal site of damage is nuclear DNA or cell membranes. The action spectrum is UVA. An exaggerated sunburn after solar or UVR exposure, that normally would not elicIt a sunburn in that particular individual. Occur within hours after exposure, with some agents such as psoralens after 24 hours.

Early lesions: exaggerated sunburn, erythema, edema, vesicles and bulla formation.

Pseudo porphyria can occur in some drugs

Nail: subungual hemorrhagic

Pigmentation: Marked brown epidermal pigmentation in some cases.

Topical Phototoxic Dermatitis

Contact or therapeutic application of a photosensitizer followed by UVA irradiation

Common topical are Rose Bengal, Fluorescein, furocoumarins and Tar.

Symptoms are smarting, stinging and burning rather than itching.



https://www.healthline.com/health/skin-disorders/ phytophotodermatitis

Phytophoto dermatitis

Is an inflammation of the skin caused by contact with certain plants during recreational or occupational exposure to sunlight.

The inflammatory response is a phototoxic reaction to photosensitizing chemicals in several plants.

Common types of PPD are due to exposure to Limes, Celery and Meadow grass

Acute erythema, edema, vesicles and bullae. Smarting, sensation of sunburn, pain, later pruritus. Wet dressing and topical Corticosteroid cream

PHOTOALLERGIC DRUG/CHEMICAL INDUCED PHOTOSENSITIVITY

This result from interaction of a photo allergen and UVA.

In sensitized individuals' exposure to a photo allergens and sunlight results in a pruritic eczematous eruption confined to exposed sites.

In most patients the eliciting drug/chemical has been applied topically but systemic elicitation also occurs.

Some topical photo allergens

Sunscreens: (Para-Aminobenzoic Acid), (PABA), Benzophenones

Fragrances: 6 Methylcoumarin

Antibacterial: Dibromosalicylanilide

Antifungal: Buclosamide

Others: Chlorpromazine

Corticosteroid cream

In severe case - Azathioprine and CS or oral cyclosporine



https://slideplayer.com/slide/10392080/

Polymorphus Light Eruption

A group of heterogenous idiopathic acquired acute recurrent eruption characterized by delayed abnormal reactions to UVR.

Manifested by varied lesions, including erythema, macules, papules and vesicles. The eruption is monomorphus

Most frequent morphologic types are popular and papulovesiclar eruptions

Treatment:

- Sunblock
- Beta carotene 60 mg tds for 2 weeks
- Oral prednisolone 20 mg/d two day before and 2 days after the exposure.
- **PUVA** phototherapy
- Narrow band UVB 311 mm

Solar Urticaria

Uncommon sunlight induced whealing confined to exposed body sites

Eruption occurs within minutes of exposure and resolves in a few hours.

- Very disabling and sometimes life-threatening immediate type 1 hypersensitivity response to cutaneous ± circulating photo allergens
- Multiple phototherapy sessions in low but increasing doses on the same day
- Oral immunosuppressive agents
- Prevention: sun avoidance, sunscreen

METABOLIC PHOTOSENSITIVITY

Porphyria cutanea tarda

Mostly in adult

Do not present with characteristic photosensitivity but with complaints of fragile skin, vesicles and bullae particularly on the dorsa of the hands after minor trauma

Confirmed by the presence of a pinkish-red fluorescence in the urine when examined with wood lamp

Do not have acute life-threatening attacks

Tense bullae and erosion, normal appearing skin, slow heal to form pink to atrophic scars, milia on dorsa of hands and feet, nose, forehead or scalp

Purple red suffusion (heliotrope) of central facial skin.

Brown hypermelanosis diffuse on exposed areas.

Scleroderma like changes



http://www.yogavanahill.com/uploads/images/orgin al/b742d61852e9f63512583caaa005b0d4.jpg



https://dermnetnz.org/assets/Uploads/reactions/sola r-urticaria1__ProtectWyJQcm90ZWN0II0_FocusFillWz I5NCwyMjIsIngiLDFd.jpg



light-eruption

Management

- Avoid ethanol, stop drugs that could be inducing Porphyria Cutanea Tarda
- Phelotherapy is done by removing 500 ml of blood at weekly or biweekly intervals
- until the Hb is decreased to 10 gm.
- Low dose chloroquine

Variegate Porphyria

Is a serious autosomal dominant of heme biosynthesis Skin lesion similar to PCT Acute attack of abdominal pain, neuropsychiatric manifestation

Erythropoietic protoporphyria

Hereditary metabolic disorder

Characterized by an acute sunburn like photosensitivity

Symptoms occur rapidly within minutes of sun exposure, and consist of stinging and burning Skin signs are erythema, edema, and purpura.

• There is no treatment.

1. CHRONIC PHOTODAMAGE

TYPE OF SKIN DAMAGE FROM EXPOSURE TO UVR

- (a) Wrinkles (Premature aging of skin and Photoaging)
- (b) Freckles/Sun spot
- (c) Sun Tan
- (d) Eye damage

Wrinkles

UVA penetrate deep into our skin and damage the collagen UVA break down the collagen structure which result in wrinkles Once collagen is damage, It cannot rebuild itself which results in wrinkles. Up to 80% of skin aging is by the Sun

Freckles (ephelides)

- Freckles and sun spot are sign of skin damage
- small, 1-2 mm, sharply defined macular lesions of uniform color, most often found on face, neck, chest and arms
- Subsequent increase in melanization, freckles which result from increase melanin production
- As a result of too much sun exposure
- Found on face, legs, and buttock of hand

Sun Tan (Brown Spot)

When exposed to sun's ray, our skin melanocytes produce Melanin, the dark pigment that creates a tan.

A Tan of our skin attempt to protect UV rays from doing further damage

Eye Damage

- Cataract
- Retina damage
- Macula damage

Chronic Photodamage

- Photoaging or dermatoheliosis
- Solar lentigo
- Solar Elastosis
- Actinic keratosis



https://i.insider.com/612d4ba712b9cc0019636fb7 width=1136&format=jpeg

Dermatoheliosis (Photoaging)

Repeated solar injuries over many years, a polymorphic response of various components of the skin to prolonged and or excessive sun exposure

Severity depends upon the duration and intensity of sun exposure and on indigenous skin colour and the capacity to the skin tan

Lesions: A combination of atrophy (of epidermis), hypertrophy (of elastosis), telangiectasis, papillary dermis due to spotty depigmentation and hyperpigmentation on light exposed areas. Skin appears wrinkled, wizened, leathery, PREMATURE AGED. Both fine, cigarette paper like and deep furrow like wrinkle; skins is waxy, popular with a yellowish hue.

Solar lentigines: macular hypopigmentation Guttate hypomelanosis <3 mm diameter

Treat with Tretinion in lotions, gels, and cream, Topical Tazarotene, OR 5 FU

Solar Lentigo/Lentigines

Is a circumscribed 1-3 cm brown macule resulting from a localized proliferation of melanocytes due

to acute or chronic exposure to sunlight. As large as 5 cm.

Light yellow or light brown or dark brown. Vary in color from light yellow to dark brown and them often a variegated appearance

Multiple lesions usually arise in sun exposed areas.

Macule, 1-3 cm, hyper pigmented, well circumscribed lesions on sun exposed surfaces of the skin

The face, hands, forearms, chest, back and shins are the most common location eruption after acute or chronic UV exposure.

>40 years

Called Liver spot, tend to become more numerous with repeated sun exposure and with advancing age

Result from a local proliferation of Basal melanocytes and subsequent increase in melanization, differing from freckles which result from increase melanin production

Systemic Disorder

Treatment - CRYOTHREAPY or laser surgery

Not more than 10 sec of Nitrogen therapy should not be used.

Peutz Jeghers Syndrome

(GI Hamartomas, Buccal, lip, perioral or digital macules: onset at birth or early childbirth.)

https://doctorhoogstra.com/en/wiki/lentigo-solar/

lisher/mms/journals/content/nejm/2012/nejm_20 12.366.issue-16/nejmicm1104059/production/ima ges/img_medium/nejmicm1104059_f1.jpeg





Leopard Syndrome

Multile Lentigines ECG abnormalities Occular hypertension Pulmonic Stenosis Abnormal geniitalia Retard Growth Deafness of sensorineural

Lamb Syndrome

Multiple Lentigines Atrial and/or mucocutaneous myxomas Mixed neurofibromas, Ephelides Blue nevi

Treatment

Laser therapy: Neodymium-doped yttrium aluminum garmet (ND: YAG) Laser Chemical peels: 30-50% Trichloroacetic acid (Trichlor) Cryothreapy Hydroxyquinone: (Eldoquin Forte) 3-4% topical Retinoid: Tarazotene 0.1% cream, adapalene 0.1% or 0.3% gel Combination of Mequinol & tretinoin: 2% Mequinol + 0.01% Tretinoin

Prevention

Avoid Sun exposure Using sunscreen

Solar Elastosis

UVR break down the collagen and elastic fibres which lies deeper layer of skin (Dermis)

Without Connective tissue, the skin loses its strength and flexibility Called Solar Elastosis which is characterisez by VERTICAL CREASES, deep wrinkle and loose or SAGGING Skin SPF 15 = 1115 = 6.7%93.3 % = UVprotection 6.7% = absorbed with no skin protection 30 % is better SUN protection.



https://www.medwebplus.com/wp-content/uploa /2020/02/Solar-Elastosis.jpg

19. PIGMENTARY DISORDERS

Vitiligo

Vitiligo is a disease that cause areas of skin to lose color, resulting in sports and patches of lighter skin.

Some people develop a few spots. Others have more widespread color loss.

Acquired depigmented cell loss of skin in which melanocytes are lost Persistent white milky patch

1% of population affected

Autoimmune disease, associated with DM, Thyroid diseases. SLE, Rheumatoid, Psoriasis, Alopecia areata, Addison disease and may be drug induced

Theory - Cell injury theory, Autoimmune Theory, auto toxic theory Start with single patch, hypo or hyperpigmentation

Exposed site, injury site

Follow by emotion

Multiple halo nevi

Poliosis

Vitiligo can affect the quality of life.

Type of vitiligo

localized vitiligo – the lesion develops a few spots or patches that appear in one or a few places on your body.

generalized vitiligo -when vitiligo causes scattered patches of color loss on different areas of the body.

universal vitiligo- some people lose most of their skin color. Segmental (unilateral vitiligo)

Mixed (rare type) Unclassified



https://assets.nhs.uk/nhsuk-cms/images/S_1017_vit iligo_M2900105.width-1534.jpg



https://www.medicalnewstoday.com/articles/245081



https://sa1s3optim.patientpop.com/assets/docs/27 6883.jpg

Assessment

VASI (Vitiligo Area Scoring Index) - 6 sites - hand, upper extremities, trunk, lower extremities, feet, neck

Lip-tip - prognosis bad

Diagnosis

Clinically Wood lamp examination Skin biopsy

Treatment

While vitiligo cannot be cured, treatment may restore lost skin color.

Unsatisfactory

General measure

- Wear sun protecting clothing
- seek shade
- Apply sunscreen broad-spectrum protection, water-resistance, and an SPF 30 or higher to all skin not covered by clothing
- Avoid tanning
- There is currently no way to prevent vitiligo.
- If you have vitiligo, the sooner vitiligo treatment starts, the more effective It tends to be.
- Left untreated for years, vitiligo may be difficult to treat.

Topical

- Corticosteroid creams for trunk area up to 3 months, not for face,
- If not progress stop it. Don't use potent corticosteroid for thin skin area.
- Calcinerun inhibitors (pimecrolimus cream) or Tacrolimus ointment for face, neck, armpits and groin
- Phototherapy UBV or UBA
- Not Response Refer

Poikiloderma Of Civatte

- Common, benign skin condition mainly on the sides of the neck, mainly women.
- It characteristically spares the shaded area under the chin. The skin in the affected skin is red-brown with prominent hair follicles.
- The term "poikiloderma" refers to a change in the skin where there is thinning, increased pigmentation and dilation of the fine blood vessels (telangiectasia).



Ref: https://dermnetnz.org/topics/poikiloderma-of-civatte

Civatte was a French dermatologist who first described a common weathering change that affects the skin of the sides and front of the neck.

The exact cause is unknown. Contributing factors are:

Fair skin and accumulated sun exposure

Photosensitising components of cosmetics and toiletries, especially perfumes

Hormonal factors

Treatment

• There is no specific medical treatment for this condition.
- The patient should be educated about avoiding sun exposure and the correct use of sunscreens. The results of treatment may be disappointing in many cases.
- Sun protection including daily broad-spectrum SPF 50+ sunscreen
- Avoid all perfumes on or near the affected area, including those in soap
- Hydroquinone-containing preparations may help fade the pigmentation
- Exfoliants including long term use of alpha hydroxy-acids and /or tretinoin
- Pulsed dye laser (PDL) and intense pulsed light (IPL) treatments seem the best way to reduce the telangiectasia and pigmentation

Melasma

Known as chloasma or mask of pregnancy

It is brown darkening of facial skin or grey brown patch on the face, Dark patches usually occur on the cheeks, forehead, nose and chin.

Occurs by combination of factors

Exposure to sunlight

An increase in female hormones estrogen and progesterone Common in women



s://www.skincarenetwork.co.uk/wp-conter uploads/2017/11/pigmentation.jpg

Triggers factors or Melisma

Sun exposure - this is the most important avoidable risk factor

Pregnancy - in affected women, the pigment often fades a few months after delivery

Hormone treatments - oral contraceptive pills containing oestrogen and/or progesterone, hormone replacement, intrauterine devices and implants are a factor in about a quarter of affected women

Certain medications, scented or deodorant soaps, toiletries and cosmetics - these may cause a phototoxic reaction that triggers melasma, which may then persist long term

Hypothyroidism (low levels of circulating thyroid hormone)

Melasma commonly arises in healthy, non-pregnant adults and persists for decades.

Exposure to ultraviolet radiation (UVR) deepens the pigmentation because It activates the melanocytes to produce more melanin.

Clinical features

Melasma presents as macules (freckle-like spots) and larger flat brown patches. These are found on both sides of the face and have an irregular border. There are several distinct patterns.

Centrofacial pattern: forehead, cheeks, nose and upper lips

Malar pattern: cheeks and nose

Lateral cheek pattern

Mandibular pattern: jawline

Reddened or inflamed forms of melasma (also called erythrosis pigmentosa faciei)

Poikiloderma of Civatte: reddened, photoaging changes seen on the sides of the neck, mostly affecting patients older than 50 years

Brachial type of melasma affecting shoulders and upper arms (also called acquired brachial cutaneous dyschromatosis).

Melasma is sometimes separated into epidermal (skin surface), dermal (deeper) and mixed types. A Wood lamp that emits black light (UVAl) may be used to identify the depth of the pigment.

Type of melasma	Clinical Features	
Epidermal	Well defined border	100 Carl
	Dark brown colour	
	Appear more obvious under black light	
	Responds well to treatment	https://skinbase.co.uk/wp-content/u
		melasma.jpg
Dermal	The most common type	
	Ill-defined border	ALCONT OF STREET
	Light brown or bluish in colour	
	Unchanged under black light	
	Responds poorly to treatment	1 cm
Mixed	Combination of bluish light and dark brown patches	1 mm
	Mixed pattern seen under black light	19 - C - 2
	Partial improvement with treatment	and the second second

oads/2017/09/

Diagnosis of melasma

The characteristic appearance of melasma means diagnosis is usually straightforward and made clinically. Other disorders that may be considered include: Post-inflammatory pigmentation Solar lentigines and other forms of lentigo Drug-induced pigmentation, e.g., due to minocycline Lichen planus Naevus of Ota Guttate hypomelanosis, in which pale spots are prominent Occasionally, skin biopsy may be performed to make or confirm the diagnosis of melasma. Histology varies with the type of melasma. But some degree of each of the following features is usually found. Melanin deposited in basal and suprabasal keratinocytes Highly dendritic (branched) deeply pigmented melanocytes Melanin in the dermis within melanophages Solar elastosis and elastic fiber fragmentation The extent and severity of melasma can be described using the Melasma Area and Severity Index (MASI).

Treatment of melasma

- Melasma can be very slow to respond to treatment.
- Treatment may result in irritant contact dermatitis in patients with sensitive skin, and this can result in post-inflammatory pigmentation.
- Generally, a combination of the following measures is helpful.

General measures

- Discontinue hormonal contraception.
- Year-round sun protection. Use broad-spectrum very high protection factor (SPF 50+) sunscreen applied to the whole face every day. It should be reapplied every 2 hours If outdoors during the summer months.
- Alternatively, or as well, use a make-up that contains sunscreen.
- Wear a broad-brimmed hat.
- Use a mild cleanser, and If the skin is dry, a light moisturizer.
- Cosmetic camouflage (make-up) is invaluable to disguise the pigment.

Topical therapy

- Tyrosinase inhibitors are the mainstay of treatment. The aim is to prevent new pigment formation by inhibiting formation of melanin by the melanocytes.
- Hydroquinone 2-4% as cream or lotion, applied accurately to pigmented areas at night for 2-4 months. This may cause contact dermatitis (stinging and redness) in 25% of patients. It should not be used in higher concentration or for prolonged courses as It has been associated with ochronosis (a bluish grey discoloration).
- Azelaic acid 20% cream, lotion or gel can be used long term, and is safe even in pregnancy. This may also sting.
- Kojic acid is often included in formulations, as It binds copper, required by L-DOPA (a cofactor of tyrosinase). Kojic acid can cause irritant contact dermatitis and less commonly, allergic contact dermatitis.
- Ascorbic acid (vitamin C) also acts through copper to inhibit pigment production. It is well tolerated but highly unstable, so is usually combined with other agents.
- New agents under investigation include mequinol, arbutin and deoxyarbutin (from berries), licorice extract, rucinol, resveratrol, 4-hydroxy-anisole, 2,5-dimethyl-4- hydroxy-3(2H)-furanone and/or N-acetyl glucosamine

Other active compounds used for melasma include:

- Topical corticosteroids such as hydrocortisone. These work quickly to fade the colour and reduce the likelihood of contact dermatitis caused by other agents.
- Soybean extract, which is thought to reduce the transfer of pigment from melanocytes to skin cells (keratinocytes) and to inhibit receptors.
- Tranexamic acid, a lysine analogue that inhibits plasmin and is usually used to stop bleeding. It reduces production of prostaglandins, the precursors of tyrosine.
- Superficial or epidermal pigment can be peeled off. Peeling can also allow tyrosinase inhibitors to penetrate more effectively.
- Topical alpha hydroxy acids including glycolic acid and lactic acid, as creams or as repeated superficial chemical peels, remove the surface skin and their low pH inhibits the activity of tyrosinase.
- Topical retinoids, such as tretinoin (a prescription medicine) are effective. Tretinoin can be hard to tolerate and sometimes causes contact dermatitis. Do not use during pregnancy.

- *Retinoids (e.g., tretinoin 0.05% or 0.1% cream; adapalene 0.1% or 0.3% gel [Differin]) all have some effectiveness.*
- Salicylic acid, a common peeling ingredient in skin creams, can also be used for chemical peels but It is not very effective in melasma.
- The most successful formulation has been a combination of hydroquinone, tretinoin, and moderate potency topical steroid.
- A triple-combination treatment of fluocinonide 0.01% / hydroquinone 4% / tretinoin 0.05% cream (Tri-Luma) showed significantly greater effectiveness at improving dyspigmentation than treatment.
- This has been found to result in improvement or clearance in up to 60-80% of those treated.
- Many other combinations of topical agents are in common use, as they are more effective than any one alone. However, these products are often expensive.

Devices for melasma

- Machines can be used to remove epidermal pigmentation but with caution over-treatment may cause post-inflammatory pigmentation. Patients should be pretreated with a tyrosinase inhibitor (see above).
- Fractional lasers and intense pulsed light (IPL) appear to be the most suitable options. Several treatments may be necessary and post-inflammatory hyperpigmentation may complicate recovery.
- Carbon dioxide or erbium: YAG resurfacing lasers, pigment lasers (Q-switched ruby and Alexandrite devices).
- Mechanical dermabrasion and microdermabrasion should be used with caution in the treatment of melasma.

Outcome of treatment of melasma

- Results take time and the above measures are rarely completely successful.
- Unfortunately, even in those that get a good result from treatment, pigmentation may reappear on exposure to summer sun and/or because of hormonal factors.

Radiation Dermatitis

Skin changes resulting from exposure to ionizing radiation

Reversible effect: are pain, erythema, epilation, suppression of sebaceous gland and pigmentation Irreversible effects: atrophy, sclerosis, telangiectasis, ulceration and radiation induced cancer.

20. IMMUNOBULLOUS DISEASES

Immunobullous diseases refer to a group of blistering skin condition with an autoimmune origin. Immunobullous disorders are not contagious.

The most common types are (1) Pemphigus vulgaris (2) Bullous pemphigoid (3) Pemphigus foliaceus (4) Herpes gestations, and (5) Dermatitis herpetiformis

Depending on the type of skin condition, blisters or erosions may develop on the skin, eyes, or mucous membranes including the mouth.

The chance of developing pemphigus vulgaris or bullous pemphigoid increases with age. Correct diagnosis requires skin biopsies.

Typical treatment consists of oral immunosuppressive therapy including steroids.

Pemphigus Vulgaris

It is a blistering disease, most patients first present with lesions on the mucous membranes such as the mouth and genitals.

Several months later blisters on the skin may develop or in some cases mucosal lesions are the only manifestation of the disease.

The blisters of pemphigus are very shallow and rupture easily, therefore skin erosions rather than frank blisters are usually seen.

Blisters most commonly begin in the mouth (approximately 60% of cases).

The most common mucosal area affected is the inside of the mouth but others include the conjunctiva, oesophagus, labia, vagina, cervix, penis, urethra and anus.

Without treatment, the blisters and painful sores can become widespread,

Common features of oral mucosal pemphigus include:

50-70% of patients get oral lesions

blistering superficial and often appears as erosions

widespread involvement in the mouth

painful and slow to heal

may spread to the larynx causing hoarseness when talking

may make It difficult to eat or drink

Skin lesions appear as thin-walled flaccid blisters filled with clear fluid that easily rupture causing painful erosions.

Erosions in the skin folds may develop into vegetative lesions which are granular and crusty looking (known as pemphigus vegetans).

Pemphigus vulgaris is most common for individuals in their fifth to sixth decades of life.

Diagnosis

A skin biopsy, which shows typical features of rounded- up separated keratinocytes (called acantholytic cells) within the blisters just above



https://assets.nhs.uk/nhsuk-cms/images/C0548786-Pemphigus_vulgaris_copy.width-1534.png



https://www.pcds.org.uk/imager/gallery/clinical/pe mphigus-foliaceus/11736/Pem_fol_1_fee391183f15 cb4d62773032fe0be92d.jpg

the basal layer of the epidermis.

It is confirmed by direct immunofluorescence staining of the skin biopsy sections to reveal antibodies. Circulating antibodies can be detected by a blood test (indirect immunofluorescence test). The level of antibodies fluctuates and may reflect

the effectiveness of treatment.

Assessment

The severity of pemphigus can be scored using PDAI: (Pemphigus Disease Area Index)

Treatment

The aim of treatment is to decrease blister formation, prevent infections and promote healing of blisters and erosions.

Corticosteroid cream

- Oral corticosteroids such as methyl prednisolone or methylprednisolone are the mainstay of treatment
- for controlling the disease. Corticosteroid can clear the blister and sore.
- Mortality rate dropped from 99% to 5-15% by treatment
- They are not a cure for the disease but improve the patient's quality of life by reducing disease activity.
- Higher doses may result in serious side effects and risks.

Other **immunosuppressant medication** is used to minimize steroid use. These include:

- Azathioprine
- Cyclophosphamide
- Dapsone
- Tetracyclines
- Nicotinamide

Biologics: This is a newer treatment option. One biologic, rituximab, appears to offer safe treatment

- Wound care heal blister and sore.
- Taking both a corticosteroid like prednisone, and an immunosuppressant medication like azathioprine to quiet the immune system, may deliver better results.

Bullous Pemphigoid (Bp)

Bullous pemphigoid is a rare skin condition that mainly affects older people. It usually starts with an itchy, raised rash.

As the condition develops, large blisters can form on the skin.

It is characterized by tense blisters on the skin, firm and do not break easily.

The most common form of autoimmune subepidermal blistering disease.

It is the result of an attack on the basement membrane of the epidermis by

- IgG +/- IgE immunoglobulins (antibodies) and activated
- T lymphocytes (white blood cells).

The mouth and other mucosal surfaces are typically not involved.

Common areas of blisters are the trunk, thighs, and groin.

The elderly are more commonly affected, although children, usually younger than 1 year old, are also a group that may be affected by bullous pemphigoid. People over 80 years of age, and mostly affects people over 50.

The blisters of BP are deeper than pemphigus vulgaris.

It causes severe itch and (usually) large, tense bullae (fluid-filled blisters), which rupture forming crusted erosions.

Early BP is sometimes confused with hives.

It can be mild but also chronic (meaning that there is no cure). If the disease is found early, treatment can be effective.

When typical bullae are present, the diagnosis is suspected clinically, the diagnosis will be confirmed by a skin biopsy of an early blister.

The diagnosis can also be made from non-blistered, inflamed skin. Pathological examination of bullous pemphigoid shows a splIt under the epidermis. A dermal neutrophilic infiltrate is usual but not always present. Eosinophils may be prominent.

listered, inflamed skin. higoid shows a splIt under ate is usual but not always

Direct immunofluorescence staining of a skin biopsy taken adjacent to a blister highlights antibodies along the basement membrane that lies between the epidermis and dermis.



https://dermnetnz.org/assets/Uploads/immune/s/b ulpem6__WatermarkedWyJXYXRlcm1hcmtlZCJd.jpg



https://www.mayoclinic.org/-/media/kcms/gbs/pati ent-consumer/images/2013/08/26/10/41/ds00722_ im02463_r7_bullouspemphigoidthu_jpg.jpg

Blood tests include an indirect immunofluorescence test for circulating pemphigoid BP 180 antibodies. The Bullous Pemphigoid Disease Area Index (BPDAI) has separate scores for skin and mucous membrane activity.

Treatment

- To skin heal, stop new patches or blisters appearing, and reduce the chance of the skin getting infected.
- Steroid creams -treatment usually begins with topical corticosteroids such as clobesterol cream.
- Steroid tablets extensive skin involvement may require oral steroids e.g., prednisolone 0.5 mg/kg/day
- Immunosuppressive medications including azathioprine or methotrexate or intravenous immunoglobulin.
- Antibiotics tetracycline usually doxycycline 200 mg bd/day or, niacinamide or dapsone.
- Pain relief.
- Emollients
- Antihistamine
- Do not burst the blisters the skin might get infected. If a blister is in an annoying place (like the bottom of foot), doctor can drain It with a needle.

Pemphigus Foliaceus

The pemphigus families are rare autoimmune blistering diseases affecting skin and/or mucous membranes.

It is a rare relatively benign form of pemphigus.

It is the least severe of these disorders. Typically, the protein that causes the blistering is only found

on the top (superficial) layer of skin.

Pemphigus foliaceus affects people of all races, age and sex.

It appears most commonly between the ages of 50-60 years.

These blisters are soft and easily broken.

They may begin on the scalp and move to other parts of the body including the chest, back and face.

Spontaneous remission may occur in some patients whilst in others the problem may persist for several years.

The primary aim of treatment is to prevent new areas from developing infections and promote healing of affected areas.

Topical treatment with corticosteroids and antibiotics is usually all that is necessary for mild cases of pemphigus foliaceus.

For more severe cases treatment is similar to that for pemphigus vulgaris or refer.

Pemphigoid Gestations

It is known as pemphigoid gestations, is an autoimmune blistering disease that occurs in women during pregnancy.

A rare <u>pregnancy</u>-associated autoimmune <u>blistering skin condition</u>

It is very rare; 1 in 50,000 pregnancies and usually begins during the second and third trimesters of pregnancy or the immediate postpartum period.

Skin blisters usually begin around the belly button or extremities. Itching is often severe.

The rash spreads to other parts of the body, including the trunk, buttocks, and arms.

The face, scalp, palms, soles, and mucous membranes are not usually affected

This condition is closely related to bullous pemphigoid and is not related to the herpes virus.

Herpes gestation is usually resolves after pregnancy but flares with birth control use or future pregnancies.

Treatment

- requires steroids, topical for limited disease, and oral steroids for more significant skin involvement.
- Minimum effective doses should be used to reduce the risk of side effects to both mother and fetus.
- Oral antihistamines may be used to relieve itching.
- Dapsone may be effective.
- Immunosuppressive medications such as azathioprine or ciclosporin may also be used successfully but their safety in pregnancy or during breast feeding must be carefully considered.
- Intravenous immunoglobulin has also been reported to be effective.
- Pemphigoid gestation is usually recurs with subsequent pregnancies, although there may be unaffected pregnancies in between.

to the herpes virus.

https://dermnetnz.org/assets/Uploads/immune/pemg est1___WatermarkedWyJXYXRlcm1hcmtlZCJd.jpg





Dermatitis Herpetiformis (Duhring- Brocq Disease)

It is an extremely itchy, blistering disease, immunobullous disease closely related to gluten-sensitive enteropathy or celiac disease of the gut), a gluten- sensitive enteropathy.

The name herpetiformis is derived from the tendency for blisters to appear in clusters, resembling herpes simplex.

But not viral disease.

Predominantly affects Caucasians aged 15–40 years but may occur in those younger or older.

Dermatitis herpetiformis and coeliac disease are due to intolerance to the gliadin fraction of gluten found in wheat, rye and barley.

Gluten triggers production of IgA antibodies and an autoimmune process that targets the skin and gut.

In coeliac disease, gluten causes intestinal inflammation resulting in diarrhoea, tiredness, weight loss

and abdominal discomfort.

The majority (> 90%) of patients with dermatitis herpetiformis also have gluten-sensitive enteropathy.

Gastrointestinal symptoms may be mild to severe; some patients remain symptom-free.

The skin rash consists of red bumps that have been scratched.

The condition usually appears on the scalp, buttocks, elbows, and backs of arms and legs.

The skin condition flares with gluten intake (all grains except rice and com).

It is characterized by prurigo (extremely itchy papules) and vesicles on normal or reddened skin.

They often appear in groups or serpiginous clusters.

Blisters are often eroded and crusted due to immediate scratching.

Diagnosis

is confirmed by IgA staining in skin biopsy.

Treatment

Gluten-free diet

- Gluten-free diet for life is strongly recommended in patients with dermatitis herpetiformis, as it:
- Reduces the requirement for medication to control dermatitis herpetiformis
- Improves associated gluten-sensitive enteropathy
- Enhances nutrition and bone density
- May reduce the risk of developing other autoimmune conditions
- May reduce the risk of intestinal lymphoma.

Medication

- <u>Dapsone</u> is the treatment of choice for dermatitis herpetiformis, as It usually reduces itch within 3 days.
- Dose varies from 25 mg to 300 mg daily.
- Dapsone has potential side effects and monitoring requirements.
- It may be gradually weaned off in those who have been on a stable gluten-free diet.

921

• If intolerant or allergic to dapsone, the following may be useful:





https://www.rcemlearning.co.uk/wp-content/uploa ds/Dermatitis-herpetiformis.jpg

- Ultra-potent topical <u>steroids</u>
- Systemic <u>steroids</u>
- Sulfapyridine

21. CONNECTIVE TISSUE DISEASES

Cutaneous lupus erythematosus

Cutaneous lupus erythematosus (LE) is a diverse group of autoimmune connective tissue disorders localised to the skin that can be associated with systemic <u>lupus erythematosus</u> (SLE) to varying degrees.

Cutaneous lupus erythematosus (CLE) is classified as:

- Acute (ACLE)
- Subacute (SCLE)
- Intermittent (lupus tumidus)

Chronic (CCLE) eg, discoid lupus (DLE), lupus profundus, chilblain lupus erythematosus.





SUBACUTE (SCLE) https://www.dermatologyadvisor.com/wp-conter /uploads/sites/20/2019/03/ch1174.fig1_.jpg



https://ars.els-cdn.com/content/image/1-s2.0-S15 78219011001053-gr1.jpg

INTERMITTENT (LUPUS TUMIDUS)



DISCOID LUPUS (DLE) https://media.sciencephoto.com/image/c0522480/8 00wm/C0522480-Discoid_lupus_erythematosus.jpg



LUPUS PROFUNDUS https://ars.els-cdn.com/content/image/1-s2.0-S23 52647517300400-gr1.jpg



https://dermnetnz.org/assets/Uploads/immune/ s/lupus-chilb__WatermarkedWyJXYXRIcm1hcmt IZCJd.jpg

Each is a different type of lupus. Cutaneous lupus affects the skin. SLE can affect the skin and other parts of your body, including the joints, lungs, and kidneys.

A person can have cutaneous lupus without having SLE. If you have lupus on your skin, however, It can be a sign that lupus is affecting other parts of your body.

Discoid lupus

It often looks like a raised, thick, scaly patch. Most patches develop on the face, scalp, or ears.

Discoid lupus in the mouth

Lifelong skin cancer screenings are essential If discoid lupus forms in your mouth or on your lips.

Subacute cutaneous lupus

Some people develop a red, scaly rash that usually appears on the chest, upper back, or neck. This type of cutaneous lupus can also cause a rash that has a ring-like pattern. The skin can be so light sensitive that sunlight and even fluorescent light bulbs can trigger a flare.

Acute cutaneous lupus (ACL)

A common sign of ACL is the butterfly rash, which can last for hours or days.



LUPUS PANNICULITIS https://sso.uptodate.com/contents/images/DERM /85711/Lupuspannicfaclipoatro.jpg

Lupus panniculitis

In time, the inflammation often destroys the fat cells. This causes deep, recessed scars as shown on this woman's face.

Drug-induced lupus

Medicine can cause this type of lupus. The lupus usually clears when the drug is stopped.

Causes

All types of lupus are autoimmune diseases. .

When a person has systemic lupus erythematosus (SLE), the immune system may attack different

parts of the body, including the skin, kidneys, and lungs.

What causes people to develop this type of autoimmune disease isn't certain. It may be a combination

of genes, environmental triggers, and hormones.

Anything that triggers immune system to attack itself can cause lupus

to flare, common triggers for lupus are:

Sunlight

Ultraviolet (UV) light from tanning beds and fluorescent light bulbs An infection

Some medicines

Stress

Surgery or a serious injury

SLE is female predominance with CLE particularly affecting women

20 to 50 years of age

All age groups and both sexes can be affected.



https://ars.els-cdn.com/content/image/1-s2.0-S23 52647519300887-gr1.jpg



https://images.rxlist.com/images/image_collection/ skin/acute-systemic_lupus-erythematosus.jpg

Skin of colour is an important predisposing factor. Causes of cutaneous lupus erythematosus- The pathogenesis is multifactorial: Genetic susceptibility High incidence among family members Environmental factors Cigarette smoking Sun exposure Medications Innate and adaptive immune responses autoantibodies.

Clinical features of cutaneous lupus erythematosus

Acute cutaneous lupus erythematosus typically presents as transient erythematous patches associated with a flare of <u>systemic lupus erythematosus</u>.

Lupus-specific skin changes:

- Localised acute CLE: malar 'butterfly' rash redness and swelling over both cheeks, sparing the nasolabial folds, lasting hours to days
- Generalised acute CLE: diffuse or papular erythema of the face, upper limbs (sparing the knuckles), and trunk resembling a morbilliform <u>drug</u> eruption or viral exanthem
- Toxic_epidermal_<u>necrolysis</u>-like acute CLE: is associated with lupus nephritis or cerebritis, and must be distinguished from drug-induced toxic epidermal necrolysis in a patient with SLE.

Subacute cutaneous lupus erythematosus

It is less commonly associated with SLE with approximately 50% having a mild form of SLE.

It is thought 20–40% have drug-induced SCLE.

It comprises 10–15% of cutaneous LE presentations. The skin changes are more persistent than those of ACLE.

Skin lesions of SCLE:

- Occur on the trunk and upper limbs, triggered or aggravated by
- sun exposure
- Present as a psoriasiform papulosquamous rash orannular, polycyclic
- plaques with central clearing
- Resolve to leave dyspigmentation and telangiectases, but no scarring



SUBACUTE CUTANEUOUS LUPUS ERYTHEMATOSUS https://www.dermatologyadvisor.com/wp-cont ent/uploads/sites/20/2019/03/ch1174.fig2_.jpg



SUBACUTE CUTANEOUS LUPUS ERYTHEMATOSUS

https://images.ctfassets.net/1ny4yoiyrqia/3kzZIZMG GUANUayD37nO7c/ee962af01bb7d5fff19a6410133f cf71/lupus-symptoms-subacute-cutaneous.png?w=4 50&h=450

Intermittent cutaneous lupus erythematosus

It is better known as lupus tumidus, a dermal form of lupus erythematosus.

Skin lesions of lupus tumidus:

Occur on sun-exposed areas of skin, such as the face, neck, and upper anterior chest

Present as erythematous, round or annular, papules and plaques with a smooth surface

Resolve in winter without scarring.

Chronic cutaneous lupus erythematosus

Chronic cutaneous lupus erythematosus is the most common form of CLE, and about 25% of SLE patients have some form of CCLE.

<u>Discoid lupus erythematosus (DLE)</u> is the most common form of CCLE (80%) and is particularly prevalent and severe in patients with skin of colour. Only 1–2% of patients with localised DLE progress to SLE.

Skin lesions of DLE:

The most commonly located on the scalp, ears, cheeks, nose, and lips

Present as destructive scaly plaques with follicular prominence (carpet tack sign) which can result in scarring alopecia. Discoid lupus erythematosus adherent scale with similitude to signs carpet tack, cat tongue, and tin tacks. (Perforation of paper with pen: Simple technique to explain the carpet.) Heal slowly leaving post-inflammatory dyspigmentation and scarring.



https://www.researchgate.net/profile/Richard-So ntheimer/publication/26890374/figure/fig1/A5:3 94219878404102@1471000751559/Chronic-cuta neous-lupus-erythmatosus-Discoid-lupus-eryth ematosus-demonstrating.png

Diagnosis

<u>Skin</u> biopsy — diagnostic histopathology and direct immunofluorescence is seen only in specific-LE lesions

Blood tests — full blood count, renal function test, inflammatory markers

Serology — including ANA, ENA - are often negative in chronic CLE

Cutaneous Lupus Erythematosus Disease Area and Severity Index (CLASI)

The Cutaneous Lupus Erythematosus Disease Area and Severity Index scores activity and damage in each of 12 anatomical locations.*(see Cutaneous LE Diaease Area and Severity Index CLASI chart)* The total activity score:

Degree of redness (0-3) and scale (0-2) Mucous membrane involvement (0-1)



https://i0.wp.com/post.healthline.com/wp-content/ uploads/2022/02/discoid-lupus-erythematosus-fac e-body1.jpg?w=1155&h=1528

598q8OD6GNOtTW_Uvzerw&

Recent hair loss (0-1), nonscarring alopecia (0-3) Total damage score: Degree of dyspigmentation (0-2) and scarring (0-2) Persistence of dyspigmentation more than 12 months doubles the dyspigmentation score Scalp scarring (0, 3, 4, 5, 6).

Treatment for cutaneous lupus erythematosus

General measures

- <u>Sun protection</u> and avoidance: SPF 50+ broad spectrum <u>sunscreen</u>, UPF 50+ sun-protective clothing
- Smoking cessation
- Vitamin D supplement
- Life style changes
- Specific measures

Local therapy

- Topical <u>steroids</u> to reduce the inflammation and clear the skin.e.g., fluocinolone acetonide
- or hydrocortisone butyrate.
- <u>Intralesional steroids</u> to clear a thick patch on the skin or area of hair loss.
- Topical calcineurin inhibitor like tacrolimus (Protopic, Prograf) or pimecrolimus (Elidel) may be prescribed to avoid steroid side effects.

Systemic therapy

- <u>Antimalarials</u>, usually <u>hydroxychloroquine</u> First-line systemic therapy for patients with all subtypes of CLE. It is also effectively treated lupus on the skin.
- Immune modulators such as <u>methotrexate</u>, <u>mycophenolate</u>, <u>dapsone</u>, <u>ciclosporin</u>, cyclosporine, dapsone and mycophenolate mofetil.
- <u>Systemic</u> corticosteroids doses of prednisone of 0.5 to 1.0mg/kg/day & tapered over 2-4 weeks
- Chronic CLE tends to follow a chronic relapsing course for years, with flares in spring and summer, and resolution with scarring if untreated.
- If the discoid lupus, clearing skin can reduce the risk of scars, permanent hair loss, and discolored skin prevent lupus rash flare-ups.
- About 40% to 70% of people with lupus have symptom flare-ups after exposure to ultraviolet (UV) light.
- To minimize flare-ups, people with lupus need to take extra caution around sunlight or artificial light.
- To prevent lupus butterfly rash flare-ups and protect yourself from UV exposure:
- Apply a broad-spectrum sunscreen with at least SPF 30 every day.
- Avoid sunlight when the sun is strongest, between 10 a.m. and 4 p.m.
- Don't use tanning beds.
- LimIt your time around indoor fluorescent lights.
- Wear sun-protective clothing, such as wide-brimmed hats and long sleeves.
- In addition to avoiding sun exposure, you may also want to:
- Eat a diet full of nutritious foods, such as fruits, vegetables and whole grains.
- Exercise moderately as often as you can.
- Manage stress with healthy coping tools.
- *Sleep* at least seven to eight hours per night.

- Take all medications as prescribed.
- If you smoke, stop as It can make the rash worse. Smoking may also make medications that treat the rash less effective.
- Most people who have cutaneous lupus can lead active and productive lives. Treatment helps because It can clear the skin and reduce the effects that lupus has on life. There is currently no cure for cutaneous lupus.

	activity		damage			
				Scarring/		
Anatomical Location	Erythema	Scale/ Hypertrophy	Dyspigmentation	Atrophy/ Panniculitis	Anatomical Location	
	0-absent 1-pink; faint erythema 2- red; 3-dark red; purple/violaceous/ crusted/ hemorrhagic	0-absent; 1-scale 2-verrucous/ hypertrophic	0-absent, 1-dyspigmentaton	0 – absent 1 – scarring 2 – severely atrophic scarring or panniculitis		
Scalp				See below	Scalp	
Fars					Fars	
Nose (incl. malar area)					Nose (incl. malar area)	
Rest of the face					Rest of the face	
V-area neck (frontal)					V-area peck (frontal)	
Post Neck &/or shoulders					Post Neck &/or shoulders	
Chest					Chest	
Abdomen					Abdomen	
Back buttocks			1		Back buttocks	
Arme				-	Arms	
Hande			-		Hande	
Loos					Lone	
East					East	
D-absent; 1-lesion or ulceration			(verbal report by patient – tick appropriate box) Dyspigmentation usually lasts less than 12 months (dyspigmentation score above remains) Dyspigmentation usually lasts at least 12 months (dyspigmentation			
Alopecia Recent Hair loss (within the last 30 days / as 1-Yes 0-No	reported by patient)		NB: if scar to coexist i	ring and non-sc n one lesion, plo	arring aspects seem ease score both	
Divide the scalp into four qui is the line connecting the hi	adrants as shown. The or ghest points of the ear lo	dividing line betwee be. A quadrant is o	en right and left is the mid considered affected if ther	line. The dividing line e is a lesion within the	between frontal and occipita quadrant.	
Alopecia (clinically not obviously scarred)			Scarring of the scalp (udged clinically)		
Mopecia (calleally not obvi	0-absent 1-diffuse; non-inflammatory 2-focal or patchy in one quadrant; 3-focal or patchy in more than one quadrant		0- absent			
0-absent 1-diffuse; non-inflammatory 2-focal or patchy in one qua 3-focal or patchy in more th	adrant; an one quadrant		3- in one quadrant 4- two quadrants 5- three quadrants 6- affects the whole sk	ull		

Ref: https://www.semanticscholar.org/paper/Cutaneous-lupus-and-the-Cutaneous-Lupus-Disease-and-Klein-Morganroth/b6f5cd0fa8967c9fea0a4c1cd9ba33a1c401e5b9

Scleroderma

Scleroderma means "hard skin." Most people have hardening and tightening on their skin. But this disease can affect more than the skin.

Joints, muscles, and even internal organs like the kidneys and lungs can harden and tighten. Many people who have scleroderma lead normal—or almost normal—lives.

Type of scleroderma

- Localized - Morphea

1 or a few patches of thickened skin, which are usually red or purple.

The patches can itch but are usually painless. Sometimes the excess collagen develops deep in the skin. In rare cases, morphea affects muscle.

Gerneralized morphea: Patches of morphea can develop on different areas of the body.



https://www.atlasdermatologico.com.br/disease.jsf;jsessionid=12B7270274A0A1B77AFCA039FC1197E3?diseaseId=256

Linear scleroderma: Often beginning in childhood or the teenage years, this type causes a line of thickening skin, usually on an arm or leg.

En coup de sabre: A line of thickened skin forms on the scalp, face, or both, and the tissue beneath disappears.

Localized variant associated with CREST syndrome (calcinosis,Raynaud's disease,esophageal dysmotility, Sclerodactyly and telangiectasia)

Systemic scleroderma

Limited cutaneous scleroderma (Sores and calcium deposits on fingers).

Diffuse cutaneous scleroderma: In just a few weeks or months, hard, thickened skin can develop on many areas of the body.

Peak age 30-50 year.

The disease may remain localized on the hands for many years. Systemic sclerosis is rare.



https://images.ctfassets.net/1ny4yoiyrqia/5pbkp QWqGdrjkOidomMwIA/96ddd3222daf5b152f240 6c1aac830d4/scleroderma-overview-diffuse-cuta neous.png?fm=webp&w=450&h=450 https://www.birpublications.org/cms/10.1259/bjrcr. 20150203/asset/images/medium/bjrcr.20150203.g 004.jpg https://images.ctfassets.net/1ny4yoiyrqia/VAqbmv Sl8avmBQ00fctlN/cb4dc5ec47a29648be2f371f90a f6947/Limited-cutaneous-scleroderma.png?fm=we bp&w=450&h=450

Signs of scleroderma

Hard, thickening, or tight skin Hair loss and less sweating Dry skin and itch Skin color changes Salt-and-pepper look to the skin Stiff joints and difficulty moving them Muscle shortening and weakness Loss of tissue beneath the skin Bone may not grow as It should Sores and pitted scars on the fingers Calcium deposits beneath the skin Hard, thickening, or tight skin Hair loss and less sweating Dry skin and itch Visible blood vessels near the surface of the skin Extreme sensitivity to cold, stress, or both When scleroderma affects internal organs Problems swallowing, Heartburn, Diarrhea. Constipation, Bloated feeling after eating Weight loss without trying, High blood pressure



https://healthjade.net/wp-content/uploads/2018/0 3/scleroderma.jpg



https://cdn.todaysrdh.com/wp-content/uploads/2 022/04/Scleroderma-Figure1.png?strip=all&lossy



https://www.selfmanagescleroderma.com/images/0 1.png

Diagnosis

symptoms, health, and medical history is important. Examine skin for signs of hardening and thickening. Blood test - elevated antinuclear antibodies. A skin biopsy can be helpful

Treatment

- Started early, treatments like phototherapy (light therapy) and
- Medicines that work on the immune system like methotrexate and cyclosporine can help diminish scleroderma.
- Physical and occupational therapy can help you keep your ability to straighten and bend joints and maintain daily life.
- Working with a physical therapist can help:

- Keep the ability to move a joint (i.e., jaw, finger, or wrist) when thickened skin covers it
- Minimize tightening of skin over joints
- Swelling and patches of hard-feeling skin: If you have only a few patches of morphea (a type of scleroderma) on your skin, the following medicines can be effective:
- Calcipotriene (may also reduce discolored skin and visible blood vessels)
- Calcipotriene + a strong corticosteroid
- Imiquimod
- Tacrolimus ointment
- Itch: To treat this, your dermatologist may recommend moisturizer, camphor, or menthol.
- Dry skin: A moisturizer can help heal the dry skin.
- Calcium deposits beneath the skin: Soaking in warm water can help reduce these.
- A strong corticosteroid like prednisone can treat large calcium deposits that develop beneath the skin. Laser treatment can also be helpful.
- Morphea on the top layers of your skin: A type of light treatment called narrowband UVB treatment can be helpful.

22. HAIR DISEASES

Alopecia Areata

Alopecia areata, one or more round bald patches appear suddenly, most often on the scalp. Alopecia areata is also called autoimmune alopecia.

Alopecia areata can affect males and females at any age. It starts in childhood in about 50%, and before the age of 40 years in 80%. Lifetime risk is 1-2% and is independent of ethnicity.

A family history of alopecia areata and/or of other autoimmune conditions is present in 10-25% of patients.



https://www.birminghamdermatologyclinic.co.uk/____https://cancerhomoeoclinic.co.in/wp-content/upl webedit/cached-images/113-0-0-1111-10000-8889-1280.jpg

At least 8 susceptibility genes have been detected.

Patients with alopecia areata have higher than expected rates of thyroid disease, vitiligo and atopic eczema.

There is increased prevalence in patients with chromosomal disorders such as Down syndrome.

It's possibly drug-induced when arising in patients on biologic medicines

Causes

Alopecia areata is classified as an autoimmune disorder.

It is histologically characterised by T cells around the hair follicles.

These CDS (+) NK group 2D-positive (NKG2D(+)) T cells release pro-inflammatory cytokines and chemokines that reject the hair.

The exact mechanism is not yet understood.

The onset or recurrence of hair loss is sometimes triggered by:

Viral infection

Trauma

Hormonal change

Emotional/physical stressors

Clinical features

Most patients have no symptoms, and a bald patch or thinning hair is noted incidentally, often discovered by a hairdresser.

Other patients describe a burning, prickly discomfort in the affected areas-this is known as trichodynia.

Patchy alopecia areata

Patch alopecia areata can affect any hair-bearing area, most often the scalp, eyebrows, eyelashes and beard.

Patchy alopecia areata has three stages.

Sudden loss of hair

Enlargement of bald patch or patches

Regrowth of hair

The bald areas may have a smooth surface, completely devoid of hair or with scattered "exclamation mark" hairs.

Exclamation mark hairs are 2 to 3-mm in length, broken or tapered, with a club- shaped root. Microscopy shows a thin proximal shaft and normal caliber distal shaft.

Regrowing hairs are often initially coloured white or grey; they may be curly when previously straight. It may take months and sometimes years to regrow all the hair.

One patch can be falling out while another is regrowing.

Alopecia totalis

- Affects up to 5% of patients with autoimmune hair loss.
- All or nearly all scalp hair is lost



https://www.medicalnewstoday.com/articles/32050

Alopecia universalis

- Affects less than 1% of cases.
- All hair or nearly all hair on the entire body is lost.

Ophiasis

- Pattern of alopecia areata affecting occipital and lateral scalp.
- Bald area can encircle scalp

Diffuse alopecia areata

- Sometimes called alopecia areata incognita
- Presents with sudden diffuse thinning of scalp hair
- Persisting hair tends to grey, thus descriptions of 'turning white overnight'
- Positive hair pull test
- May be confused with telogen effluvium or hair loss due to medications

Alopecia areata of the nails

- Nail disease affects 10-50% of those with alopecia areata
- Regular pitting and ridging are the most common findings
- May also cause koilonychia, trachyonychia, Beau lines, onychorrhexis, onycho-madesis, onycholysis and red spots on the lunula



https://nn.neurology.org/content/nnn/5/3/e454/F1.medium.git

https://donovanmedical.com/hair-blog/aa-ophia sis-vs-ffa

Alopecia areata nails

Complications

Alopecia areata patients are at risk for psychosocial consequences of their disease, such as depression and anxiety.

They should be assessed for atopy, vitiligo, thyroid disease, and other autoimmune conditions.



https://education.lillymedical.com/en-us/disease-education-resources/dermatology/alopecia-areata/education-resources/al https://link.springer.com/chapter/10.1007/978-3-319-89581-9_22

Diagnosis

Alopecia areata is diagnosed clinically. Although usually straightforward, additional tests are sometimes needed to confirm the diagnosis.

Trichoscopy (use of a dermatoscope to examine hair and scalp)

• Skin biopsy (histopathology)

Treatment

- There is not yet any reliable cure for alopecia areata and other forms of autoimmune hair loss.
- Because spontaneous regrowth is common in alopecia areata, and research has often been of poor quality, the effectiveness of reported treatments is mostly unknown.

Topical

- Several topical treatments used for alopecia areata are reported to result in temporary improvement in some people.
- Their role and efficacy are unknown.
- The hair may fall out when they are stopped. These include:
- Potent or ultrapotent topical steroids
- Minoxidil solution or foam
- Dithranol (anthralin) ointment

Intralesional corticosteroid injections

- Injections of triamcinolone acetonide 2.5-10 mg/ml into patchy scalp, beard or eyebrow alopecia areata may speed up regrowth of hair.
- Its effect is temporary. If bald patches reappear, they can be reinjected.

Systemic corticosteroids

- Oral and pulse intravenous steroids in high dose can lead to temporary regrowth of hair.
- Most physicians agree that long-term systemic steroid treatment is not justified because of potential and actual adverse effects.

Immunotherapy

- The sensitizing agents diphenylcyclopropenone (diphencyprone) and dinitrochlorobenzene provoke contact allergic dermatitis in treated areas.
- These sensitizers can be reapplied once weekly to bald areas on the scalp.
- The resultant dermatitis is irritating and may be unsightly.
- It is often accompanied by a swollen lymph gland.

Other treatments

- A combination of the lipid lowering agents simvastatin and ezetimibe (which have immunomodulating effects) has been reported to be effective.
- JAK inhibitors
- Counselling and camouflaging hair loss

Alopecia areata Scalp

A hairpiece is often the best solution to disguise the presence of hair loss.

These cover the whole scalp or only a portion of the scalp, using human or synthetic fibres tied or woven to a fabric base.

A full wig is a cap that fits over the whole head.

A partial wig must be clipped or glued to existing hair.

A hair integration system is a custom-made hair net that provides artificial hair where required, normal hair being pulled through the net.

Hair additions are fibres glued to existing hair and removed after 8 weeks

Styling products include gels, mousses and sprays to keep hair in place and add volume. They are reapplied after washing or styling the hair.

Alopecia areata Eyelashes

Artificial eyelashes come as singlets, demilashes and complete sets.

They can be trimmed If necessary. The lashes can irritate the eye and eyelids.

They are stuck on with methacrylate glue, which can also irritate and sometimes causes contact allergic dermatitis.

Eyeliner tattooing is permanent and should be undertaken by a professional cosmetic tattooist. The colour eventually fades and may move slightly from the original site.

It is extremely difficult to remove the pigment, should the result tum out to be unsatisfactory.

Alopecia areata Eyebrows

Artificial eyebrows are manufactured from synthetic or natural human hair on a net that is glued in place.

Tattooing can also be undertaken to disguise the loss of eyebrows, but tends to look rather unnatural because of the shine of hairless skin.

Outcome

In 80% of patients with a single bald patch, spontaneous regrowth occurs within a year. Even in the most severe cases of alopecia totalis and alopecia universalis, recovery may occur at some future date.

Poor prognostic factors include:

- Extensive disease
- Bald patches persisting for more than 1 year
- Ophiasis pattern of hair loss
- Alopecia areata of the nails
- Onset of alopecia areata before puberty
- Family members with alopecia areata
- Personal or family history of other autoimmune diseases
- Down syndrome

23. CUTANEOUS MANIFESTATION OF INTERNAL DISEASE

LEPROSY (HANSON'S DISEASE)

- Hansen's disease (also known as leprosy) is an infection caused by bacteria called *Mycobacterium leprae*.
- These bacteria grow very slowly and It may take up to 20 years to develop signs of the infection.
- The disease can affect the nerves, skin, eyes, and lining of the nose (nasal mucosa).
- The bacteria attack the nerves, which can become swollen under the skin. It can cause the affected areas to lose the ability to sense touch and pain, which can lead to injuries, like cuts and burns.
- The affected skin changes color and either becomes: lighter or darker, often dry or flaky, with loss of feeling, or reddish due to inflammation of the skin.
- If left untreated, the nerve damage can result in paralysis of hands and feet.
- In very advanced cases, the person may have multiple injuries due to lack of sensation, and eventually the body may reabsorb the affected digits over time, resulting in the apparent loss of toes and fingers.

Transmission

• Prolonged, close contact with someone with untreated leprosy over many months is **needed** to catch the disease.

Signs and Symptoms

- Symptoms mainly affect the skin, nerves, and mucous membranes (the soft, moist areas just inside the body's openings).
- The disease can cause skin symptoms such as: A large, discolored lesion on the chest of a person with Hansen's disease.
- Discolored patches of skin, usually flat, that may be numb and look faded (lighter than the skin around)
- Growths (nodules) on the skin
- Thick, stiff or dry skin
- Painless ulcers on the soles of feet
- Painless swelling or lumps on the face or earlobes
- Loss of eyebrows or eyelashes
- In over 90% of patients, the first symptom noticed is numbress.
- Temperature is the first sensation lost, followed by light touch, pain,
- and then deep pressure.
- It may precede the development of cutaneous lesions by years.
- The initial skin lesions are usually of the indeterminate type, presenting



https://www.cdc.gov/leprosy/images/health-care-w orkers/healthcare-1.jpg

• as a solitary or small number of hypopigmented patches before evolving into borderline tuberculoid or lepromatous types.

Symptoms caused by damage to the nerves are:

- Numbness of affected areas of the skin
- Muscle weakness or paralysis (especially in the hands and feet)
- Enlarged nerves (especially those around the elbow and knee and in the sides of the neck)
- Eye problems that may lead to blindness (when facial nerves are affected

Symptoms caused by the disease in the mucous membranes are:

- A stuffy nose
- Nosebleeds

If left untreated, the signs of advanced leprosy can include:

- Paralysis and crippling of hands and feet
- Shortening of toes and fingers due to reabsorption
- Chronic non-healing ulcers on the bottoms of the feet
- Blindness
- Loss of eyebrows
- Nose disfigurement

Other complications that may sometimes occur are:

- Painful or tender nerves
- Redness and pain around the affected area
- Burning sensation in the skin

Type of Leprosy

Tuberculoid leprosy

- Tuberculoid (TT) leprosy is the paucibacillary form defined clinically by:
- A few (1–2) sharply defined red patches with raised borders or
- a single larger hypopigmented patch less than 10 cm in diameter
- Loss of sweating with rough dry hairless skin in the patches
- Loss of sensation in lesions
- Affected nerves are thickened and tender on palpation.

Borderline tuberculoid (BT)

- Borderline tuberculoid (BT) leprosy presents with:
- Similar lesions to TT but larger in size, more numerous (5-20), and can be less well-defined



https://www.nejm.org/na101/home/literatum/pu blisher/mms/journals/content/nejm/2011/nejm_2 011.364.issue-17/nejmicm1011992/production/i mages/img_large/nejmicm1011992_f1.jpeg

- Asymmetrical distribution
- Satellite lesions
- Anaesthesia over the lesions is less pronounced compared to TT
- Peripheral nerves are affected in an asymmetrical pattern and can cause deformity and disability.



Ref: https://dermnetnz.org/topics/leprosy

Borderline borderline leprosy

- Borderline borderline (BB) leprosy is a rarely seen, transient, unstable form of
- leprosy defined by:
- Multiple lesions of varying size, shape, and distribution
- Skin-coloured or erythematous lesions
- Characteristic, but rare, inverted saucer-shaped lesions with sloping edges and
- punched out centre (Swiss cheese lesion).
- Red lesions of variable sizes, characterized swiss cheese appearance

Borderline lepromatous leprosy

- Borderline lepromatous (BL) leprosy is characterised by:
- Widespread bilaterally symmetrical lesions
- Macules, papules, and nodules of variable size and shape
- Sensation and hair growth remain normal within a lesion
- Characteristic glove and stocking numbness
- Widespread peripheral nerve involvement.





https://dermnetnz.org/assets/collection/Leprosy/l eprosy-borderline-lepromatous-00001_ProtectW yJQcm90ZWN0II0_FocusFillWzI5NCwyMjIsIngiLDF d.jpg

Lepromatous leprosy

- Lepromatous (LL) leprosy is the multibacillary form defined by:
- Early symptoms of nasal stuffiness, discharge, and bleeding
- Swelling and thickening of limbs, especially ankles and legs with subsequent ulceration

- Widespread poorly defined hypopigmented and erythematous macules with a shiny surface and normal sensation
- Progression to widespread infiltration of skin forming nodules and plaques
- Characteristic leonine facies with thickening of the forehead, loss of eyebrows and eyelashes (madarosis), distortion of the nose, and thickening of the earlobes
- Involvement of other systems:
- Eyes corneal anaesthesia, keratitis, corneal ulceration, uveitis, glaucoma, irreversible blindness
- Testes orchitis, testicular atrophy, sterility
- Liver hepatitis, hepatic amyloidosis
- Kidneys glomerulonephritis, renal amyloidosis
- Bones osteoporosis, resorption of digits.

Lepromatous leprosy



Ref: https://dermnetnz.org/topics/leprosy

- A number of clinical variants of lepromatous leprosy are
- Histoid leprosy multiple dome-shaped, skin-coloured to coppery-red papules and nodules (histoid lepromas) of variable size mainly on the limbs and trunk, or along peripheral nerves particularly in males. difficult.
- Lucio leprosy (diffuse lepromatous leprosy) presents as a smooth infiltration of the skin, especially on the face and hands. It is particularly seen in Central and South America where It is called 'lepra bonita' (pretty leprosy).
- Verrucous lepromatous lesions are filiform, horn-like, or fissured hyperkeratotic warty projections or plaques on the distal lower limb and feet. It is a rarely described presentation seen in advanced lepromatous leprosy.



Fig. Dome shaped papules and nodules in skin colour https://dermnetnz.org/topics/leprosy

Pure neural leprosy

- Pure neural leprosy (PNL) is common in India and Nepal.
- It presents with only peripheral nerve tenderness and thickening without skin lesions.
- However, the nerve damage can result in loss of sensation and hence trophic ulcers.
- Diagnosis is difficult and requires nerve biopsy.

Complications of leprosy



https://d3i71xaburhd42.cloudfront.net/ecaa65d9 f82578a0b4fe71bcbf69e1cb071107bc/3-Figure5-1.png

- <u>Lepra reactions</u> occur in 30–50% of patients with leprosy. They may occur before, or more often, after the start of treatment.
- These are sudden responses resulting from the release of immunologically active bacilli or its products leading to localised or systemic symptoms and signs. Such reactions are responsible for most of the nerve damage, deformity, and disability.

Diagnosis

- Leprosy has very characteristic clinical features, and dermoscopy is being used more often to aid clinical diagnosis.
- Skin SIIt Smear a small sIIt is made using a sharp blade over the skin of the earlobe, forehead, or lesional skin, then a smear is made by scraping the exposed dermis onto a glass slide and examining for acid fast bacilli under microscopy; useful for multibacillary leprosy only.
- Lepromin test is an intradermal test for delayed type hypersensitivity to *M. leprae* antigens; although not specific, It is helpful for classifying the type of leprosy.
- <u>Skin biopsy</u> may show typical features, depending on the type of leprosy (see <u>Leprosy pathology</u>); special stains may be required to demonstrate the bacilli.
- *M. leprae* DNA PCR is very specific for detecting leprosy organisms.

Treatment

- The treatment of leprosy aims to stop active infection and minimise complications and deformity.
- Residual disabilities may require corrective reconstructive surgery to allow day-to-day activity.

- Most endemic countries follow the WHO recommended multi-drug therapy (MDT) of antibiotics; the combination of drugs selected and duration of treatment depends on the type of leprosy.
- First-line antibiotics used in the treatment of leprosy are <u>dapsone</u>, <u>rifampicin</u> and clofazimine.
- Other drug options include ofloxacin, moxifloxacin, minocycline, clarithromycin, rifapentine, and diarylquinolone. Vaccines and other forms of immunotherapy are being trialed.

WHO recommended multi-drug therapy (MDT)

	Drug		Duration	
Age group		Dosage and frequency	MB	РВ
Adult	Rifampicin	600 mg once a month	12 months	6 months
	Clofazimine	300 mg once a month and 50 mg daily		
	Dapsone	100 mg daily		
Children (10–14 years)	Rifampicin	450 mg once a month	12 months	6 months
	Clofazimine	150 mg once a month, 50 mg on alternate days		
	Dapsone	50 mg daily		
Children <10 years old or <40 kg	Rifampicin	10 mg/kg once month	12 months	6 months
	Clofazimine	100 mg once a month, 50 mg twice weekly		
	Dapsone	2 mg/kg daily		

Table 3. Recommended treatment regimens

Note: The treatment for children with body weight below 40 kg requires single formulation medications since no MDT combination blister packs are available. For children between 20 and 40 kg, it would be possible to follow the instructions of the Operational Manual, Global Leprosy Strategy 2016–2020 on how to partly use (MB-Child) blister packs for treatment (60).

CUTANEOUS TUBERCULOSIS

- Cutaneous tuberculosis (TB) results from skin infection with *Mycobacterium tuberculosis (M. tuberculosis)*, the same bacterium that causes tuberculosis of the lungs (pulmonary TB).
- Cutaneous tuberculosis is an uncommon form of extrapulmonary TB (TB infection of organs and tissues other than the lungs).
- TB is common, such as the Indian subcontinent, sub-Saharan Africa, and China, cutaneous tuberculosis is rare (<0.1%).

Risk factors for developing tuberculosis include:

- Close contact with a patient with active TB
- Living in or visiting a country or community where TB is common
- Living in a crowded community, including institutions such as aged care residences, long-stay hospitals, and prisons
- Working in hospitals and healthcare environments.

Cutaneous Tuberculosis classification

A. Exogenous cutaneous tuberculosis

Tuberculous chancre and Tuberculosis verrucosa cutis

B. Endogenous cutaneous tuberculosis

- a) By contiguity or autoinoculation (Scrofuloderma, orificial tuberculosis and some cases of lupus vulgaris)
- b) By hematogenic dissemination (Lupus vulgaris, tuberculous gumma and acute miliary tuberculosis)
- C. Tuberculids
 - Papulonecrotic tuberculid
 - Lichen scrofulosorum
- D. Cutaneous tuberculosis secondary to BCG vaccination

Clinical features of cutaneous tuberculosis

- Primary cutaneous tuberculosis
- Direct inoculation of the skin or mucous membranes with tubercle bacilli from an outside source results in a tuberculous chancre.
- Children are predominantly affected. Infection may follow piercings, tattooing, or other penetrating skin injury.
- The face, hands, and legs are the commonest sites involved.
- The tuberculous chancre appears 1-4 weeks after inoculation, presenting initially as a firm red papule which becomes a painless shallow ulcer with a granular base and undermined edge.
- Sporotrichoid lesions and enlarged regional lymph nodes can develop.

Tuberculosis verrucosa cutis (warty tuberculosis)

- It occurs after direct inoculation of tubercle bacilli into the skin of someone who has been previously infected and developed good immunity.
- It was called "prosector's wart" when It followed accidental injury in the autopsy room.
- Presents as a purplish or brownish-red warty growth
- Lesions most often occur on the knees, elbows, hands, feet and buttocks
- Lesions may persist for years but can clear up even without treatment

Tuberculosis verrucosa cutis and tuberculosis chancre



https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S0733863507001386 and <u>https://www.sciencedirect.com</u>/science/article/abs/pii/S0190962200762189

Reinoculation /reinfection cutaneous tuberculosis

Lupus vulgaris

- It is the most common presentation of reinfection cutaneous tuberculosis.
- Any skin site can be involved, but the head and neck are the most commonly reported



https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1111/j.1365 -4632.2008. 03579.x

affected sites.

- Persistent and progressive form of cutaneous TB
- Small sharply defined reddish-brown papules merge into plaques with a gelatinous consistency (called apple-jelly nodules)
- Lesions persist for years, leading to disfigurement and sometimes skin cancer



lupus vulgaris Ref: https://doctorhoogstra.com/en/wiki/tuberculosis-cutaneous/

Orificial tuberculosis (tuberculosis cutis orificialis)

- It follows autoinoculation from advanced internal disease depositing tubercle bacilli at mucocutaneous junctions such as around the nose and mouth.
- Skin lesions at mucocutaneous junctions e.g., perianal
- Associated with advanced internal disease
- Shallow ulcers

Tuberculosis cutis orificialis

Extension into the skin from an underlying infective focus

Scrofuloderma

- It follows the direct invasion of the skin from tuberculosis in an underlying lymph node or bone, often in association with pulmonary TB.
- The most common sites involved are around the neck and under the jawline.
- Firm, painless lesions that eventually ulcerate with a granular base
- May heal even without treatment but this takes years and leaves unsightly scars



Scrofuloderma Ref: https://doctorhoogstra.com/en/wiki/tuberculosis-cutaneous/

Haematogenous spread to the skin

Miliary tuberculosis

- It follows generalised spread of tubercle bacilli via the bloodstream from an active internal focus of tuberculosis.
- It is seen mainly in children and immunocompromised patients.
- Skin involvement is called disseminated cutaneous tuberculosis or acute cutaneous miliary tuberculosis.
- Haematogenous spread of tuberculosis to skin
- Skin lesions are small (millet-sized) red spots that become necrotic, developing into ulcers and abscesses
- The patient is generally sick
- Prognosis is poor (many patients die even If diagnosed and treated)



Cutaneous miliary tuberculosis Tuberculous gumma https://www.google.com/search?q=cutaneous+tuberculosis&tbm

Metastatic tuberculous abscess (tuberculous gumma)

- It is also due to haematogenous spread to the skin in children and immunocompromised adults, but presents as a subcutaneous nodule or cold abscess on an extremity.
- The overlying skin breaks down to form an ulcer with sinus tracts.
- Metastatic tuberculous abscess (tuberculous gumma) is also due to haematogenous spread to the skin in children and immunocompromised adults, but presents as a subcutaneous nodule or cold abscess on an extremity.
- The overlying skin breaks down to form an ulcer with sinus tracts and fistulae.

Tuberculid

- A tuberculid is a hypersensitivity reaction presenting as skin changes in association with <u>tuberculosis</u> elsewhere in the body.
- Mycobacterium tuberculosis organisms cannot be isolated from the tuberculid skin lesions.
- Four types of tuberculid are usually recognised: erythema induratum (Bazin disease), papulonecrotic tuberculid, lichen scrofulosorum, and nodular tuberculid, and more than one type of tuberculid may be present.



- *Ref: https://www.annsaudimed.net/doi/10.4103/0256-4947.77495*

Diagnosis of cutaneous tuberculosis

- The diagnosis of cutaneous tuberculosis is usually made or confirmed by <u>characteristic</u> histopathological <u>features</u> on <u>skin</u> biopsy.
- Typical tubercles are caseating epithelioid granulomas that contain acid-fast bacilli (AFB).
- However, in some forms of cutaneous tuberculosis these can be very difficult to locate due to very low numbers of bacilli in the skin.
- Tubercle bacilli can be detected in the skin by special tissue stains such as Ziehl-Neelsen, polymerase chain reaction (PCR), and culture in the laboratory.
- Other tests that may be necessary include:
- Tuberculin skin test (Mantoux or PPD test)
- Interferon-gamma release assay (IGRA) blood test such as QuantiFERON-TB gold
- Sputum culture (It may take a month or longer for results to be reported)
- Chest X-ray and other radiological tests for extrapulmonary infection.
- Severe Mantoux test reactions (active TB)



Ref: https://doctorhoogstra.com/en/wiki/tuberculosis-cutaneous/

Treatment of cutaneous tuberculosis

• Patients with pulmonary or extrapulmonary TB need an adequate course of appropriate multidrug anti-tuberculous treatment.

Treat with according to WHO TB guideline.

- This usually involves a combination of isoniazid, <u>rifampicin</u>, pyrazinamide, and ethambutol given over a period of six months for a standard course.
- Multi-drug resistant tuberculosis has become a significant problem worldwide.
- Patients with latent TB infection but no active disease may also be treated with anti-tuberculous

drugs to prevent development of active disease. Single-drug therapy is discouraged.

- Occasionally surgical excision of localised cutaneous TB such as lupus vulgaris or scrofuloderma is recommended.
- Plastic surgical reconstruction may be required by some patients disfigured by lupus vulgaris.

Outcome of cutaneous tuberculosis

- Spontaneous healing can occur for tuberculous chancre, scrofuloderma, and tuberculosis verrucosa cutis.
- Lupus vulgaris is usually progressive If untreated, as are most cases of tuberculosis vertucosa cutis, and scrofuloderma.
- Some presentations of cutaneous tuberculosis, such as miliary tuberculosis, indicate significant systemic disease which may be fatal.
- Treatment is usually successful with an adequate course of appropriate multi-drug therapy, although some skin lesions are slow to heal.

24. CUTANEOUS MANIFESTATION OF DIABETES MELLITUS

Strongly associated with Diabetes Mellitus

Acanthosis Nigricans

- is a classic dermatologic manifestation of diabetes mellitus that affects men and women of all ages.
- AN presents chronically as multiple poorly demarcated plaques with grey to dark-brown hyperpigmentation and a thickened velvety to verrucous texture.
- Classically, AN has a symmetrical distribution and is located in intertriginous or flexural surfaces such as the back of the neck, axilla, elbows, palmer hands (also known as "tripe palms"), inframammary creases, umbilicus, or groin.
- Affected areas are asymptomatic; however, extensive involvement may cause discomfort or fetor.
- The pathogenesis of AN is not completely understood.



Ref:https://dermnetnz.org/topics/skin-problems-associated-with-diabetes-mellitus

Treatment

- AN is best managed with lifestyle changes such as
 - dietary modifications,
 - increased physical activity, and
 - weight reduction.
- In patients with diabetes, pharmacologic adjuvants, such as metformin, that improve glycemic control and reduce insulin resistance are also beneficial
- thickened or macerated areas of skin, oral retinoids or topical keratolytics such as ammonium lactate, retinoic acid, or salicylic acid can be used to alleviate symptoms

Diabetic Dermopathy

- Dermopathy (DD), also known as pigmented pretibial patches or diabetic shin spots.
- It is the most common dermatologic manifestations of diabetes, presenting in as many as
one-half of those with diabetes.



https://dermnetnz.org/topics/skin-problems-associated-with-diabetes-mellitus

- DD initially presents with rounded, dull, red papules that progressively evolve over one-totwo weeks into well-circumscribed, atrophic, brown macules with a fine scale (figure)
- Normally after about eighteen to twenty-four months, lesions dissipate and leave behind an area of concavity and hyperpigmentation.
- At any time, different lesions can present at different stages of evolution.
- The lesions are normally distributed bilaterally and localized over bony prominences.
- The pretibial area is most commonly involved, although other bony prominences such as the forearms,

Treatment

Treatment is typically avoided given the asymptomatic and self-resolving nature of DD as well as the ineffectiveness of available treatments.

Diabetic bullae

- Diabetic bullae, also known as bullosis diabeticorum, are blister-like lesions that occur spontaneously on the feet and hands of diabetic patients.
- Although rare, diabetic bullae are a distinct marker for diabetes.
- Diabetic bullae are more common in men than women
- They are prevalent between the ages of 17 and 84 years.
- They are also more common in patients who have long-standing diabetes or multiple diabetic complications, particularly neuropathy.
- The blisters are painless and can be from 0.5–17 centimetres in size. They often have an irregular shape.
- Two types of diabetic bullae have been defined.
- Intraepidermal bullae these are blisters filled with clear, sterile viscous fluid and normally heal spontaneously within 2–5 weeks without scarring and atrophy.
- Subepidermal bullae these are less common and may be filled with blood. Healed blisters may show scarring and atrophy.
- In most cases, diabetic bullae heal spontaneously without treatment. Patients should make sure the blister remains unbroken to avoid secondary infection.

Diabetic bullae



Ref: https://dermnetnz.org/topics/skin-problems-associated-with-diabetes-mellitus

Diabetic Foot Syndrome

- Diabetic Foot Syndrome (DFS) encompasses the neuropathic and vasculopathic complications that develop in the feet of patients with diabetes.
- DFS presents initially with callosities and dry skin related to diabetic neuropathy.
- In later stages, chronic ulcers and a variety of other malformations of the feet develop.
- Between 15% and 25% of patients with diabetes will develop ulcers (<u>21</u>). Ulcers may be neuropathic, ischemic, or mixed.
- The most common type of ulcers are neuropathic ulcers, a painless ulceration resulting from peripheral neuropathy. Ulcers associated with peripheral vascular ischemia are painful but less common
- Secondary infection of ulcers is a serious complication that can result in gangrenous necrosis, osteomyelitis, and may even require lower extremity amputation.

Diabetic neuro-osteoarthropathy (also known as Charcot foot)

- It is an irreversible debilitating and deforming condition involving progressive destruction of weight-bearing bones and joints.
- Diabetic neuro-osteoarthropathy occurs most frequently in the feet and can result in collapse of the midfoot, referred to as "rocker-bottom foot."



•

Ref: <u>https://www.nature.com/articles/nrendo.2009.174</u>

Treatment

- It should involve an interdisciplinary team-based approach with a focus on prevention and management of current ulcers.
- Prevention entails daily surveillance, appropriate foot hygiene, and proper footwear, walkers, or other devices to minimize and distribute pressure.
- An appropriate wound care program should be used to care for ongoing ulcers

Diabetic stiff skin

- Many patients with longstanding type 1 diabetes develop diabetic cheiroarthropathy or diabetic stiff skin (digital sclerosis).
- This results in restricted mobility of the joints of their hands and stiff, waxy, thickened and yellowed skin. --This is thought to be due to the reaction of glucose with proteins in the skin and increased glycation end products.
- These patients may also suffer from <u>Dupuytren contracture</u> (tendon tightening, which bends the fingers).

Diabetic stiff skin



Ref: https://tcoyd.org/2021/03/stiff-hands-trigger-finger-and-carpal-tunnel/

Diabetic Thick Skin

- Skin thickening is frequently observed in patients with diabetes.
- Affected areas of skin can appear thickened, waxy, or edematous.
- These patients are often asymptomatic but can have a reduction in sensation and pain.
- Although different parts of the body can be involved, the hands and feet are most frequently involved.
- Diabetic thick skin may represent another manifestation of scleroderma-like skin changes or limited joint mobility

Scleroderma-Like Skin Changes

- Scleroderma-like skin changes are a distinct and easily overlooked group of findings that are commonly observed in patients with diabetes.
- Ten to fifty percent of patients with diabetes present with the associated skin findings
- Scleroderma-like skin changes develop slowly and present with painless, indurated, occasionally waxy appearing, thickened skin.
- These changes occur symmetrically and bilaterally in acral areas.
- In patients with scleroderma-like skin changes the acral areas are involved, specifically the dorsum of the fingers (sclerodactyly), proximal interphalangeal, and metacarpophalangeal joints.



Ref: https://www.northstardermatology.com/blog/scleroderma

Treatment

• Scleroderma-like skin changes is a chronic condition that is also associated with joint and microvascular complication. Therapeutic options are extremely limited.

Limited Joint Mobility

- Limited Joint Mobility (LJM), also known as diabetic cheiroarthropathy, is a relatively common complication of long-standing diabetes mellitus.
- The majority of patients with LJM also present with scleroderma-like skin changes.

The prevalence of LJM is 4% to 26% in patients without diabetes and 8% to 58% in patients with **diabetes**

Infection

- It is estimated that 30% of patients with diabetes mellitus will experience a skin problem at some stage throughout the course of their disease.
- Patients with type 2 diabetes also have twice the risk of developing the common scaly disease, <u>psoriasis</u>, as non-diabetics.
- common infection such as:



https://d148x66490prkv.cloudfront.net/c360/impor ted/inline-images/1907C360_LJM5_1.jpg?VersionId =l8Xbg1AmbHb2g_sgZpuruBS2r9NdpR0y

- Bacterial skin infections including stye, boil, impetigo, abscess, paronychia, cellulitis
- Fungal infections particularly Candida albicans 70 % of DM patients



Candida interigo

Psoariasis

https://dermnetnz.org/topics/skin-problem s-associated-with-diabetes-mellitus

Other dermatological conditions associated with diabetes

- Other common conditions in diabetics are <u>foot</u> ulcers and necrobiosis<u>lipoidica</u>.
- Diabetics with renal failure are also prone to <u>reactive</u> perforating <u>collagenosis</u> and <u>Kyrle</u> <u>disease</u>.
- Disseminated granuloma annulare
- Eruptive <u>xanthoma</u> on the hands, arms, feet, legs, and buttocks associated with high levels of cholesterol and triglycerides





Generalized granuloma annulare

Eruptive xanthoma



Xanthelasm

https://dermnetnz.org/topics/skin-problems-associated-with-diabetes-mellitus

Necrobiosis lipoidica

- Necrobiosis lipoidica is a rare, chronic granulomatous disease of the skin.
- Skin involvement usually begins as red-brown or violaceous papules, plaques, or nodules and rapidly progresses to yellow-brown, atrophic, telangiectatic plaques.
- The lower legs, especially the shins, are by far the most common sites of involvement.
- Ulceration is a common complication, occurring in 10 to 20 percent of patients

- Necrobiosis lipoidica frequently occurs in association with diabetes mellitus, which accounts for the past use of the term "necrobiosis lipoidica diabeticorum" for this disease.
- The treatment of necrobiosis lipoidica can be challenging.
- Topical or intralesional administration of corticosteroids is often used as initial therapy.
- immunomodulators, biologics, platelet inhibitors, phototherapy, and surgery.



https://dermnetnz.org/topics/skin-problems-associated-with-diabetes-mellitus

REFERENCE

- Andrews' Diseases of the skin, Clinical Dermatology, 11th Edition
- Fitzpatrick's Color Atlas and Synosis of Clinical Dermatology, Klaus Wolff, Richard Allen Johnson, 6th Edition
- Oxford Handbook of Medical Dermatology, Susan Brge with Dinny Walis
- Dermatology 2nd Edition, Habif, Campbell Jr, Chapman, Dinulos, Zug
- Hunter, J, J, Clinical Dermatology, 3rd Edition
- Field guide to clinical dermatology (field guide series) second edition, by david h. Frankel md
- Dermatology: 2-Volume Set, 4th Edition, By Jean L. Bolognia, MD, Julie V. Schaffer, MD and Lorenzo Cerroni
- http://www.bad.org.uk/healthcare-professionals/clinical-standards/clinical-guidelines
- https://www.aad.org/media/news-releases /guidelines-to-treat-nonmelanoma-skin- cancer
- https://www.aad.orglpracticecenter/qualitylclinical-guidelines
- https://www.guidelinecentral.com /summaries/organizations/american-academy-of- dermatology/
- https://www.dermnetnz.org/topics/dermatology-practice-guidelines /
- https://www.dermnetnz.org/topics/guidelines-for-the-management-of-adult-eczema /
- https://www.dermnetnz.org/topics/guidelines-for-the-diagnosis-and-assessment-of- eczema/
- http://www.bad.org.uk/library-
- https://quizlet.com/553146266/27-human-papillomavirus-hpv-flash-cards/
- https://www.aafp.org/pubs/afp/issues/2014/0901/p312.html
- https://www.healthline.com/health/skin/warts
- http://medwarts.com/warts-on-face-all-possible-locations-their-causes-and-effective-treatment/
- https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/rubella/
- https://www.bansalglobalhospital.com/dengue-hemorrhagic-fever-sign-and-causes/
- https://island.lk/us-cdc-suspects-monkeypox-virus-to-be-airborne-advises-public-to-wear-masks/
- https://my.clevelandclinic.org/health/diseases/4567-scabies

- https://step2.medbullets.com/dermatology/120061/scabies
- https://www.cmaj.ca/content/181/5/289
- https://www.marksimonianmd.com/lice
- https://benthamopen.com/FULLTEXT/TODJ-14-1/FIGURE/F1/
- https://www.dermcoll.edu.au/atoz/cutaneous-larva-migrans/
- https://www.westernexterminator.com/blog/mythbusters-allergic-to-bee-stings-and-wasp-stings/
- https://pestseek.com/how-to-get-rid-of-flea-bites/
- https://mypetandi.elanco.com/en_gb/parasites/fleas/6-ways-avoid-scratching-fleabite
- https://www.pinterest.com.mx/pin/424956914831026465/
- https://plasticsurgerykey.com/bites-and-stings-4/
- https://medizzy.com/feed/95077
- https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/impetigo/
- https://dermnetnz.org/cme/bacterial-infections/impetigo
- http://www.antimicrobe.org/new/photolink/gangrenosum.asp
- https://podiatryhq.com.au/are-you-suffering-from-cellulitis/
- https://www.researchgate.net/figure/Acne-and-Postinflammatory-Hyperpigmentation-Courtesy-of-Valerie-Callender-MD-Callender fig2 313792481
- https://www.everydayhealth.com/rosacea/is-it-something-else/
- https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/rosacea/
- https://perridermatology.com/fungus-tinea-faciei/
- https://plasticsurgerykey.com/diseases-resulting-from-fungi-and-yeasts/
- https://dermnetnz.org/cme/fungal-infections/tinea-unguium
- https://step1.medbullets.com/dermatology/112095/onychomycosis
- https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Erysipelas
- https://www.pcds.org.uk/clinical-guidance/erysipeloid
- https://www.bajajfinservmarkets.in/insurance/health-insurance/health-problems/folliculitis.html
- https://www.pinterest.com/pin/137289488747443750/
- https://www.vinmec.com/en/oncology-radiotherapy/health-news/boils-on-thighs-what-you-need-to-know/
- https://www.pcds.org.uk/clinical-guidance/staphylococcal-scalded-skin-syndrome
- https://emedicine.medscape.com/article/169177-clinical
- https://healthjade.net/erythrasma/
- https://www.medicalnewstoday.com/articles/326911
- https://healingartsvalpo.com/lyme-disease-and-tick-borne-illness/
- https://www.nejm.org/doi/full/10.1056/NEJMp1915891
- https://www.orthobullets.com/basic-science/9045/acute-rheumatic-feve
- https://www.aafp.org/pubs/afp/issues/2011/0501/p1078.html
- https://www.theharleystreetdermatologyclinic.co.uk/conditions/hives-urticaria/
- https://step2.medbullets.com/dermatology/120085/pityriasis-rosea
- https://patient.info/childrens-health/viral-skin-infections-leaflet/pityriasis-rosea
- https://www.penndermspecialists.com/pityriasis-rosea/
- https://statmed.org/knowledge/lichen_planus
- https://dermnetnz.org/topics/lichen-planus
- https://almostadoctor.co.uk/encyclopedia/lichen-planus
- https://dermnetnz.org/topics/erosive-lichen-planus
- https://www.aaom.com/oral-lichen-planus
- https://dermnetnz.org/topics/lichen-planopilaris
- https://www.drbatras.com/lichen-planus-and-hair-loss
- https://www.medicaljournals.se/acta/content/html/10.2340/00015555-1957
- https://dermnetnz.org/images/nail-lichen-planus-images
- https://emedicine.medscape.com/article/1108072-overview

- https://www.dermatologyadvisor.com/home/topics/psoriasis/long-term-plaque-pso-treatment-clinicianrecommendations/
- https://www.aad.org/public/diseases/psoriasis/what/symptoms
- https://www.pcds.org.uk/clinical-guidance/guttate-psoriasis
- https://www.healthline.com/health/inverse-psoriasis#gallery-open
- https://www.papaa.org/learn-about-psoriasis-and-psoriatic-arthritis/further-resources/pustular-psoriasis/
- https://www.verywellhealth.com/what-are-the-different-types-of-pustular-psoriasis-3876679
- https://dermnetnz.org/images/generalised-pustular-psoriasis-images
- https://www.verywellhealth.com/what-are-the-different-types-of-pustular-psoriasis-3876679
- https://dermnetnz.org/images/generalised-pustular-psoriasis-images
- https://www.uptodate.com/contents/image/print?imageKey=DERM%2F111552~DERM%2F111553~DERM %2F111554
- https://www.researchgate.net/figure/Nail-pitting-and-transverse-ridging-in-a-patient-withpsoriasis_fig7_232923694
- https://www.everydayhealth.com/psoriasis/guide/scalp-psoriasis/
- https://www.orthobullets.com/basic-science/9050/psoriatic-arthritis
- https://www.healthline.com/health/psoriasis/psoriasis-on-the-tongue#pictures
- https://www.aafp.org/pubs/afp/issues/2000/0201/p725.html
- https://www.cdc.gov/typhus/scrub/index.html
- https://www.thenationalskincentre.com/keloid.html
- https://drclementlo.com/refer/index.php/dermatology-jean-l?view=article&id=192&catid=98
- https://www.healthline.com/health/nevus-sebaceous
- https://www.pcds.org.uk/clinical-guidance/chondermatitis-nodularis-helicis
- https://www.researchgate.net/figure/The-epidermoid-cysts-multiplex-of-the-scrotum_fig1_263863774
- https://www.pcds.org.uk/clinical-guidance/pilar-cyst-syn-trichilemmal-cyst
- https://medicoapps.org/m-hypertrophic-scar-and-keloid/
- https://skinsurgeryclinic.co.uk/treatments/seborrhoeic-keratosis-removal/
- https://www.iskin.com.hk/syringomas-sebaceous-hyperplasia-seborrhoeic-keratosis/
- https://www.l-formulaclinic.co.uk/sebaceous-hyperplasia
- https://www.firstderm.com/skin-tags/
- https://www.sciencephoto.com/media/1273804/view/keratoacanthoma
- https://www.msdmanuals.com/en-sg/home/quick-facts-skin-disorders/noncancerous-skingrowths/dermatofibromas
- https://stamfordskin.com/en/dermatology/cutaneous-horn/
- https://healthjade.com/bowens-disease/
- https://skintechmedical.com.au/actinic-keratosis-statistics-risks-and-treatments-available/
- https://www.contemporarypediatrics.com/view/ataxia-telangiectasia
- https://www.msdmanuals.com/professional/hematology-and-oncology/bleeding-due-to-abnormal-blood-vessels/hereditary-hemorrhagic-telangiectasia
- https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Kaposi%27s_sarcoma
- https://medicoapps.org/m-lymphangioma/
- https://healthjade.net/venous-lake/
- https://www.ebmedicine.net/content.php?action=showPage&pid=351
- https://healthjade.net/angiokeratoma/
- https://www.sciencephoto.com/media/642200/view/fabry-s-disease
- https://contourclinics.com.au/treatment/cherry-angioma-removal/
- https://hemedicalclinic.com/scrotal-angiokeratoma/
- https://www.researchgate.net/figure/Vascular-papules-of-angiokeratoma-of-Fordyce-on-the-scrotum-of-thesame-patient_fig1_7194136
- https://twitter.com/SmartEnglish3/status/830003380391129088

- https://step2.medbullets.com/dermatology/120083/port-wine-stain
- https://childrenswi.org/medical-care/birthmarks-and-vascular-anomalies-center/conditions
- https://www.nejm.org/doi/full/10.1056/NEJMicm1610755
- https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/pagets-disease-nipple/
- https://step1.medbullets.com/oncology/121592/squamous-cell-carcinoma-scc-of-the-skin
- https://www.clinicaladvisor.com/home/topics/dermatology-information-center/gorlin-basal-cell-nevussyndrome-diagnosis-and-management/
- https://www.skindoctor.co.za/skin-cancer-awareness/basal-cell-carcinoma-bcc-page
- https://healthjade.net/beckers-nevus/
- https://sifsof.com/clinical-apps/nevus-of-ota-and-laser-treatment/
- https://link.springer.com/chapter/10.1007/978-1-4614-6654-3_6
- https://www.google.com/search?q=Spitz+Nevus&tbm
- https://www.chandigarhayurvedcentre.com/blog/halo-nevus/
- https://www.google.com/search?q=Compound+Nevi&tbm=isch&ved
- https://www.sciencephoto.com/media/945767/view/intradermal-nevus
- https://www.chegg.com/flashcards/intro-to-derm-66909090-2c61-4220-8f70-810846218e7c/deck
- https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Nevus spilus
- http://medical-dictionary.thefreedictionary.com/_/viewer.aspx?path
- https://www.your-doctor.net/derma_atlas/index.php?id=16#images-2
- https://www.sciencephoto.com/media/943431/view/melanoma-in-situ
- media/documents/Dermatology%20Standards%20FINAL%20-%20July%20201 J.pdf
- https://www.dermnetnz.org/topics!fungal-skin-infections/
- https://www.semanticscholar.org/paper/Cutaneous-lupus-and-the-Cutaneous-Lupus-Disease-and-Klein-Morganroth/b6f5cd0fa8967c9fea0a4c1cd9ba33a1c401e5b9
- http://www.yogavanahill.com/diseases/porphyria-cutanea-tardacongenital-erythropoietic-porphyria
- https://dermnetnz.org/topics/solar-urticaria
- https://www.healthline.com/health/polymorphous-light-eruption
- https://slideplayer.com/slide/10392080/
- https://www.healthline.com/health/skin-disorders/phytophotodermatitis
- https://link.springer.com/referenceworkentry/10.1007/978-3-319-40221-5_15-2
- https://www.cprcertificationonlinehq.com/blog/summertime-sun-safety
- https://www.todaysrdh.com/scleroderma-how-dental-hygienists-can-approach-oral-symptoms/
- https://doctorhoogstra.com/en/wiki/lentigo-solar/
- https://www.nejm.org/doi/full/10.1056/nejmicm1104059
- https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Freckle
- https://healthjade.net/scleroderma/
- https://www.meningitisnow.org/meningitis-explained/signs-and-symptoms/glass-test/
- https://drclementlo.com/refer/index.php/dermatology-jean-l?view=article&id=102&catid=19
- https://gladskin.com/blogs/resources/types-of-eczema-contact-dermatitis
- https://healthjade.net/phytophotodermatitis/
- https://ykhoa.org/d/image.htm?imageKey=DERM%2F70264%7EPEDS%2F70989%7EALLRG%2F51951% 7EDERM%2F81309%7EDERM%2F51220%7EDERM%2F51066%7EALLRG%2F72864%7EDERM%2F6 7215
- https://sso.uptodate.com/contents/image?imageKey=PI%2F62784
- https://www.allergyuk.org/types-of-allergies/urticaria-hives-other-skin-allergy/
- https://coreem.net/core/angioedema/
- https://alrustom-laser.com/allergic-contact-rashes/
- https://www.mdedge.com/familymedicine/article/140009/dermatology/itchy-rash-neck
- https://plasticsurgerykey.com/42-lichen-simplex-chronicus-and-prurigo/
- https://en.drmakise.com/prurigo-nodularis/

- https://www.dermacaredirect.co.uk/advice/skincare-sd/
- https://www.dermatologyinfo.net/english/chapters/DSC02390.JPG
- https://www.pcds.org.uk/clinical-guidance/atopic-eczema
- https://www.amboss.com/us/knowledge/Atopic_dermatitis
- https://www.healthline.com/health/morphea
- https://www.atlasdermatologico.com.br/disease.jsf;jsessionid=12B7270274A0A1B77AFCA039FC1197E3?dis easeId=256
- https://skinbase.co.uk/blog/what-is-melasma/
- https://dermnetnz.org/topics/poikiloderma-of-civatte
- https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/vitiligo/
- https://www.medicalnewstoday.com/articles/245081
- https://www.foothillderm.com/blog/vitiligo-1
- https://dermnetnz.org/topics/pemphigoid-gestationis
- https://www.google.com/search?q=Pemphigus+Foliaceus&source=Inms&tbm=isch&sa=X&ved=2ahUKEwj V7f33tZX-AhXL9jgGHb78ABUQ_AUoAXoECAEQAw&biw=1366&bih=643&dpr=1#imgrc= 9QIeuPcTQfRcXM
- https://www.pcds.org.uk/clinical-guidance/bullous-pemphigoid1
- https://www.google.com/search?q=bullous+pemphigoid+images&tbm
- https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/pemphigus-vulgaris/
- https://www.pcds.org.uk/clinical-guidance/pemphigus-foliaceus
- https:/lbpac.org.nz/magazine/2009/February/docs lbpj19Jungalnail _pages_ l 8-23.pdf
- https://link.springer.com/chapter/10.1007/978-3-319-89581-9_22
- https://nn.neurology.org/content/5/3/e454
- https://cancerhomoeoclinic.co.in/alopecia-areata-homeopathy-treatment/
- https://www.birminghamdermatologyclinic.co.uk/blog/myths-about-alopecia-areata/
- https://www.selfmanagescleroderma.com/lessons/intro-to-raynauds-phenomenon.html
- https://clinicalgate.com/eczema-basic-principlescontact-dermatitis/
- https://www.singhealth.com.sg/patient-care/conditions-treatments/atopic-dermatitis
- https://www.researchgate.net/figure/Chronic-cutaneous-lupus-erythematosus-Discoid-lupus-erythematosus-demonstrating_fig1_26890374
- https://www.jaad.org/article/S0190-9622%2819%2930455-4/pdf
- https://dermnetnz.org/topics/discoid-lupus-erythematosus
- https://www.researchgate.net/figure/Chronic-cutaneous-lupus-erythematosus-Discoid-lupus-erythematosusdemonstrating_fig1_26890374
- https://www.jaad.org/article/S0190-9622%2819%2930455-4/pdf
- https://dermnetnz.org/topics/discoid-lupus-erythematosus
- https://dermnetnz.org/topics/cutaneous-lupus-erythematosus
- https://www.dermatologyadvisor.com/home/decision-support-in-medicine/dermatology/subacute-cutaneouslupus-erythematosus-scle/
- https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S1578219011001053
- https://www.sciencephoto.com/media/1185105/view/discoid-lupus-erythematosus
- https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S2352647519300887
- https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S2352647517300400
- https://dermnetnz.org/topics/chilblain-lupus-erythematosus
- https://www.rxlist.com/collection-of-images/acute_systemic_lupus_picture/pictures.htm
- https://www.aad.org/public/diseases/a-z/lupus-symptoms
- https://www.google.com/search?q=Subacute+cutaneous+lupus+erythematosus&tbm=isch&ved=2ahUKEwj dlY2qx4r-AhW9JrcAHWmsBn0Q2-cCegQIABAA&oq=Subacute+cutaneous+lupus+ erythematosus&gs_lcp=CgNpbWcQAzIHCAAQigUQQzIFCW1nwAEB&sclient=img&ei=_x4pZJ2aM73N3L UP6dia6Ac&bih=643&biw=1349&hl=en#imgrc=Mgkj4Sw1qL-UYM

- https://www.medicalnewstoday.com/articles/320504
- https://dermnetnz.org/cme/dermatitis/dermatitis-overview
- https://www.medicalnewstoday.com/articles/320504#causes
- https://donovanmedical.com/hair-blog/aa-ophiasis -vs-ffa
- https://www.thedermatologyclinic.london/skin-conditions/angiokeratoma-treatment-london/
- https://www.aad.org/public/diseases/a-z/scleroderma-symptoms
- https://www.birpublications.org/doi/10.1259/bjrcr.20150203
- https://dermnetnz.org/topics/leprosy
- https://www.nejm.org/doi/full/10.1056/nejmicm1011992
- https://education.lillymedical.com/en-us/disease-education-resources/dermatology/alopeciaareata/education-resources/al
- https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/10.1111/j.1365-4632.2008.03579.x
- https://www.semanticscholar.org/paper/A-Rare-Combination-of-Pure-Neuritic-Leprosy-with-to-Prakash-Anoosha/ecaa65d9f82578a0b4fe71bcbf69e1cb071107bc/figure/4
- https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S0190962200762189
- https://www.annsaudimed.net/doi/10.4103/0256-4947.77495
- https://doctorhoogstra.com/en/wiki/tuberculosis-cutaneous/
- https://www.google.com/search?q=cutaneous+tuberculosis&tbm=isch&ved=2ahUKEwieuYDenYj-AhVZyHMBHbteD3QQ2-cCegQIABAA&oq=cutaneous+tuberculosis&gs_lcp=CgNpbWcQAzIFC AAQgAQyBQgAEIAEMgUIABCABDIFCAAQgAQyBQgAEIAEMgUIABCABDIFCAAQgAQyBQgAEIAE MgUIABCABDIFCAAQgAQ6B
- https://dermnetnz.org/topics/skin-problems-associated-with-diabetes-mellitus
- https://dermnetnz.org/topics/skin-problems-associated-with-diabetes-
- https://www.consultant360.com/article/consultant360/limited-joint-mobility-syndrome-commonmusculoskeletal-condition-overlooked?page=1mellitus#:~:text=Diabetic%20dermopathy% 20is%20a% 20skin-often%20 appearing%20on%20the%20shins.
- <u>https://www.nature.com/articles/nrendo.2009.174</u>